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Dear Ms. Cole: 

Enclosed for filing are the original and four (4) copies of an Application for Authority to 
Issue and Sell Securities on behalf of Florida Public Utilities Company. This application is 
submitted pursuant to section 366.04, Florida Statutes and Chapter 25-8, Florida Administrative 
Code. A copy of the application is being provided to the Office of Public Counsel. 

Please acknowledge receipt of this letter by stamping the extra copy of this letter “filed” and 
returning the same to me. 
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Florida Public Service Commission 
Tallahassee, Florida 

Application of 

Florida Public Utilities Company 

For Authority to Issue and Sell Securities 

Pursuant to Section 366.04, Florida Statutes, 

And Chapter 25-8, Florida Administrative Code 

Address communications in connection with this Application to: 

George M. Bachman, CFO and Treasurer 
Florida Public Utilities Company 

PO Box 3395 
West Palm Beach, Florida 33402-3395 

(561) 838-1731 

Cheryl M. Martin, Controller 
Florida Public Utilities Company 

PO Box 3395 
West Palm Beach, Florida 33402-3395 

(561) 838-1725 

Norman H. Horton, Jr. 
Messer, Caparello & Self 

2618 Centennial Place 
PO Box 15579 

Tallahassee, FL 32317 
(850) 222-0720 

The Date of this Application is September 4,2007 
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APPLICATION OF 
FLORIDA PUBLIC UTILITIES COMPANY (FPUC) 

FOR AUTHORITY TO ISSUE AND SELL SECURITIES 
PURSUANT TO SECTION 366.04, FLORIDA STATUTES, 

AND CHAPTER 25-8, FLORIDA ADMINISTRATIVE CODE 

A. Applicability 

This Application is filed in accordance with Section 366.04, 

Florida Statutes, and Chapter 25-8, Florida Administrative Code. 

B. Contents of Application 

1. Name and Principal Business Office Address 

Business Office: 
Florida Public Utilities Company 
401 South Dixie Highway 
West Palm Beach, Florida 33401-5886 

Mailing Address: 
Florida Public Utilities Company 
PO Box 3395 
West Palm Beach, Florida 33402-3395 

2. State and Date Incorporated 

State of Florida 

The company was incorporated by letters patent issued by the State 

of Florida on March 6, 1924 under the name of Palm Beach Gas 

Company. By subsequent amendment the name was changed to Florida 

Public Utilities Company on October 14, 1927. On April 25, 1929 the 

Company was incorporated under the 1925 Florida Corporation Law and 

is continuing its corporate existence pursuant to the 1925 Corporation Law 

and its Certificate of Reincorporation, as amended. 
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3. Persons Authorized to Receive Notices and Communications 

George M. Bachman, CFO and Treasurer 
Florida Public Utilities Company 
PO Box 3395 
West Palm Beach, Florida 33402-3395 
(561) 838-1731 

Cheryl M. Martin, Controller 
Florida Public Utilities Company 
PO Box 3395 
West Palm Beach, Florida 33402-3395 
(561) 838-1725 

Norman H. Horton, Jr. 
Messer, Caparello & Self 
26 18 Centennial Place 
PO Box 15579 
Tallahassee, FL 323 17 
(850) 222-0720 

4. Capital Stock and Funded Debt 

(a)-(g) Information responsive to description and amounts authorized, 

outstanding, reacquired, pledged, owned by affiliated corporations and 

held in any fund are contained in Exhibit C “Statement of Capital Stock 

and Debt - June 30,2007”. 

5, Proposed Transactions 

(a)(b)(c) Description of proposed transactions, kind and nature of 

securities and the maximum principal amounts and present estimate of 

interest rates and dividend rates. 

Florida Public Utilities Company (FPUC) seeks permission to 

issue and sell and/or exchange any combination of the long-term debt, 

short-term notes and equity securities and/or to assume liabilities or 
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obligations as guarantor, endorser or surety in an incremental amount not 

to exceed $45,000,000, excluding retained earnings during the calendar 

year 2008. The regulated share of this financing will not exceed 90%, or 

$40,500,000. 

The long-term debt securities may include first mortgage bonds, 

private activity bonds, medium-term notes, debentures convertible or 

exchangeable debentures, notes, convertible or exchangeable notes, or 

other straight debt or hybrid debt securities, whether secured or unsecured, 

with maturities ranging from one to one hundred years. The expected 

interest rate on long-term debt is 7.47 %. 

Authority to issue up to $25,000,000 of short-term notes will give 

the Company financial flexibility with respect to future permanent 

financing. At the June 30,2007 the short-term notes interest rate was 

6.22 Yo. 

The equity securities would be common stock issued at Fair 

Market Value less any issuance costs. The expected dividend rate would 

be $ .45 per share annually. The expected issuance price would be $ 1 1.94 

per share (net) with a maximum number of shares to be issued of 

2,000,000 for a net outstanding number of shares not to exceed 9,000,000. 

6. Purposes of Issues 

(a)(b)(c) The net proceeds to be received from the issuance and sale and/or 

exchange of the debt and equity securities will be added to FPUC’s 

general funds and will be used to provide additional facilities through 
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7. 

construction or acquisitions expenditures, and to repay short-term notes. 

Excess proceeds, if any, will be temporarily invested in short-term 

instruments pending their application to the foregoing purposes. 

Under future market conditions, the interest rate on new issue 

long-term debt may be such that it becomes economically attractive to 

reacquire a portion or all of certain of its debt securities or equity 

securities. 

The short-term securities are to provide funds temporarily to 

finance portions of FPUC’s general construction program, operating 

expenses and capital commitments and for other corporate purposes. 

Significant parts of FPUC cash requirements may temporarily be financed 

through the sale of short-term securities from time to time. Also, during 

the 2008 period, FPUC may need short-term financing capabilities for 

seasonal fuel requirements, contingency financing such as fuel under 

recoveries or storm restorations costs, acquisition costs or general 

operating expenditures. 

Facts Supporting Legality, Necessity or Appropriateness 

The Company’s Certificate of Incorporation, as amended, and the 

Laws of the State of Florida under which the Company is organized permit 

the Company to issue its securities for proper corporate purposes, 

including the rehnding of bank loans and for construction expenditures. 

The issuance of the securities for which approval is now being sought will 

not impair the ability of the Company to perform its public utilities 
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services in an efficient manner and will enable the Company to meet the 

growing needs of the communities that it services and is reasonably 

necessary and appropriate for such purposes. 

8. Name and Address of Counsel Passing; upon the Legality of the Proposed 
Issues 

Norman H. Horton, Jr. 
Messer, Caparello & Self 
26 18 Centennial Place 
PO Box 15579 
Tallahassee, FL 323 17 
(850) 222-0720 

9. Other State or Federal Regulatory Body 

If required a Registration Statement with respect to each sale of 

securities hereunder subject to the Securities Act of 1933, as amended will 

be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission at the following 

address: 

Securities and Exchange Commission 
Judiciary Plaza, 450 Fifth Street 
NW. Washington, D.C. 20549 

In addition, issuance of the $ 14,000,000 Palm Beach County 

industrial bond is an exempt transaction under the provisions of the 

Securities Act of 1933. 

10. Control or Ownership 

There is no measure of control or ownership exercised by or over 

applicant as to any public utility. No inter-corporate relationship exists 
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with the exception of the wholly owned subsidiary, Flo-Gas Corporation. 

Applicant is not a member of any holding company system. 

C. Exhibits 

Exhibit Number: 

Exhibit A - Annual Report on Form 10-K for the calendar year ended 
December 3 1 , 2006 and Form 10-Q for the six months ended June 30, 
2007. * 

Exhibit B - Sources and Uses of Funds Forecast and Construction 
Budget for Gross Property Additions for calendar year 2008. 

Exhibit C - Statement of Capital Stock and Debt as of June 30,2007. 

*As permitted by Rule 25-8.003 (l)(a)(6), Florida Administrative Code, 
FPUC is satisfying the requirements for Schedules A (1) through A (5) by 
submitting its Annual Report on Form 10-K for the calendar year ended 
December 3 1 , 2006 and Form 10-Q for the six months ended June 30, 
2007 in conjunction with this Application. 

SIGNATURE 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 366.04, Florida Statutes and Chapter 25-8, Florida 
Administrative Code, Florida Public Utilities Company has caused its duly authorized 
officer to execute this Application on this 4th day of September, 2007. 

Florida Public Utilities Company 

40 1 youth Dixie Highway 
West Palm Beach, Florida 33401 
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UNITED STATES 
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION 

Washington, D.C. 20549 

F O M  10-Q 
(Mark One) 

El QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15 (d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 
1934 

For the quarterly period ended June 30,2007 

TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTlON 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 
1934 

For the transition period from to 

Commission File Number: 001-10608 

FLORIDA PUBLIC UTILITIES COMPANY 
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter) 

Florida 59-0539080 
(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization) (I.R.S. Employer Identification No.) 

401 South Dixie Highway, 
West Palm Beach, FI. 33401 

(Address and telephone number of registrant’s principal executive offices 
and principal place of business) 

(561) 832-0872 

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the 
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required 
to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes El No 0 

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, or a non-accelerated filer. See 
definition of “accelerated filer and large accelerated filer” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. (Check one): 
Large accelerated filer Accelerated filer 0 Non-accelerated filer El 

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange 
Act). Yes No El 

On August 1 ,  2007, there were 6,036,178 shares of $1.50 par value coininon stock outstanding. 
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Revenues 
Natural gas 
Electric 
Propane gas 

Total revenues 
Cost of Fuel and Other Pass Through Costs 
Gross Profit 

Operating Expenses 
Operation and maintenance 
Depreciation and amortization 
Taxes other than income taxes 

Total operating expenses 
Operating Income 

Other Income and (Deductions) 
Merchandise and service revenue 
Merchandise and service expenses 
Other income 
Interest expense 

Total other deductions - net 
Earnings Before Income Taxes 
Income Taxes 
Net Income 
Prefered Stock Dividends 
Earnings For Coinmon Stock 

(Basic and Diluted): 
Earnings Per Common Share 
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PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

Item 1. Financial Statements 

FLORIDA PUBLlC UTILITlES COMPANY 
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS O F  INCOME CUnaudited) 

(Dollars in thousands, except share data) 

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended 
June 30, June 30, 

2007 2006 2007 2006 
$ 15,502 .$ 14,632 $ 36,075 $ 41,586 

13.135 11,815 26,493 23,5 11 
3;83 1 3;528 8;s 12 8,288 

32,468 29,975 71,080 73,385 
20,699 18,476 45,468 47,689 
11,769 1 1,499 25,612 25,696 

7,443 6,829 14,616 13,696 
2.03 1 1.925 4,103 3,903 

699 680 1,559 1,504 
10,173 9,434 20,278 19,103 

1,596 2,065 5,334 6,593 

752 1,090 1,667 2,3 16 
(1,007) (1,480) (2,192 

145 133 296 284 
(670) 

(1,216) (1,119) (223 83 1 (2,332 
(989) (903) (1,900) (1,924 
607 1.162 3,434 4,669 

(197) (424) (1 1226) (lj710 
410 738 2,208 2,959 

7 7 14 14 
~~ 

$ 403 $ 73 1 $ 2,194 $ 2,945 

$ 0.07 $ 0.12 $ 0.36 .$ 0.49 

Dividends Declared Per Common Share $ 0.1125 $ 0.1075 $ 0.2200 $ 0.2108 

Average Shares Outstanding 6,030,928 5,985,162 6,027,833 5,982,599 
These financial statements should be read with the accompanying Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements. 
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3,413 3,3 61 
7,513 7,821 

4: 
287 5 8' 

6,146 6,001 
2,405 2,405 
4,476 4,405 

29,744 30,372 
$ 182,405 $ 181,234 

5,504 5,74r 
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FLORIDA PUBLIC UTILITIES COMPANY 
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS (Unaudited) 

(Dollars in thousands) 

SSETS 

tility Plant 
Utility Plant 
Less Accumulated depreciation 

Net utility plant 

urrent Assets 
Cash 
Accounts receivable 
Allowance for uncollectible accounts 
Unbilled receivables 
Notes receivable 
Inventories (at average unit cost) 
Prepaid expenses 
Under-recovery of fuel costs 
Deferred income taxes-current 

Other regulatory assets-storm reserve 
Other regulatory assets-environmental 

Deferred charges-current 
Total current assets 

)ther Assets 
Investments held for environmental costs 
Other regulatory assets-environmental 
Other regulatory assets-storm reserve 
Other regulatory assets-retirement plans 
Long-term receivables and other investments 
Deferred charges 
Goodwill 
Intangible assets (net) 

Total other assets 
Total Assets 

December 
June 30, 31, 

2007 2006 

$ 194.067 $ 188,968 
621078 591757 

129,211 131,989 

1,315 84 
10,446 12,199 

(406) (429 
1,687 1,957 

292 298 
4,025 4,12C 

418 961 
1,456 862 

561 418 
456 45c 
162 22 f 
260 49: 

20,672 21,65: 

'hese fmancial statements should be read with the accompanying Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements. 
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FLORIDA PUBLIC UTILITIES COMPANY 
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS CUnaudited) 

(Dollars in thousands) 

'APITALIZATION AND LIABILITIES 

apitalization 
Common shareholders' equity 
Preferred stock 
Long-term debt 

Total capitalization 

'urrent Liabilities 
Line of credit 
Accounts payable 
Insurance accrued 
Interest accrued 
Other accruals and payables 
Taxes accrued 
Over-earnings liability 
Over-recovery of fuel costs and other 
Customer deposits 

Total current liabilities 

Ither Liabilities 
Deferred income taxes 
Environmental liability 
Regulatory liability-storm reserve 
Regulatory liabilities-other 
Other liabilities 

Total other liabilities 
Total Capitalization and Liabilities 

December 
June 30, 31, 

2007 2006 

$ 48,813 $ 47,572 
600 600 

50,730 50,702 
100,143 98,874 

1,105 
10,098 

150 
598 

3,546 
2,164 

760 
4.416 

101407 
3 3,244 

3,466 
10,279 

181 
789 

3,023 
1,180 

722 
4,011 
9,608 

33,259 

16,713 17,436 
12,768 13,140 

1,697 1,636 
9,947 9,676 
7,893 7,213 

49,018 49,101 
$ 182,405 $ 181,234 

l e s e  fmancial statements should be read with the accompanyhg Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements. 
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FLORIDA PUBLIC UTILITIES COMPANY 
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (Unaudited) 

(Dollars in thousands) 

Six Months Ended 
June 30, 

2007 2006 

iet cash provided by operating activities $ 1Q,980 $ 16,155 

westing Activities 
Construction expenditures 
Proceeds received on notes receivable 
Other 

Net cash used in investing activities 

inancing Activities 
Net decrease in short-term borrowings 
Dividends paid 
Other increases 

Net cash used in fmancing activities 

(2,361) (8,121 
(1.307) (1,895 . -  . .  

235, 232 
(3,433) (9,788 

let increase in cash 1,23 1 422 

:ash at beginning of period 84 69: 

:ash at end of period $ 1,315 $ 1,12( 

l e s e  fDancial statements should be read with the accompanying Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements. 
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FLORIDA PUBLIC UTILITIES COMPANY 
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

(Unaudited) 
June 30,2007 

1. Basis of Presentation 
The accompanying unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with 
the generally accepted accounting principles in the United States (GAAP) for interim financial infomiation and with 
the instructions for Form 10-Q and Article 10 of Regulation S-X. Accordingly, they do not include all of the 
infonnation and footnotes required by GAAP for complete fmancial statements. In the opinion of management, all 
adjustments necessary for fair presentation have been included. The operating results for the period are not 
necessarily indicative of the results that may be expected for the full year. For further information, refer to the 
audited consolidated financial statements and footnotes included in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for 
the year ended December 3 1,2006. 

2. Use of Estimates 
The preparation of financial statements in confoimity with GAAP requires the Company to make certain estimates 
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of any contingent assets and 
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the 
reporting period. Significant estimates include allowances, accruals for pensions, environmental liabilities, liability 
reserves, regulatory deferred tax liabilities, unbilled revenue and over-earnings liability. Actual results may differ 
from these estimates. 

3. Regula tion 
The financial statements are prepared in accordance with the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting 
Standards (SFAS) No. 71 - “Accounting for the Effects of Certain Types of Regulation”. SFAS No. 71 recognizes 
that accounting for rate-regulated enterprises should reflect the relationship of costs and revenues introduced by rate 
regulation. A regulated utility may defer recognition of a cost (a regulatory asset) or show recognition of an 
obligation (a regulatory liability) if it is probable that, through the ratemaking process, there will be a corresponding 
increase or decrease in revenues. The Company has recognized certain regulatory assets and liabilities in the 
condensed consolidated balance sheets. 

As a result, Florida Public Service Commission (FPSC) regulation has a significant effect on the Company’s results 
of operations. The FPSC approves rates that are intended to permit a specified rate of retum on investment. Rate 
tariffs allow the flexibility of automatically passing through the cost of natural gas and electricity to customers. 
Increases in the operating expenses of the regulated segments may require a request for increases in the rates 
charged to customers. 

4. Pledged Assets 
Substantially, all of the Company’s utility plant and the shares of its wholly owned subsidiary, Flo-Gas Corporation, 
collateralize the Company’s First Mortgage Bonds (long-term debt). Cash, accounts receivable and inventory are 
collateral for the line of credit. 
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5. Restriction on Dividends 
The Company’s Fifteenth Supplemental Indenture of Mortgage and Deed of Trust restricts the amount that is 
available for cash dividends. At June 30,2007, approximately $9.8 million of retained earnings were free of such 
restriction and available for the payment of dividends. The Company’s line of credit agreement contains covenants 
that, if violated, could restrict or prevent the payment of dividends. The Company is not in violation of these 
covenants. 

6. Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts 
The Company records an allowance for uncollectible accounts based on historical information and trended current 
economic conditions. The bad debt write-offs for the second quarter 2007 were $135,000 while the provisions were 
$1 15,000. 

7. Storm Reserves 
As of June 30, 2007, the Company had a storm reserve of approximately $1.7 million for the electric segment. The 
Company does not have a storm reserve for the natural gas or propane gas segments. Any future storm costs 
affecting the natural gas se-gnent will be deferred for recovery from customers either through rate increases or 
through applying any available over-earnings as a reduction to the costs. All such deferred costs are subject to 
review and approval by the FPSC. 

The Company deferred storm costs for the natural gas segment incurred in 2004 as a regulatory asset on the 
condensed consolidated balance sheets. The FPSC approved recovery of these storm costs, plus interest and revenue 
related taxes, over a 30-month period beginning in November 2005. As of June 30,2007, the remaining balance of 
these storm costs to be recovered is $159,000. 

The FPSC staff issued a recommendation on August 2,2007, and if approved, the overeamings for 2005 will remain 
as currently estimated, and the disposition will be used to fund our storm reserve and eliniinate the storm surcharge 
and the related regulatory asset - storm reserve in our natural gas operations. 

8. Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets 
The Company does not amortize goodwill or intangibles with indefinite lives. The Company periodically tests the 
applicable reporting segments, natural gas and propane gas, for impairment. In the event goodwill or intangible 
assets related to a segment are determined to be impaired, the Company would write down such assets to fair value. 
The impairment test perfonned in 2007 and 2006 showed no impairment for either reporting segment. 

Goodwill associated with the Company’s acquisitions consists of $500,000 in the natural gas segment and $1.9 
million in the propane gas segment. The sunmary of intangible assets at June 30, 2007, is as follows: 
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Intangible Assets 
(Dollars in thousands) 

2007 
Customer distribution rights (Indefinite life) $ 1,900 
Customer relationships (Indefmite life) 900 
Software (Five to nine year life) 3,367 
Accumulated amortization (1,691) 

Total intangible assets, net of amortization $ 4,476 

The amortization expense of intangible assets was approximately $174,000 for the six months ended June 30,2007. 

9. Common Shareholders’ Equity 
Items impacting common shareholders’ equity other than income and dividends are the dividend reinvestment 
program, employee stock purchase program, stock compensation plans and treasury stock. The net impact of these 
additional items increased common shareholders’ equity approximately $28 1,000 for the six months ended June 30, 
2007. Accumulated other comprehensive loss, comprised of the deferred cost of employee benefit plans, totaled 
approximately $50,000 and $100,000 as of June 30,2007 and December 3 1,2006, respectively. The change to other 
comprehensive loss for the quarter ending June 30,2007 was an approximate net $26,000 gain. 

10. Over-earnings -Natural Gas Segment 
The FPSC approves rates that are intended to permit a specified rate of retum on investment and limits the 
maximum amount of eamings of regulated operations. The Company has agreed with the FPSC staff to limit the 
earned retum on equity for regulated natural gas and electric operations. 

The Company has recorded estimated 2006 and 2005 over-earnings for regulated natural gas operations of $25,000 
and $735,000, respectively. We revised our estimate for the 2005 overeamings in the second quarter of 2007 an 
additional $85,000. These liabilities are included in the over-eamings liability on the Company’s condensed 
consolidated balance sheet of June 30,2007. The calculations supporting these liabilities are complex and involve a 
variety of projections and estimates before the ultimate settlement of such obligations. Estimates may be revised as 
expectations change and factors become known and determinable. 

The 2005 and 2006 over-eamings liabilities are based on the Company’s best estimates, but the amounts could 
change upon the FPSC fmalization expected in 2007 and 2008. The FPSC determines the disposition of over- 
earnings with alternatives that include refunding to customers, increasing storm damage or environmental reserves 
or reducing any depreciation reserve deficiency. The FPSC staff issued a recommendation on August 2,2007, and if 
approved, the overeamings for 2005 will remain as curently estimated, and the disposition will be used to fund our 
storm reserve and eliminate the storm surcharge and the related regulatory asset - storm reserve in our natural gas 
operations. 

. 
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11. Environmental Contingencies 
The Company is subject to federal and state legislation with respect to soil, groundwater and employee health and 
safety matters and to environinental regulations issued by the Florida Department of Environmental Protection 
(FDEP), the United States Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) and other federal and state agencies. For full 
disclosure of the legal items that impact the Company, please refer to "Contingencies" in the Notes to Consolidated 
Financial Statements in the Company's Form 10-K for the year ended December 3 1,2006. 

12. Reclassification 
Certain amounts in the 2006 financial statements have been reclassified to confonn to the 2007 presentation. 

13. Financial Accounting Standard Board Interpretation No. 48 
The Company accounts for uncertainty in income taxes in accordance with FASB Interpretation No. 48, Accounting 
for Uncertainty in Income Taxes (FIN 48) and SFAS No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes. The Company 
performed an analysis of tax positions taken and expected to be taken on the tax returns. The analysis concluded that 
the Company had no material uncertain tax positions. 

The Interpretation requires Companies to accrue interest and penalties that would be incurred if an uncertain tax 
position ultimately were not sustained. In such a case, the Company would start accruing interest and penalty in the 
period which gives rise to the uncertain tax position. The Company would classify interest and penalties in the 
income statement and balance sheet separately from other tax balances and based on expected timing of cash 
payment to the taxing authorities. 

Under the tax statute of limitations applicable to the Internal Revenue Code and state taxes, we are no longer subject 
to examinations by the Internal Revenue Service or the State of Florida for years before 2003. However, because we 
are carrying foiward income tax attributes, such as net operating losses and tax credits from 2002 and earlier tax 
years, these attributes can still be audited when utilized on returns filed in the future. As noted in Note 14, we have 
been notified of an IRS audit. 

14. IRS Examination 
In February of 2007, the IRS informed us that it has selected our 2003 and 2004 tax years for examination. As our 
tax positions have remained consistent with those from the previously audited tax years, we do not expect any 
material adverse findings as the result of the impending IRS audit. 

15. Employee Benefit Plans 
The Coiiipany sponsors a qualified defined benefit pension plan for non-union employees that were hired before 
January 1,2005 and for unionized employees that work under one of the six Company union contracts and were 
hired before their respective contract dates in 2005. The Company also sponsors a postretirement medical plan. 

The following table provides the components of the net periodic benefit cost for our pension plan and postretirement 
benefit plan for the three and six months ended June 30,2006 and 2007. 
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FLORIDA PUBLIC UTILITIES COMPANY 
Net Periodic Benefit Costs 

(Dollars in thousands) 

’ension Plan: 
ervice Cost 
nterest Cost 
lxpected Retum on Plan Assets 
imortization of Prior Service Cost 

Net Periodic Pension Cost 

’ostretirement Benefit Pian: 
iervice Cost 
nterest Cost 

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended 
June 30, June 30, 

2007 2006 2007 2006 

$ 283 $ 308 $ 566 $ 616 
566 5 24 1,132 1,048 

(6 10) (603) (1,220) (1,206 
184 184 368 368 

$ 423 $ 413 $ 846 $ 826 

$ 16 $ 25 $ 32 $ 50 
26 34 52 68 

bmortization of Transition Obligation/(Asset) Obligation/ 
Asset) 11 11 22 22 
bmortization of Net (Gain) or Loss - (10) 

70 $ 96 $ 140 
(5) 

Net Periodic Postretirement Benefit Cost $ 48 $ 

~~ ~ 

For additional infonnation related to our employee benefit plans, please see Note 12 to the Consolidated Financial 
Statements of the Company’s 10-K Annual Report. 

In September, 2006, the FASB issued Statement No. 158 “Employers‘ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and 
Other Postretirement Plans”. statement 158 requires the Company to show the funded status of its pension and 
retiree health care plan as a prepaid asset or accrued liability, and to show the net deferred and unrecognized gains 
and losses related to the retirement plans, net of tax, as part of accumulated other comprehensive income (AOCI) in 
shareholders’ equity. Previously, the net deferred and unrecognized gains and losses were netted in the prepaid asset 
or accrued liability recorded for the retirement plans. 

The Company initially adopted Statement 158 at December 3 1,2006. as required and presented in the statement of 
shareholder’s equity in the most recent 10-K. This resulted in a transition adjustment, a loss, of $1 03,000 to the 
AOCI and was reported as a current adjustment in the statement of comprehensive income as opposed to an 
adjustment directly to AOCI. There were no other related or unrelated AOCI adjustments or balances prior to this 
adjustment. The accumulated other comprehensive income (AOCI) as of June 30, 2007 is summarized as follows: 



Statement of Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (AOCI) 
(Dollars in thousands) 

Balance at December 3 1,2005 
Adjustment to ACOI: 
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$ 

Retirement obligations, net of tax (103) 
Balance at December 3 1,2006 (103) 

Balance at June 30,2007 (53) 

Adjustment to AOCI: 
Retirement obligations, net of tax 50 

Item 2. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations 

Overview 
We have three primary business segments: natural gas, electric and propane gas. The Florida Public Service 
Commission (FPSC) regulates the natural gas and electric segments. 

Eamings for 2007 are down significantly for the quarter and for the year to date compared to 2006 primarily because 
of milder weather. The mild weather caused sales for all operating units -natural gas, electric and propane to be 
significantly under budget, thereby lowering income. We also believe that conservation measures taken by our 
custoiners as a result of higher electric rates contributed to the decrease hi electric sales. In addition, over the past 
few years the housing market and construction industry in Florida has slowed down and caused our growth rate to 
be less than originally anticipated. Growth in customers helps increase revenue and usually offsets inany of the 
expense increases. 

We experienced appreciably higher than usual general liability claims this year as cases were settled in 2007. The 
number of claims was atypical related to our gas business and these increased expenses in 2007 by approximately 
$300,000 and decreased earnings per share approximately $.03 over the prior year to date. Management expects 
claims to retum to normal levels for the remainder of 2007. Sarbanes Oxley requirements continue to increase our 
legal fees and accounting costs. These costs have increased significantly over the last five years for public 
companies and continue to negatively impact our earnings. Another item lowering our earnings was a revision in our 
estimate for 2005 natural gas over-eamings, which decreased our net income for 2007 by $53,000. 

We expect a revenue increase beginning in late 2007 and additional increases in early 2008 as a result of our 
upcoming electric rate proceeding, which is expected to be filed with the Florida Public Service Commission 
(FPSC) in the third quarter of 2007. Management is requesting recovery for many of the increases in our electric 
expenses as well as for additional costs to implement new requirements from the FPSC to strengthen power delivery 
systems in order to minimize damage caused by hurricanes. 
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Revenues and Gross Profit 
Three Months Ended Six Months Ended 

2007 2006 2007 2006 
(Dollars and units in thousands) June 30, June 30, 

Natural Gas 
Revenues $ 15,502 $ 14,632 $ 36,075 $ 41,586 
Cost of fuel and other pass through costs 9,168 8,402 2 1,690 26,957 
Gross Profit $ 6,334 $ 6,230 $ 14,385 $ 14,629 
Units sold: (MDth) 1,447 1,402 3,287 3,348 
Customers (average for the period) 51,737 5 1,347 5 1,747 51,254 

Results of Operations 

Electric 
Revenues 
Cost of fuel and other pass through costs 
Gross Profit 
Units sold: (MWH) 
Customers (average for the period) 
m a n e  Gas 
Revenues 
Cost of fuel 
Gross Profit 
Units sold: (MDth) 
Customers (average for the period) 
Consolidated 
Revenues 
Cost of fuel 
Gross Profit 
Customers (average for the period) 
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Revenues and Gross Profit Summary 
Revenues include cost recovery revenues. The FPSC allows cost recovery revenues to directly recover costs of fuel, 
conservation and revenue-based taxes in our natural gas and electric se,oments. Revenues collected for these costs 
and expenses have no effect on results of operations and fluctuations could distort the relationship of revenues 
between periods. Gross profit is defined as gross operating revenues less fuel, conservation and revenue-based taxes 
that are passed directly through to customers. Because gross profit eliminates these cost recovery revenues, we 
believe it provides a more ineaningful basis for evaluating utility revenues. The following summary compares gross 
profit between periods and units sold in one thousand Dekathem (MDth) (gas) and Megawatt Hour (MWH) 
(electric). 

$ 13,135 $ 11,815 $ 26,493 $ 23,511 
9.590 8.243 19.489 16.516 

$ 3,545 $ 3,572 $ 7,004 $ 6,995 
200,298 216,392 385,934 413,619 

31,066 30,605 3 1,004 30,541 

$ 3,831 $ 3,528 $ 8,512 $ 8,288 
1,941 1,831 4,289 4,216 

$ 1,890 $ 1,697 $ 4,223 $ 4,072 
143 147 335 347 

~ 

13,274 12,974 13,327 12,964 

$ 32,468 $ 29,975 $ 71,080 $ 73,385 
20,699 18,476 45,468 47,689 

$ 11,769 $ 11,499 $ 25,612 $ 25,696 
96,077 94,926 96,078 94,759 
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Three Illoiitlis Eiided Jiriie 30, 2007 Coinpared with Three iVloiiths Eiiilerl June 30, 2006. 

Revenues and Gross Profit 
Natural Gas 
Natural gas service revenues increased by $870,000 in the second quarter of 2007 over the same period in 
2006. Revenues to recover our cost of fuel and other costs passed through to customers increased by 
$766,000. These costs do not impact our gross profit. Our gross profit increased $104,000 or 2%. The increase in 
gross profit is attributable to a 3% increase in units sold in 2007, due primarily to a 1% increase in customer growth. 

Electric 
Electric service revenues increased by $1,320,000 in the second quarter of 2007 over the same period in 
2006. Primarily all of the increase was attributable to the cost of fuel and other costs that were passed through to 
customers. A new fuel contract in our Northeast division was effective January 1,2007 and this increased the cost of 
fuel that was passed through to our customers. Gross profit was flat compared to the second quarter of 
2006. Despite an increase of 2% in customer growth, the usage per customer decreased by 5%, excluding our 
industrial customers, due to weather and possible conservation measures taken by our customers as a result of the 
recent fuel cost increases. 

Propane Gas 
Propane revenues increased $303,000 in the second quarter of 2007 compared to the same period in 2006: Although 
we experienced a 3% decrease in units sold to customers this was offset by increased profit margins. 

Operating Expenses 
Operating expenses were higher by $739,000 in the second quarter of 2007 compared to the same period in 2006. 
Administrative and general expenses increased $425,000 primarily due to an increase in recent unusual general 
liability claims. Management expects claims to retum to a normal level for the remainder of 2007. Additionally, we 
incurred increased expenses from cost of living raises and increased payroll expense for additional staff hired to 
improve natural gas customer service and collections. Customer account expenses increased $129,000 in the second 
quarter of 2007 as a result of increased costs in meter readings and higher bad debt expenses. 

Other Income and Deductions 
Merchandise and service revenue decreased by $338,000 in the second quarter of 2007 compared to the same period 
last year. This was offset by a decrease in cost of merchandise and services of $337,000. The decrease in revenue 
was a result of the slowdown of new construction projects during the current downtum in the housing market. 

Tlie total interest expense increased $97,000 compared to the prior quarter primarily due to the revised estimate in 
the second quarter of 2007 for our natural gas over-earnings from 2005, and the related interest expense on our 
projected over-earnings. 

Income Taxes 
Income tax expense decreased in the second quarter of 2007 by $227,000 over the same period last year; primarily 
due to lower taxable income. 



form 1 0-q. htm Page 16 of 25 

Six Months Elided June 30, 2007 Coinpored with Si-u Months Eiirlecl June 30, 2006. 

Revenues and Gross Profit 
Natural Gas 
Natural gas service revenues decreased $5,511,000 in the six months ended June 30, 2007 over the same period in 
2006. As the cost of natural gas continues to decline, revenues to recover our cost of fuel and other costs passed 
through to customers decreased by $5,267,000. These costs do not impact our gross profit. Our gross profit 
decreased by $244,000 or 2%. The decrease in gross profit is attributable to a 2% decrease in units sold in 2007 due 
primarily to wanner weather resulting in lower usage per customer. The down-tum in the housing market has also 
impacted the growth in the number of new residential customers. 

Electric 
Electric service revenues increased by $2,982,000 in the six months ended June 30, 2007 over the same period in 
2006. Primarily all of the increase was attributable to the cost of fuel and other costs that were passed through to 
customers. A new fuel contract in our Northeast division was effective January 1,2007 and this increased the cost of 
fuel that was passed through to our customers. Gross profit was flat compared to the six months ending June 30, 
2006. Although the number of customers increased by 2%, there was a 6.7% decrease in units sold as a result of 
warmer weather and possible conservation measures taken by our customers due to the recent fLtel increases. 

Propane Gas 
Propane revenues increased by $224,000 in the six months ended June 30,2007 coinpared to the same period in 
2006. Although we experienced a 3.5% decrease in units sold to customers due to wanner weather; this was offset 
by increased profit margins. 

Operating Expenses 
Operating expenses were higher by $1,175,000 in the six months ended June 30, 2007 compared to the same period 
in 2006. Adniinistrative and general increased by $558,000; approximately $300,000 of the increase was due to 
recent unusual general liability claims in the second quarter of 2007. Management expects claims to return to normal 
levels for the remainder of 2007. Additionally, we incurred increased expenses of $325,000 from cost of living 
raises and increased payroll expense for additional staff hired to improve natural gas customer service and 
collections. Similarly, customer account expenses increased by $239,000 as a result of increased costs in meter 
readings and higher bad debt expenses. As the divisions continue to grow, capital additions contributed to $200,000 
in increased depreciation expense. 

Other Income and Deductions 
Merchandise and service revenue decreased by $649,000 in the six months ended June 30,2007 compared to the 
same period last year. This was offset by a decrease in cost of merchandise and services of $7 12,000. The decrease 
in revenue was a result of the slow down of new construction projects during the current downturn in the housing 
market. 
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The total interest expense increased $5 1,000 compared to the prior year to date primarily due to the revised estimate 
in the second quarter of 2007 for our natural gas overeamings froin 2005, and the related interest expense on our 
projected overeamings. 

Income Taxes 
Income tax expense decreased in the six months ended June 30,2007 by $484,000 over the same period last year 
primarily due to lower taxable income. 

Liquidity and Capital Resources 

Cash Flows 
Op er ut ing A ctiv ities 
Net cash flow provided by operating activities for the six months ended June 30, 2007 decreased by approxiniately 
$5.2 million over the same period in 2006. The over-recovered fuel costs in 2006 and the related reduction in fuel 
costs and under-recovered fuel costs in 2007 accounted for approximately $6.8 million of the decrease in the current 
year’s net cash flow as compared to the prior year. 

Investing A ctiv it ies 
Construction expenditures did not fluctuate significantly in the six months ended June 30, 2007, decreasing by 
approximately $2 14,000 compared to the same period last year. 

Financing Activities 
Decreases in cash flow used in financing activities were mostly attributable to reductions in short-term loan 
payments. As of June 30, 2007, we paid down our line of credit by $2.4 million as compared to $8.1 inillion as of 
June 30,2006. The increase in fuel costs during the latter part of 2005 resulted in large file1 under-recoveries and 
therefore a higher dependence on short-temi financing in the first quarter of 2006 compared to 2007. 

Capital Resources 
We have a $12 million line of credit (LOC), which expires on July 1,2008. Upon 30 days notice by us we can 
increase the LOC to a maximum of $20 million. The LOC contains affirmative and negative covenants that, if 
violated, would give the bank the right to accelerate the due date of the loan to be immediately payable. The 
covenants include certain financial ratios. All ratios are currently within the required limits and management 
believes we are in full compliance with all covenants and anticipates continued compliance in the foreseeable future. 
We reserve $1 million of the LOC to cover expenses for any major storm repairs in our electric segment and an 
additional $250,000 for a letter of credit insuring propane facilities. As of June 30, 2007, the amount borrowed from 
the LOC was $1.1 million. At June 30,2007, the LOC, long-tenn debt and preferred stock comprised 52% of total 
equity and debt capitalization. 
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Our 1942 Indenture of Mortgage and Deed of Trust, which is a mortgage on all real and personal property, permits 
the issuance of additional bonds based upon a calculation of unencumbered net real and personal property. At June 
30, 2007, such calculation would permit the issuance of approximately $40.8 million of additional bonds. 

We have $3.4 million in invested funds for payment of future environmental costs. We expect to incur between $5.8 
million and $19.1 million through the year ending December 3 I ,  202 1 for expenses related to environmental clean 
UP. 

There is over $6.4 million in receivables froin the 2003 sale of our water assets, of which estimated installments of 
$300,000 are anticipated to be received in 2008 and in 2009. The remaining balance of $5.8 million will be 
collected in 2010. The present value of this receivable is $5.8 million. 

Cap ita1 Requirements 
Portions of our business are seasonal and dependent on weather conditions in Florida. The weather affects the sale 
of electricity and gas, and thereby impacts the cash provided by operations. Construction costs also impact cash 
requirements throughout the year. Cash needs for operations and construction are met partially through short-term 
borrowings from our LOC. 

The Company purchased land for the initial construction of our South Florida division office on July 5, 2007 for a 
cost of $3.4 million. The current South Florida division office is located on environmentally impacted property, 
which requires relocating the office to allow for clean up of the property. We are planning to complete this new 
facility in the next two years. 

Other commitments for capital expenditures for the remainder of 2007 consist of $775,000 for the purchase of a 
transformer and vehicle purchases totaling approximately $458,000. 

Cash requirements are anticipated to increase significantly in the future due to additional environmental clean up 
costs, sinking fund payments on long-term debt and pension contributions. Environmental clean up costs are 
forecasted to be approximately $61 3,000 through 2007, with remaining payments totaling approximately $13.1 
million, beginning in 2008 and ending in 2021. Annual long-term debt sinking fund payments of approximately $1.4 
million will begin in 2008 and will continue for eleven years. Current projections indicate that the coinpany will 
make a voluntary contribution of $250,000 to its pension plan in 2007. We may have significant pension 
contribution requirements for several years beginning with 2008 due to new pension funding rules. Starting January 
1,2005, we froze our defined benefit plan to new entrants. 

Due to delayed environmental clean-up costs, we currently do not anticipate that any equity or debt financing in 
2007 will be required. We believe that cash from operations, coupled with short-term borrowings on the LOC, will 
be sufficient to satisfji our operating expenses, normal capital expenditure requirements and dividend payments 
through spring of 2008. However, cash requirements are forecasted to increase significantly in the future due to our 
environmental clean up costs, a land purchase, and sinking fund payments on long-term debt and pension 
contributions. If cash needs relating to the land purchase and related construction and the timing of environmental 
expenditures change, it is possible we may consider equity or debt financing. The need and timing will depend upon 
the overall company cash flow requirements. There can be no assurance, however, that equity or debt fmancing will 
be available on favorable terms, or at all, when we seek such financings. 

. 
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Electric Power Supply 
Contracts with our two electric suppliers were originally set to expire on December 3 1, 2007. Those long-term 
contracts provided electricity to our customers at rates much lower than current market rates. As part of our 
negotiations, we agreed to end the current contract tenns for our Northeast division on December 3 1,2006 and 
executed an amended contract that began January 1, 2007 and will expire December 3 1,201 7. Although the 
contract rates have increased for 2007, this enabled us to obtain lower rates for the new contract than would have 
been available if we had not revised the contract at December 3 1,2006. The savings are passed through to our 
customers without profit to us. 

We executed a contract for the provider of electricity in our Northwest division in December 2006 and the contract 
was approved by the FPSC in July 2007. This contract will be for the purchase of electricity beginning January 1, 
2008. 

We anticipate that our new supply contracts will result in rates close to market, which we believe may cause our 
customers’ bills to double during 2008 over current prices. 

We are unable to precisely estimate what impact the higher rates could have on electric consumption but we do feel 
it could be as much as a 10% reduction. 

Over-etrri~in,os-NatiIral Gus Segment 
The FPSC approves rates that are intended to permit a specified rate of return on investment and limits the 
maximum amount of earnings of regulated operations. We recorded estimated 2006 and 2005 over-earnings for the 
natural gas segment of $25,000 and $735,000, respectively. We revised our estimate for the 2005 overearnings in 
the second quarter of 2007 an additional $85,000. These liabilities have been included in the over-earnings liability 
on our balance sheet. The calculations supporting these liabilities are complex and involve a variety of projections 
and estimates before the ultimate settlement of such obligations. Estimates may be revised as expectations change 
and factors become known and detenninable. 

Our 2005 and 2006 estimates of our over-earnings liabilities could change upon the FPSC finalization of our 
earnings for 2007 and 2008. The FPSC detennines the disposition of over-earnings with alternatives that include 
refunds to customers, funding storm damage or environmental reserves, or reducing any depreciation reserve 
deficiency. 
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The FPSC staff issued recommendation on August 2,2007, and if approved, th overeamings for 2005 will remain 
as currently estimated, and the disposition will be used to fund our storm reserve and eliminate the storm surcharge 
and the related regulatory asset - storm reserve in our natural gas operations. 

Larid Purchnse 
We purchased land for $3.4 million in July 2007 for a new South Florida division office. We are in the process of 
preparing plans for a building on this property and expect to begin constivction in 2008. 

Storni Related Expenditures 
Regulators continue to focus on hurricane preparedness and storm recovery issues for utility companies. Newly 
mandated storm preparedness initiatives could impact our operating expenses and capital expenditures later in 2007. 
The initial forecasts of these annual expenditures are approximately $700,000. It is possible that additional 
regulation and rules will be mandated regarding storm related expenditures over the next several years. We 
requested that the FPSC allow us to recover the cost of the newly mandated storm preparedness initiatives and to 
defer these storm-related expenditures until we receive recovery through a rate increase. Several alternatives have 
been considered for recovery and implementation; however, in June 2007 the FPSC requested their staff to provide a 
new recommendation for implementation and recovery of these storm hardening measures at a later date. We expect 
the new recommendation by the FPSC staff later in 2007. If the new recommendation requires implementation 
beginning in the third or fourth quarter of 2007, it could have a significant effect on operating results. The recovery 
of these costs will be considered in our electric base rate proceeding expected to be filed in the third quarter of 2007. 

Electric Base Rnfe Proceeding 
We plan to file a request with the FPSC in the third quarter of 2007 for a base rate increase in our electric se, mment. 
This request will include recovery of increased expenses and capital expenditures since our last rate proceeding in 
2004, as well as additional stonn-related expenditures as discussed above. Finalization of this request and approval, 
if any, of an electric base rate increase would not occur until early 2008. Possible interim rate relief for partial 
recovery of the increased expenditures may occur in late 2007. 

Forward-Looking Statements (Cautionary Statement) 
This report contains forward-looking statements including those relating to the following: 

Based on our current expectations for cash needs, including cash needs relating to the land purchase in 
July 2007 and the related construction, we may choose to consider an equity or debt fmancing. 
Our anticipation of continued coinpliance in the foreseeable future with our LOC covenants. 
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. 
Our expectation that cash requirements will increase significantly in the future due to environmental 
clean-up costs, sinking fund payment on long-tenn debt and pension contributions. 
Our belief that cash from operations, coupled with short-term borrowings on our LOC, will be sufficient 
to satisfy our operating expenses, normal construction expenditure and dividend payments through spring 
of 2008. 
Our 2006 and 2005 over-earnings liability in natural gas will materialize as estimated. 
We expect higher fuel costs beginning in 2008 for our Northwest electric division. We are unable to 
precisely estimate what impact the higher rates could have on electric consumption but we do feel it 
could be as much as a 10% reduction. 
Storm related expenditures may be necessary beginning in 2007 and the total cost may be significant. It 
may have a significant effect on operating results. 
We expect to file for an electric base rate increase in the third quarter of 2007 and finalization is expected 
in early 2008, Final rates, if approved by the FPSC, would not occur until 2008. 

. 

These statements involve certain risks and uncertainties. Actual results may differ materially from what is expressed 
in such forward-looking statements. Important factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from those 
expressed by the forward-looking statements include, but are not limited to, those set forth in "Risk Factors" in our 
Fonn IO-K for the year ended December 3 1,2006. 

Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk 

All financial instruments held by us were entered into for purposes other than for trading. We have market risk 
exposure only from the potential loss in fair value resulting from changes in interest rates. We have no material 
exposure relating to cominodity prices because under our regulatory jurisdictions, we are fully compensated for the 
actual costs of commodities (natural gas and electricity) used in our operations. Any commodity price increases for 
propane gas are normally passed through monthly to propane gas customers as the fuel charge portion of their rate. 

None of our gas or electric contracts are accounted for using the fair value method of accounting. While some of our 
contracts meet the definition of a derivative, we have designated these contracts as "noimal purchases and sales" 
under SFAS No. 133, "Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities". 

On a rolling four-quarter basis, we will purchase a "cap" on approximately one-third of our forecast propane volume 
purchases and pre-buy or hedge with a swap one-third of our forecast anticipated propane purchases. The remaining 
one-third will fluctuate with the market price. Our energy strategy allows us to participate in two-thirds of price 
declines but only one-third of price increases. As of June 30, 2007, we have not entered into any hedging activities. 
When we do enter into hedging activities, we will determine whether they meet the defmitiou of normal sales and 
purchases and if not, we will detennine whether we can use hedge accounting. 
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Nominee 

Richard C. Hitchins 

Troy W. Maschmeyer, Jr. 

We have no exposure to equity risk, as we do not hold any equity instruments. Our exposure to interest rate risk is 
limited to investments held for environmental costs, the long-term notes receivable from the sale of our water 
division and short-tenn borrowings on the line of credit. The investments held for environmental costs are short- 
term fixed income debt securities whose carrying amounts are not materially different than fair value. The short- 
term borrowings were approximately $1.1 million at the end of June 2007, We do not believe we have material 
market risk exposure related to these instruments. The indentures governing our two first mortgage bond series 
outstanding contain "make-whole" provisions (pre-payment penalties that charge for lost interest), which render 
refinancing impracticable. 

- For AsainstlWithheld Broker Non-votes Abstentions 

5,093,437 377,184 0 0 
5.094,95 1 375,670 0 0 

Item 4T. Controls and Procedures 

Disclosure Controls and Procedures 
Our management carried out an evaluation, under the supervision and with the participation of our Chief Executive 
Officer and Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in 
Rules 13a-l5(e) and 15d-l5(e) under the Exchange Act). Based upon that evaluation, the Chief Executive Officer 
and Chief Financial Officer as of June 30, 2007, concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were 
effective, in that they provide reasonable assurance that information required to be disclosed by us in the reports that 
we file or submit under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the tinie periods 
specified in the SEC's rules and fonns. 

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting 
No change in our internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Rules 13a-l5(f) and 15d-l5(f) under the 
Exchange Act) occurred during the fiscal quarter ended June 30, 2007 that has materially affected, or is reasonably 
likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting. 

PART 11. OTHER INFORMATION 

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders 

The Company held its annual meeting of stockholders on May 8, 2007. At that meeting, the stockholders were 
asked to consider and act on the following: 

Election of two 2 directors 
Ratification of the appointment of BDO Seidinan, LLP, as the Company's independent audit fmn 

The following people were elected as directors for terms expiring in 2010 and received the number of votes set forth 
opposite his respective name: 
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A painstiWitliheld Broker Non-votes Abstentions 
16,248 0 16,461 

index 

The following votes were cast to ratify appoinhnent of the Company’s independent audit finn, BDO Seidman, LLP: 

Item 6 .  

3.1 

3.2 

4.1 

4.2 

4.3 

31.1 

31.2 

32 

10.1 

Exhibits 

Amended Articles of Incorporation (incorporated herein by reference as Exhibit 3.1 to our quarterly 
report on Form 10-Q for the period ended June 30,2002). 

Amended By-Laws (incorporated herein by reference as Exhibit 3(ii) to our quarterly report on Foiin 1G- 
Q for the period ended June 30,2002). 

Indenture of Mortgage and Deed of Trust of FPU dated as of September 1, 1942 (incorporated by 
reference herein to Exhibit 7-A to Registration No. 2-6087). 

Fourteenth Suppleinental Indenture dated September I ,  2001 (incorporated by reference to exhibit 4.2 on 
our annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 3 1,200 1). 

Fifteenth Suppleinental Indenture dated November 1, 2001 (incorporated by reference to exhibit 4.3 on 
our annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 3 1,2001). 

Certification of Chief Executive Officer (CEO) per Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Osley Act of 2002. 

Certification of Chief Financial Officer (CFO) per Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. 

Certification of Principal Executive Officer and Principal Financial Officer per Section 906 of the 
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. 

Agreement for the purchase of land in south Florida, dated July 5, 2007. 
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SIGNATURES 

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be 
signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized. 

FLORIDA PUBLIC UTILITIES COMPANY 
(Registrant) 

Date: August 13,2007 By: / s i  George M. Bachman 
George M. Bachman 
Chief Financial Officer 
(Principal Accounting Officer) 
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FLORIDA PUBLIC UTILITJES COMPANY 
EXHIBIT INDEX 

Item Number 

j l . 1  .- Certification of Chief Executive Officer (CEO) per Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. 

- 31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer (CFO) per Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. 

- 33 certification of Principal Executive Officer and Principal Financial Officer per Section 906 of the 
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. 

10.1 Agreement for the purchase of land in south Florida, dated July 5, 2007. 
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As of June 30, 2006, the aggregate market value of the Registrant’s Common Stock held by non-affiliates (based upon 
the closing price of the Common Stock on that date on the American Stock Exchange) was approximately $71,300,000. 
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DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE 

Portions of the registrant’s Proxy Statement for the May 8, 200’7 Annual Meeting of Shareholders are incorporated by 
reference in Par t  I11 hereof. 

PART I 

Item 1. Business 

Genera l  
Florida Public Utilities Company (FPU) was incorporated on March 6, 1924 and reincorporated on April 29, 1925 under 
the 1925 Florida Corporation Law. We provide natural gas, electricity and propane gas to  residential, commercial and 
industrial customers in Florida. We do not produce energy and are not a generating utility. Our regulated segments sell 
natural gas and electricity to  approximately 82,000 customers, and our unregulated segment sells propane gas through 
a wholly owned subsidiary, Flo-Gas Corporation, to  approximately 13,000 customers. We also sell merchandise and 
other service related products on a limited basis as a complement to  the natural and propane gas segments. 

Our three primary business segments are aligned with our products and are natural gas, electric and propane gas. The 
Florida Public Service Commission (FPSC) regulates the natural gas and electric segments. We operate through five 
divisions based on geographic areas: 

(1) 
South Florida Division - provides natural and propane gas to  customers in West Palm Beach, Palm Beach 

Gardens, North Palm Beach, Jupiter, Riviera Beach, Palm Beach, Lake Worth, Royal Palm Beach, Wellington, Boynton 
Beach, Dehay Beach, Boca Raton, Lauderdale Lakes, Deerfield Beach, Stuart, Palm City and other areas near these 
cities. 
(2) 

Orange City, Lake Mary, Winter Springs, New Smyrna Beach, Edgewater, Longwood, Port Orange and other areas near 
these cities. 
(3) 

Alford and other areas near these cities. 
(4)  

Jacksonville, Callahan, Yulee and other areas near these cities. 
(5) 

Brooksville and other areas near these cities. 

Central Florida Division - provides natural and propane gas to  customers in Sanford, Deland, Deltona, DeBary, 

Northwest Florida Division - provides electricity to  customers in Marianna, Bristol, Altha, Cottondale, Malone, 

Northeast Florida Division - provides electricity and propane gas to  customers in Fernandina Beach, 

West Florida Division - provides propane gas to  customers in Dunnellon, Inglis, Crystal River, Inverness, 

Business Env i ronmen t  
Natural and propane gas are some of the most popular forms of energy today. Gas is used for heating, cooling, cooking, 
backup generation and decorative lighting by businesses and homeowners and in many other ways by various 
industries. Natural gas is also used in combination with other fuels to  improve environmental performance and 
decrease pollution in the generation of electricity. 

Natural and propane gas have seen increased demand in Florida as a result of the recent hurricanes and the popularity 
of generators. Generators themselves do not impact usage significantly for a region; however, gas appliances have been 
added as  a result of generator popularity, and that does increase gas usage. Prices of natural and propane gas have 
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decreased during 2006 due in part  to  the absence of a hurricane affecting the Gulf of Mexico. 

As a result of historically high natural gas costs in 2005, alternatives such as coal and nuclear power for generation of 
electricity have seen increased interest. Our sales in the electric segment have not been impacted by higher electricity 
costs due to our long-term favorable fixed price contracts for purchasing electricity. However, our long-term coiltract 
ended a t  the end of 2006 for our Northeast division and our long-term contract will end a t  the end of 2007 for our 
Northwest division. We now have new contracts in place with pricing much closer to current market price. Our electric 
prices are expected to  significantly increase. Although this will not directly impact our income &om operations because 
increased fuel costs are passed through to the customer, this may impact the number of units sold and decrease income 
from operations as a result of less usage. 

, 

Because of the hurricanes in 2004 and 2005, the electric industry in Florida has seen increased interest in improving 
reliabihty of electric services during and after hurricanes. Regulators have been researching the issue and have 
introduced new storm preparedness requirements to  improve electric reliability with storm preparedness rules 
regarding pole inspections, strengthened design specifications for wind loading, vegetation management practices and 
installation of underground facilities for electric distribution and transmission systems. We are seeking rate relief and 
implementation for these new requirements in 2007. 

Business Segments  
We are organized in three operating and reporting segments: natural gas, electric and propane gas. We are also involved 
in limited merchandise sales and other services within our natural gas and propane gas areas t o  complement these 
segments. For information concerning revenues, operating income and identifiable assets of each of our segments, see 
Note 13 in Notes to  Consolidated Financial Statements. 

Natural  Gas 
Natural gas is primarily composed of methane, which is a colorless, odorless fuel tha t  burns cleaner than many other 
traditional fossil fuels. Odorant is added to  enable easy detection of a gas leak. 

We provide natural gas to  customers in o w  South and Central Florida divisions. The vast majority of the natural gas we 
distribute is purchased in the Gulf Coast region, both onshore and offshore. 

We use Florida Gas Transmission (FGT) as our natural gas pipeline in peninsular Florida. FGT is under the jurisdiction 
of the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC). We use gas marketers and producers to procure all gas supphes 
for our markets. We use Florida City Gas and Indiantown Gas Company t o  provide wholesale gas transportation 
services in areas distant from our interconnections with FGT. We pass all fuel costs on to our customers. We also 
transport natural gas for customers who purchase their own gas supplies and arrange for p i p e h e  transportation. Our 
operating results are not adversely affected if our customers purchase gas from third parties because we do not profit on 
the fuel portion of sales. 

Our natural gas revenues are affected by the rates charged to  customers, supply costs for natural gas purchased for 
resale, economic conditions in our service areas and weather. Although the FPSC permits us to pass through to 
customers the increase in price for our gas supply, higher rates may cause customers t o  purchase less natural gas. 

Our current portfolio of natural gas customers is reasonably diverse, with the largest customer using natural gas for the 
generation of electricity. We are not dependent on any single natural gas customer for over ten percent of our total 
natural gas revenues. 

The FPSC approved joint transportation and territorial agreements with Indiantown Gas Company in  October 2006. We 
plan to transport natural gas through Indiantown's system to new developments. In  the early phase, Indiantown Gas 
Company will provide operational and customer service related work. We also began construction in the Indiantown 
area to  install natural gas mains in the first phase of a development for approximately 100 homes. Two more new 
developments are slated to break ground in 2007 for construction of approximately 1,000 homes. 

Elec t r ic  
We provide electricity to our customers in our Northwest and Northeast Florida divisions. Wholesale electricity is 
purchased from two suppliers; Gulf Power Company and JEA (formerly Jacksonville Electric Authority). In 1996, we 
executed ten-year fixed-price purchased power contracts with both suppliers. Gulf Power Company provides electric 
power to the Northwest division and JEA provides electric power to the Northeast division. These long-term contracts 
provided our customers with the lowest consumer electric rates in Florida. 

During 2006 we completed negotiations and executed final contracts for the supply of electricity in our Northeast 
division from JEA begmning January 1, 2007 and our Northwest division from Gulf Power Company beginning in 
January 1, 2008. We are seeking approval of the contract with Gulf Power Company from the FPSC in 2007. We expect 
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that rates charged to our customers will significantly increase when the new contracts become effective in 2007 and 
2008 because the prices are closer to  market price. We are unable to estimate what impact higher rates could have on 
electric consumption, but electricity usage could decrease. 

The Northwest and Northeast divisions experience a variety of weather patterns. Hot summers and cold winters 
produce year-round electric sales that  normally do not have highly seasonal fluctuations. None of the electric segment’s 
customers represent more than ten percent of our total electric revenues. 

The electric utility industry has not been deregulated in the state of Florida. All customers within a given service or 
franchise area purchase from a single electricity provider in that area. 

P r o p a n e  Gas  
We provide propane gas to customers in  our Northeast, West, Central and South Florida divisions and can purchase our 
propane gas supply fiom several different wholesale companies. Propane gas is delivered t o  Florida by barges and 
railcars to  terminals in Tampa and Ft. Lauderdale, and through the Dixie Pipeline terminus at  Alma and Albany, 
Georgia. Propane gas is also delivered by transport to our facilities and directly to  a customer’s premise. We believe that 
the propane gas supply infrastructure is adequate to  meet the needs of the industry in Florida for the foreseeable future. 

Propane gas is not as affected by environmental regulations as other petroleum products. However, propane gas is a 
hazardous material and as such is subject to  strict code enforcement and safety requirements. 

As with natural gas, the sales volume of propane gas is affected by the season and the weather. Typically, Florida has a 
tourist season that coincides with the winter months. The propane gas segment’s sales volumes and revenues are closely 
balanced between residential and commercial customers. We employ two strategies to become less weather dependent, 
concentrating on the forklift propane gas cylinder exchange market and marketing propane gas appliances not used for 
heating air. We believe that water heaters and forklift cylinder exchange accounts are good ways to  become less 
weather reliant. None of the propane gas segment’s customers represent more than  ten percent of our total propane gas 
sales volume or revenues. 

S t r a t egy  
Our strategy is to  leverage our expertise in the natural gas, electric and propane gas distribution business to  assist us in 
consistently meeting our customer’s expectations. Our core focus is to  build mutually beneficial relationships with 
builders, developers and customers with high-energy usage requirements. Included in our strategy is a plan t o  enhance 
our future success by expanding our service territory into new areas with high growth potential. 

Competit ion 
We do not face substantial competition in our electric divisions. This is because no other competitor can currently 
provide the same energy in our areas due to  FPSC regulations and territorial agreements between utilities. In addition, 
natural gas as an alternative fuel is only available in a small area served by our electric divisions. Although our natural 
gas segment operates with the same types of guidelines, there is competition in our natural gas segment from electric 
utilities. Normally each home will have electricity as a base fuel and natural gas as an alternative source of energy used 
for cooking and heating. Electricity competes with natural gas, in large part based on the cost of fuel. Our propane gas 
segment is unregulated and faces competition from other suppliers of propane gas as well as alternative energy source 
suppliers. Competition in the propane gas segment is primarily based on price and service. 

Ra te s  a n d  Regulation 
The natural gas and electric segments are highly regulated by the FPSC. The FPSC has the authority to regulate our 
rates, conditions of service, issuance of securities and certain other matters affecting our natural gas and electric 
operations. As a result, FPSC regulation has a significant effect on our results of operations. The FPSC approves rates 
that  are intended to permit a specified rate of return on investment. Our rate tariffs allow the cost of natural gas and 
electricity to  be passed through to  customers. Increases in the operating expenses of the regulated segments may 
require us to request increases in the rates charged to  our customers. The FPSC has granted us the flexibility of 
automatically passing on increased expenses for certain fuel costs to  customers. Other operational expenses, such as 
pension and medical expenses require us to petition the FPSC for rate increases. The FPSC is likely to grant rate 
increases to  offset increased expenditures necessary for business operations. We successfully petitioned for an electric 
rate increase, which became effective on March 17, 2004, and for a natural gas rate increase that went into effect on 
November 18, 2004. We are currently seeking electric rate relief in 2007 for the recent storm preparedness 
requirements implemented t o  improve reliability of electric utility systems. 

We are subject to federal and state regulation with respect to  soil, groundwater, employee health and safety matters and 
to environmental regulations issued by the Florida Department of Environmental Protection (FDEP), the United States 
Environmental Protection Agency @PA) and other federal and state agencies. 
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Prior to  the widespread availabhty of natural gas, we manufactured gas for sale to  our customers or purchased utility 
assets from other companies that manufactured gas. The process for manufacturing gas produced by-products and 
residuals such as coal tar. The remnants of these residuals are sometimes found a t  former gas manufacturing sites. 
These sites face environmental regulation &om various agencies including the FDEP and EPA on necessary cleanup and 
restoration. 

F ranch i ses  
We hold franchises in each of the incorporated municipalities that  require franchise agreements in order to provide 
natural gas and electricity. Generally, these kanchises have terms ranging from 10 to 30 years and terminate on 
varying dates. We are currently in negotiations with certain municipalities for new service areas within our current 
operating divisions, and renewals of existing franchses. We continue to provide services to these municipalities and do 
not anticipate any injerruption in  our service. 

Employees 
As of January 18, 2007, we had 362 employees, of which 9 were part-time and 2 were temporary. Of these employees, 
175 were covered under union contracts with two labor unions, the Internal Brotherhood of Electric Workers and the 
International Chemical Workers Union. We believe that our labor relations with employees are good. 

Available Information 
We file periodic reports includmg our Form lO-Qs, Form lO-Ks, and Form 8-Ks with the Securities and Exchange 
Commission (SEC). The most recent copies of Form 10-Qs and Form 10-Ks as well as a copy of our Code of Ethics Policy 
can be obtained through our website (http://www.fpuc.com). 

I t e m  1A. Risk Fac to r s  

A subs tan t ia l  portion of our revenues and, to  a l a rge  ex ten t ,  our profitability, depends upon rates 
de te rmined  by t h e  FPSC. 

FPSC regulates many aspects of our natural gas and electric operating segments, including the retail rates that  we may 
charge customers for natural gas and electric service. Our retail rates are set by the FPSC using a cost-of-service 
approach that takes into account our historical operating expenses, our fixed obligations and recovery of our capital 
investments, including potentially stranded obligations. Using this approach, the FPSC sets rates a t  a level calculated 
t o  recover such costs, adjusted to  reflect known and measurable changes, and a permitted return on investment. Any 
rate adjustments to recover increased costs or to otherwise improve our profitability must be obtained through a petition 
fled with the-FPSC, which is referred to  as a rate case. The rates permitted by the FPSC in rate cases will determine a 
substantial portion of our’revenues for succeeding periods and may have a material impact on our consolidated 
earnings, cash flows and h a n c i a l  position, as well as our abiLity t o  maintain our common stock dividend a t  current 
levels or to increase our dividend in the future. 

Some of o u r  n a t u r a l  gas a n d  electric service costs may not b e  fully recovered t h r o u g h  retail rates. 

Our natural gas and electric service retail rates, once established by the FPSC, remain fixed until’changed in a 
subsequent rate case. We may at any time elect to file a rate case to request a change in our rates or intervening parties 
may request that the FPSC review our rates for possible adjustment, subject to any limitations that may have been 
ordered by the FPSC. Earnings could be reduced to the extent that our operating costs increase more than our revenues 
during the period between rate cases, which may occur because of maintenance and repair of plants, fuel and purchased 
power expenses, employee or labor costs, inflation or other factors. In addition, even if we decide to file rate cases, our 
requests for rate adjustments in such rate cases may be rejected. Other parties to  a rate case or the FPSC staff may 
contend that our current rates, or rates proposed in a rate case, are excessive and our petition for rate adjustments may 
be denied on that or another basis. 

O u r  segments  a r e  sensit ive to var ia t ions  in wea the r .  

Our segments are affected by variations in general weather conditions and unusually severe weather. We forecast 
energy sales on the basis of normal weather, which represents a long-term historical average. Significant variations 
fisom normal weather could have a material impact on energy sales. Unusual weather, such as hurricanes, could also 
adversely affect operating costs and sales. 

Our natural gas and propane gas customers use gas primarily for heating purposes. As a result, our natural gas and 
propane gas sales peak in the winter and are more weather sensitive than electricity sales, which peak in both summer 
and winter periods. Mild winter weather in Florida can be expected to negatively impact results from our natural gas 
and propane gas operations. Severe weather conditrons could also interrupt or slow down service and increase the 
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operating costs of all our segments. 

We ope ra t e  i n  a n  increasingly compet i t ive  indus t ry ,  wh ich  m a y  affect  our f u t u r e  earn ings .  

Natu.ra1 Gas 
The natural gas distribution industry has been subject to competitive forces for several years. We receive our supply of 
natural gas a t  thirteen city gate stations connected to  an interstate pipeline system owned by FGT and one gate station 
connected t o  an intrastate pipeline owned by Florida City Gas Company. Gulfstream Natural Gas System currently 
also serves peninsular Florida with interstate natural gas transmission service; however we cannot predict if this 
system will be extended t o  areas near our existing facihties and how it could affect our natural gas operations. 

Electric 
The US.  electric power industry has been undergoing restructuring. There is competition in wholesale power sales on a 
national level. Some states have mandated or encouraged competition a t  the retail level. While there is active wholesale 
competition in Florida, the retail electric business has remained substantially free from direct competition. Changes in 
the competitive environment occasioned by legislation, regulation, market conditions or initiatives of other electric 
power providers, particularly with respect to retail competition, could adversely affect our financial condition and 
results of operations. To the extent competitive pressures increase and the pricing and sale of electricity assumes more 
of the characteristics of a commodity business, the economics of our electric operating segment may come under 
increasing pressure. In addition, regulatory changes may increase access t o  electricity transmission grids by utility and 
non-utility purchasers and sellers of electricity, thus potentially resulting in a significant number of additional 
competitors. 

Propane Gas 
Our propane gas business is our only non-regulated business segment. Because the propane gas business is not 
regulated, we face significant competition in this segment. Our propane gas business competes drectly with other 
distributors of propane gas, and other sources of energy including natural gas and electric. We may encounter increased 
competition in the propane gas business in the future. Our inability to compete effectively in the propane gas business, 
whether on the basis of price, customer service, alternative energy sources or otherwise, could have a material adverse 
effect on our financial condition and results of operations. 

Our bus iness  could be adverse ly  affected if o u r  supply  of n a t u r a l  gas  i s  in te r rupted .  

FGT’s pipeline system transports all of our natural gas. FGT is owned by Citrus Corporation, which is jointly owned by 
Cross Country Energy Corporation and El Paso Corporation. Our ability to receive our normal supply of natural gas 
could be adversely affected by an interruption in FGT’s service. 

Genera l  economic condi t ions  m a y  adversely affect o u r  segments .  

Our segments are affected by general economic conditions. The consumption of the energy we supply is directly tied to 
the economy. A downturn in the economy in our local areas of operations, as well as on the state, national and 
Gternational levels, could adversely affect the performance of our segments. Changes in political climate, including 
terrorist activities, could further negatively impact our performance. If tourism is down, then the demand for the energy 
we supply is reduced. 

Commodity price changes  may  affect  t h e  opera t ing  costs a n d  compet i t ive  posit ion of o u r  segments. 

Our segments are sensitive to changes in coal, gas, oil and other commodity prices. If we are unable to increase the rates 
we charge to  customers to reflect increases in these commodity prices, our margins and earnings will be lowered. If 
increased prices for any of these commodities persist for substantial periods, o u r  competitive position could be adversely 
affected by customers who switch to cheaper energy sources. Further, natural gas prices have been increasingly volatile 
and, accordingly, the earnings from our natural gas operations are increasingly difficult to  predict. 

We could incur ma te r i a l  expenses  as a resu l t  of o u r  obligations t o  comply wi th  existing a n d  new 
envi ronmenta l  l aws  and regulations.  

We are subject to  environmental regulations in connection with the ongoing conduct of our business and to civil and 
criminal liability for failure to  comply with these regulations. In addition, new environmental laws and regulations, or 
new interpretations of existing laws and regulations, affecting our operations or facilities may be adopted which may 
cause us to  incur additional material expenses. 

We are subject to  federal and state legislation with respect to soil, groundwater, employee health and safety matters and 
to environmental regulations issued by the Florida Department of Environmental Protection (FDEP), the EPA and other 
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federal and state agencies. We may incur material future expenditures in order t o  comply with these existing 
environmental laws and regulations. 

We rely on a limited number of natural gas and electric suppliers,  the loss of wh ich  could materially 
adversely affect o u r  f inanc ia l  condition and results of operations. 

Two pipeline suppliers under several contracts having expiration dates from 2007 to 2023 transport our natural gas to 
US. These contracts have provisions, which allow us t o  extend the terms ranging from 2020 to 2032. Our electric 
services are provided by two suppliers under contracts, which expire in 2007 and 2017. We have renegotiated a new 
contract for the one that is set to  expire in 2007 with the same supplier for electric service beginning in 2008 which we 
are currently awaiting approval for from the FPSC. If we were to  lose any of these contracts, we might not be able to 
replace the corresponding energy source on acceptable terms, if at all. In addition, in the event of the expiration of the 
contracts, we might not be able t o  renew them on favorable terms, if at all. As a result, the loss of any of these 
suppliers, the terminations of any of these supply contracts or  the non-renewal of any of these supply contracts before or 
upon their expiration could have material adverse effects on our financial condition and results of operations. 

New supply cont rac ts  could resu l t  in subs tan t ia l  increases  to our prices, a n d  could materially adversely 
affect our financial  condition a n d  resu l t s  of operations.  

Two pipeline suppliers under firm contracts having expiration dates from 2007 to  2023 transport our natural gas to  us. 
All of these contracts have provisions which allow us to extend the terms ranging from 2020 to 2032. Our electric 
services are provided by two suppliers under contracts, which expire in 2007 and 2017. 

The recent renewal of the electricity supply contract that was terminated in 2006 and the one that will expire in 2007 
will result in the cost of electricity more than doubling over existing prices. Extensions or renewals of our natural gas 
contracts could result in the cost of natural gas increasing. Although these increases are currently passed through to  
our customers, these could have a signiticant impact on our financial condition and results of operations due to 
decreased consumption or if costs cannot be passed through in the future. 

F luc tua t ion  i n  prices u n d e r  long-term purchase  a n d  transportation commitments  may have an adverse 
effect on our financial  condition a n d  resu l t s  of operations.  

To ensure a reliable supply of electricity and natural gas a t  competitive prices, we have entered into purchase and 
transportation contracts with various suppliers and producers, which expire at various dates through 2023. Purchase 
prices under these contracts are determined by formulas either based on market prices or at fixed prices. 

As of December 31, 2006, we have i5rm purchase and transportation commitments adequate to supply our expected sales 
requirements for electricity with contracts that will expire in 2017. Our contract in  the Northeast division of the electric 
segment began January 1, 2007 and expires on December 31, 2017. We have a contract with a supplier for the 
Northwest division-beginning January 1, 200s and expiring December 31, 2017. We are currently seeking approval with 
the FPSC for the Northwest division contract. If the FPSC does not approve this contract, we may need to seek an  
alternative supplier or new contract with this same supplier for the purchase of electricity in the Northwest division. 

Our natural gas pipeline transportation contracts expire in parts in 2010, 2015 and 2023. We are committed to pay 
demand or similar fixed charges monthly through 2023 related t o  the natural gas pipeline transportation 
agreements. Significant fluctuation in prices under these long-term purchase and transportation commitments may 
have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations. 

Problems with opera t ions  could mater ia l ly  adversely impact us. 

We are subject to various operational risks, including accidents, outages, equipment breakdowns or  failures, or 
operations below expected levels of performance or efficiency. Problems such as the breakdown or failure of transmission 
lines, pipelines or other equipment or  processes and interruptions in service which would result in performance below 
affected levels of output or efficiency, particularly if extending for prolonged periods of time, would have a material 
adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations. 

We are vulnerable to interest rate changes and m a y  not h a v e  access to  capi ta l  at favorable rates, if at all. 

Changes in interest rates can affect our cost of borrowing on our line of credit, on refinancing of debt maturities and on 
incremental borrowing to  fund new investments. Because our  stock is not widely held and has a low trading volume, we 
may not be able to  access the equity market or may be limited in the amount of equity financing. If we are unable to  
obtain equity or debt Gnancing on terms satisfactory t o  us, our ability to  fund capital expenditures and other 
commitments will be impaired. Moreover, even if available, the cost of such financing could reduce our margins and 
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materially adversely affect our results of operations. 

Fai lure  t o  effectively a n d  efficiently manage  o u r  g rowth ,  a s  well a s  changes  i n  o u r  business strategies,  
could have  a negative impact  on  o u r  per formance .  

An essential part of our business strategy is to  grow o u r  businesses. Much of o u r  growth depends on our ability to  find 
attractive development opportunities and to obtain the necessary financing for them. Our outlook is based on our 
expectation that we will be successful in finding and capitalizing on development opportunities, but our efforts may not 
be successful. Our failure to  effectively and efficiently manage our growth, as well as changes in our business strategies, 
may have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations. If we grow our business with 
acquisitions there is a risk the acquisition will not have a positive effect on our financial condition. 

O u r  abil i ty t o  pay  dividends on  o u r  common s tock  i s  l imited.  

We cannot guarantee that we will continue t o  pay dividends at  our current annual dividend rate or at  all. In particular, 
our ability to  pay dividends in the future will depend upon, among other things, our future earnings, our cash 
requirements and our debt covenants.. 

Provisions in  ou r  certif icate of re incorpora t ion ,  c e r t a i n  agreements ,  a n d  t h e  F lo r ida  Business Corpora t ion  
Act m a y  inhibi t  a takeover,  which  could  adversely affect  t h e  va lue  of our common stock. 

Our certificate of reincorporation as well as provisions of the Florida Business Corporation Act (FBCA), contain 
provisions that could delay or prevent a change of control in  our management that shareholders might consider 
favorable and may prevent them fi-om receiving a takeover premium for their shares. 

Our certificate of reincorporation contains provisions that make it more difficult to  obtain control of our company 
through transactions, which have not received the approval of our board of directors. These provisions include 
supermajority voting requirements for certain transactions with affiliated persons, staggering the terms of the members 
of our board of directors, and certain procedural requirements relating to  shareholder meetings and amendments to  our 
certificate of reincorporation or bylaws. 

In adhtion, Florida has enacted legislation that may deter or frustrate takeovers of Florida corporations. Subject to  
certain exceptions, the "Control Share Acquisitions" section of the FBCA generally provides that shares acquired in 
excess of certain specified thresholds, beginning at  20% of a corporation's outstanding voting shares, will not possess 
any voting rights unless such voting rights are approved by a majority vote of the corporation's disinterested 
shareholders. 

The "Affiliated Transactions" section of the FBCA generally requires majority approval by disinterested directors or 
'supermajority approval by disinterested shareholders of certain specified transactions (such as mergers, consolidations, 
sales of assets, issuance or transfer of shares or reclassifications of securities) between a corporation and a holder of 
more than 10% of the outstanding shares of the corporation, or any affiliate of such shareholder. 

Finally, we have agreements with three of our executive officers that  provide for significant payments t o  those 
executives upon a change in control under certain circumstances. The existence of these contracts may make an 
acquisition of our company less attractive to a possible buyer. 

Conflict o r  tu rmoi l  i n  oil p roduc ing  countr ies  could impact  f u t u r e  pr ices  for commodities inc luding  
n a t u r a l  gas, p ropane  gas a n d  electricity,  a n d  increases  in  these pr ices  could mater ia l ly  affect o u r  financial  
condi t ion  a n d  resul ts  of operat ions.  

Worldwide turmoil could cause the cost of crude oil and its associated products to rise on concerns of the conflicts 
interfering with the production of crude oil. If these conflicts are large, escalate or spread, the impact to  the cost of all 
fuel related commodities could increase substantially. These increases could materially adversely affect our financial 
condition and results of operations. 

I t e m  1B. Unresolved Staff Comments  

None 

Item 2. Propert ies  

We have natural gas, electric and propane gas utility related properties. These properties include transmission, 
distribution, storage and general facilities a t  various locations in our service areas. We do not have generating facilities. 
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We maintain property that is adequate for our current operations and we expand o u r  existing facihties as required by 
growth or other operational needs. 

We own natural gas mains that distribute gas through 1,55S miles of pipe located in Central and South Florida. 
Additionally, we have adequate gate stations in each bstribution system. 

In the electric segment, we own 22 miles of electric transmission lines located in Northeast Florida and 1,082 miles of 
electric distribution lines located in Northeast and Northwest Florida. The distribution lines are installed both under 
and above ground with many of the coastal locations having under ground facilities. All transmission lines are installed 
above ground. Additionally, we own various substations and regulator stations that are used in our operations. 

Our propane gas segment has bulk storage facilities and tank installations on the customers' premises. We also have 16 
community gas systems that distribute propane gas to customers in a specific area. These systems are subject to  the 
Federal Department of Transportation Office of Pipeline Safety Regulations. 

We own office and warehouse facilities in Northwest, Northeast, Central, West and South Florida, which are used for 
our operations and materials storage by the natural gas, electric, and propane gas segments. We also have various 
easements and other assets located throughout our service areas that are utilized by all of our operations. 

We also own a three-story building in West Palm Beach, where our corporate headquarters is located. 

All of our property is subject to a lien collateralizing our  funded indebtedness under our  Mortgage Indenture as 
bscussed in Note 1-1 in Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. 

Item 3. Legal  Proceedings 

In our operations, we currently use or have used several contamination sites that  have pending or  threatened 
environmental litigation. We are in the process of investigating and assessing this htigation. We intend to vigorously 
defend our rights in this litigation. We have insurance and rate relief to  cover losses or expenses incurred as  a result of 
this htigation. We believe all future contamination assessment and remedial costs, legal fees and other related expenses 
would not exceed the combined sum of any insurance proceeds received and any rate relief granted. 

West Palm Beuch Site 
We are currently evaluating remedial options to respond t o  environmental impacts t o  soil and groundwater a t  and in the 
immediate vicinity of a parcel of property we own in West Palm Beach, Florida. We previously operated a gasification 
plant at this site. We entered into a Consent Order with the FDEP effective April 8, 1991. This requires us to  delineate 
the extent of soil and groundwater impacts associated with the prior operation of the gasification plant and to remediate 
such soil and groundwater impacts, ifnecessary. We have submitted numerous reports to FDEP describing the results of 
soil and groundwater sampling conducted a t  the site. We completed the delineation of soil and groundwater impacts a t  
the site in October 2006. An engineering consultant performed a feasibility study to evaluate appropriate remedies for 
the site. The feasibility study was transmitted to FDEP on November 30, 2006. 

The feasibility study evaluated a wide range of remedial alternatives based on criteria provided by applicable laws and 
regulations. The total costs for the remedies evaluated in the feasibility study ranged from a low of $2.8 million to a high 
of $54.6 million. Based on the likely acceptability of proven remedial technologies described in the feasibility study and 
implemented a t  similar sites, consultingiremediation costs to address the impacts now characterized a t  the West Palm 
Beach site are projected to  range from $4.6 million to $17.9 million. This range of costs covers such remedies as in situ 
solidification for deeper soil impacts, excavation of superficial soil impacts, installation of a barrier wall with a 
permeable biotreatment zone (PBZ), monitored natural attenuation of dissolved impacts in groundwater (MNA) or some 
combination of these remedies. The feasibility study proposed a remedy of superficial soil excavation, and installation of 
a hanging barrier wall with PBZ and MNA, the cost of which is projected to range fiom $4.6 million to  $9.9 million. 

Prior to  FDEP's approval of a final remedy for the site, we are unable to determine, t o  a reasonable degree of certainty, 
the complete extent or cost of remedial action tha t  may be required. As of December 31, 2006, and subject to the 
limitations described above, remediation costs (including attorneys' fees and costs) for this site are projected to  range 
from approximately $4.8 million to $18 million. 

Sun fo rd Sit e 
We own a parcel of property located in Sanford, Florida, upon which a gasification plant was operated prior to our 
acquisition of the property. Following discovery of soil and groundwater impacts on the property, we have participated 
with four former owners and operators of the gaslfication plant in  the funding of numerous investigations of the extent 
of the impacts and the identification of an appropriate remedy. On or about March 25, 1998, we executed an 
Administrative Order on Consent (AOC) with the four former owners and operators (Group) and the United States 
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Environmental Protection Agency @PA) that obligated the Group to implement a Remedial InvestigationFeasibility 
Study (RIPS) and to pay EPAs past and future oversight costs. The Group also entered into a Participation Agreement 
and an Escrow Agreement on or about April 13, 1998 (WFS Participation Agreement). Work under the RIPS  AOC and 
RIPS Participation Agreement is now complete and we have no further obligations under either document. 

In late September 2006, EPA sent us a Special Notice Letter, notifying us of EPA's selection of a final remedy for OU1 
(soils), OU2 (groundwater), and OU3 (sediments), and giving the other Group members and us sixty (GO) days within 
which to submit a "good faith offer" to EPA t o  provide for implementation of the selected remehes. The Special Notice 
Letter included an Amended Record of Decision (ROD) for OU1 (the ROD for OU1 was amended to account for a 
significant increase in the volume of off-site soil impacts and a change in the selected remedy), the original ROD for 
OU2, and a ROD for OU3. The total estimated remediation costs for the Sanford Gasification Plant Site are now 
projected to be $12.5 million. On November 30, 2006, we, along with the Group, submitted to EPA a good faith offer to  
implement the approved remedies a s  set forth in the RODs for OUl  through OU3. 

In January, we, along with the other members of the Group signed a Third Participation Agreement, which provides for 
funding the remediation work specified in the RODs for OU1 through OU3 and supercedes and replaces the Second 
Participation Agreement. Our share of remediation costs under the Third Participation Agreement is set a t  5% of a 
maximum of $13 million or $650,000. At present, it is not anticipated that the total cost of remediation will exceed $13 
milhon. If it does, the Group members have agreed to negotiate in good faith to allocate the excess costs a t  such time 
that it reasonably appears that  the total remediation costs will exceed $13 million. In any such event, we do not expect 
our share of such additional costs to be greater than 5% and our share of such additional costs may be less than 5%. 

Our future legal costs and expenses and our share future remehation expenses for this site are currently projected to be 
approximately $710,000. 

Pensacola Site 
We are the prior owner/operator of the former Pensacola gasification plant, located in Pensacola, Florida. Following 
notification on October 5, 1990 that FDEP had determined that we were one of several responsible parties for any 
environmental impacts associated with the former gasification plant site, we entered into cost sharing agreements with 
three other responsible parties providing for the funding of certain contamination assessment activities a t  the site. 

Following field investigations performed on behalf of the responsible parties, on July 16, 1997, FDEP approved a final 
remedy for the site that  provides for annual sampling of selected monitoring wells. Such annual sampling has been 
undertaken at  the site since 1998. Our share of these costs is less than $2,000 annually or a total cost of $27,000. 

In March 1999, EPA requested site access in order to undertake an Expanded Site Inspection (ESI). The ESI was 
completed by EPAs contractor in 1999 and an ESI Report was transmitted t o  us in January 2000. The ESI Report 
recommends additional work a t  the site. The responsible parties met with FDEP on February 7 ,  2000 to discuss EPAs 
plans for the site. In February 2000, EPA indicated preliminarily that it will defer management of the site to FDEP; 
however, as of December 31, 2006, we have not received any written confirmation from EPA or FDEP regarding this 
matter. Prior to receipt of EPA's written determination regarding site management, we are unable to  determine 
whether additional fieldwork or site remediation will be required by EPA and, if so, the scope or costs of such work. 

Key West Site 
From 1927-1938, we owned and 0perated.a gasification plant in Key West, Florida. The plant discontinued operations in 
the late 1940s; the property on which the plant was located is currently used for a propane gas distribution business. In 
March 1993, a Preliminary Contamination Assessment Report (PCAR) was prepared by a consultant jointly retained by 
the current site owner and us and was delivered to FDEP. The PCAR reported that very limited soil and groundwater 
impacts were present a t  the site. By letter dated December 20, 1993, FDEP notified us  that the site did not warrant 
further "CERCLA consideration and a Site Evaluation Accomplished disposition is recommended." FDEP then referred 
the matter to  its Marathon office for consideration of whether additional work would be required by FDEP's district 
office under Florida law. As of December 31, 2006, we have received no further communication &om FDEP with respect 
to  the site. At this time, we are unable to determine whether additional fieldwork will be required by FDEP and, if SO, 

the scope or costs of such work. In 1999, we received an estimate from our consultant that  additional costs to assess and 
remediate the reported impacts would be approximately $166,000. Assuming the current owner shared in such costs 
according t o  the allocation agreed upon by the parties for the PCAR, our share would be approximately $83,000. 

I t em 4. Submission of Mat t e r s  to a Vote of Secur i ty  Holders  

None 

Execut ive Officers of t h e  Reg i s t r an t  



' , I  1 ,  Converted by EDCiAJLwiz < t Page 11 of29 

The following sets forth certain information about the executive officers of the Company as of February 17 ,  2007. 

Name &e 
John T. English 63 

Charles L. Stein 57 

George M. Bachman 47 

Position 
Chairman of the Board 
Chief Executive Officer 
President 
Chief Operating Officer 
Chief Operating Officer 
Senior Vice President 
Corporate Secretary 
Chief Financial Officer 
Treasurer 

Date 
2006 - Present 
1998 - Present 
1997 - Present 

2001 - Present 
1997 - Present 
2004 - Present 
2001 - Present 
2001 - Present 

1997 - 2000 

Mr. English was Senior Vice President from 1993 preceding his appointment as President and Chief Operating Officer. 

Mr. Stein was Vice President from 1993 preceding his appointment as Senior Vice President. 

Mr. Bachman was Controller from 1996 preceding his appointment as Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer. 

Each of these executive officers has an employment agreement for a three-year term, which can be renewed a t  the Board 
Meeting preceding the expiration of the agreement subject t o  his earlier resignation or removal. There are no family 
relationships among any of the executive officers and directors of the Company. 

. 

PART I1 

Item 5. Marke t  for  Registrant 's  Common Equity,  Re la t ed  Stockholder  Matters  a n d  I s sue r  Purchases of 
Equi ty  Securities 

Quarter ly  Stock Prices and Dividends P a i d  

Our common shares are traded on the American Stock Exchange under the symbol FPU. The quarterly dividends 
declared and the reported last sale price range per share of our common stock for the most recent two years were as 
follows: 

2006 2005 
Dividends Stock Prices Dividends Stock Prices * 

Quarter ended Low High Declared Low High Declared* 
March 31 $13.25 $14.50 $0.1033 $11.47 $13.49 $0.1000 
June 30 11.86 14.40 0.1075 11.45 12.67 0.1033 
September 30 12.61 14.42 0.1075 12.67 16.84 0.1033 
December 31 13.10 14.05 0.1075 13.46 16.44 0.1033 

* On July 2 5  2005 we issued a three for two stock split in t he  form of a qtock hv idend  to  our  shareholders of record on July 15, 2005 All conlimn share  inforniation has 
been restated to reflect the stock sph t  

As of February 16, 2007, there were approximately 3,900 holders of record of our  common shares. 

We intend to  continue to  pay quarterly cash dividends for the foreseeable future. Our hvidend policy is reviewed on an 
ongoing basis by our Board of Directors and is dependent upon future earnings, cash flow, financial condition, capital 
requirements and other factors. Our Fifteenth Supplemental Indenture of Mortgage and Deed of Trust restricts the 
amount that is available for cash dividends. At December 31, 2006, approximately $9 million of retained earnings were 
free of such restriction and therefore available for the payment of dividends. 

Secur i t ies  Authorized €or Issuance u n d e r  Equ i ty  Compensat ion P l a n s  

Equ i ty  Compensat ion Plan In fo rma t ion  
Plan Category Number of Securities remarumg 

avallable for future issuance under 
eqwty compensahon plans 

Eqwty compensation plans approved by security holders 72,749" 
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Equity compensation plans not approved by security holders 
Total 72,749 
* This includes 20,il.I shares  for the Non-Employee Director Compensation Plan. This plan was  adopted by the Board of 
Directors on March 18, 4005 and was  approved a t  t he  2005 meeting of shareholders This also inclncles 52,035 shares  for 
the Employee Stock Purchase Plan. 

PERFORMANCE GRAPH 

The following graph compares the yearly percentage change and the cumulative total of shareholder return on the 
Company's common stock with the cumulative return on the Russell 2000 Index (Russell 2000) and Standard & Poor's 
Utilities Index (S&P Utilities) for the last five calendar years. These comparisons assume the investment of $100 in the 
Company's common stock and each of the indices on January 1, 2001 and the reinvestment of dividends. The stock price 
performance shown in the graph below should not be considered indicative of future stock performance. 

COFJPARISON OF 5 YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURNA 
Aming  Florida Public Utilities Cnnpany, The Russell 2000 lnder 

And The 6 & P  Utlties Index 

1210'1 12302 12 113 12'04 12 (Is 12'06 

* $100 inusted onl2f31101 in dock or indexdnddlng reinveztmsnt uf diudends Fiscal yssr ending December 31 

Co:~yngM@2007,Standurd &Poor's, adivisioriofTheMd?ravcHtIl Canponies, Inc 841 rigMs reserved 
wwrss?eard?dutrqroup cum {SBP nm 

12/01 12/02 12/03 12/04 12/0 5 12/06 
Florida Public Utilities Company 100.00 119.25 131.72 165.01 181.67 182.09 
Russell 2000 100.00 79.52 117.09 138.55 144.86 171.47 
S 8: P Utilities 100.00 70.0 1 88.39 109.85 128.35 155.29 

I t em 6. Selected F inancia l  D a t a  

(Dollars in thousands, except per share data) 
Years Ended 
December 31, 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 
Revenues $ 134,393 $ 130,023 $ 110,039 $ 102,723 $ 88,461 
Gross profit $ 48,422 $ 47,219 $ 40,689 $ 37,733 $ 34,929 
Earnings: 
Continuing 
operations $ 4,169 $ 4,248 $ 3,594 $ 2,522 $ 2,76 1 
Dlscontinued 
operations (1) 9,901 602 

n i m n  i m n n ?  
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Net mcome 
Earlungs per 
common share 
(basic and 
dduted). 
Contmumg 
operahons 
Discontinued 
operahons (1) 
Total 
Dividends 
declared per 
common share 
Total assets 
Utllity plant - 
net 
Current debt 
Long-term debt 
Common 
share holders' 
e w t y  

$ 4,169 $ 4,248 $ 3,594 $ 12,423 $ 3,363 

$ 0.69 $ 0.71 $ 0.60 $ 0.43 $ 0.47 

1.69 0.10 
$ 0.69 $ 0.71 $ 0.60 $ 2 12 $ 0 57 

$ 0.43 $ 0.41 $ 0.40 $ 0.39 $ 0.38 
$ 180,913 $ 182,666 $ 170,503 $ 160,944 $ 148,487 

$ 129,211 $ 123,061 $ 117,191 $ 107,942 $ 103,357 
$ 3,466 $ 9,558 $ 5,825 $ 2,278 $ 19,183 
$ 50,702 $ 50,620 $ 50,538 $ 50,454 $ 50,367 

$ 47,572 $ 45,503 $ 43,213 $ 41,463 $ 30,883 

Note to the Selected Fiuancial Da ta  

(1) On December 3, 2002, FPLI entered into a n  agreement to sell the assets of i t s  water  utility system to the City of Feruandiua Beach. The t,ransactioii closed on March 
27, 2003. Reveunes, Gross profit aud  Utility plaut.net do uot iiiclude discontinued operations. 

I t em 7. Management's Discussion a n d  Analysis of Financial  Condition a n d  Results of Operation 

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 

General  
Effects of seasonal weather conditions, the timing of rate increases, fluctuations in demand due to the cost of fuel passed 
on to customers and the migration of winter residents and tourists to  Florida during the winter season all have an 
mpact  on income. 

Revenues and  Gross Profit  S u m m a r y  
Revenues include cost recovery revenues. The FPSC allows cost recovery revenues to directly recover costs of fuel, 
conservation and revenue-based taxes in our natural gas and electric segments. Revenues collected for these expenses 
have no effect on results of operations and fluctuations could distort the relationship of revenues between periods. Gross 
profit is defined as gross operating revenues less fuel, conservation and revenue-based taxes that are passed directly 
through to customers. Because gross profit eliminates these cost recovery revenues, we believe it provides a more 
meaningful basis for evaluating utility revenues. The following summary compares gross profit between periods and 
units sold in One thousand Dekatherm (MDth) (gas) and Megawatt Hour (MWH) (electric). 

Na tu ra l  Gas 
Revenues 

R e v e n u e s  and Gross Profit 
(Dollars in thousands) 

Year Ended December 31, 
2006 2005 2004 

$71,139 $69,094 $55,962 
Cost of fuel and other pass through costs 43,909 42,815 34,232 
Gross Profit $27,230 $26,279 $21,730 

Umts sold. (MDth) 6,230 6,224 6,124 
Electric 
Revenues $48,527 $47,450 $42,910 
Cost of fuel and other pass through costs 34,259 33,352 29,732 
Gross Profit $14,268 $14,098 $13,178 

Units sold: (MWH) 849,124 814,353 766,349 

P r o n a n e  Gas 
Revenues $14,727 $13,479 $11,167 
Cost of fuel and other pass through costs 7,803 6,637 5,386 
Gross Profit $6,924 $6,842 $5,781 
Umts sold. (MDth) 62 1 640 G 14 
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Consolidated 
Revenues $134,393 $130,023 $110,039 
Cost of fuel and other pass through costs 85,971 82,804 69,350 
Gross Profit $ 48,422 $ 47,219 $ 40.689 

Natural Gas 
Natural gas revenues increased $2.0 million, or 3% in 2006 over 2005 primarily due t o  increased revenue collected for 
taxes passed directly through to customers. A change in legislature regarding the calculation of Gross Receipts tax 
became effective January 1, 2006, and along with an increase to overall revenues, increased these taxes paid by our 
customers by approximately $500,000. Franchise fee revenues also increased by approximately $500,000 due to  
increased rates and area expansion. 

Natural gas gross profit increased by $951,000, or 4% in 2006 over 2005. We had higher revenue and gross profit in 2006 
compared to  2005 primarily due to billed revenue not exceeding the FPSC allowable earnings as much as in the prior 
year. In 2006, we reduced billed revenues and gross profit by our estimate of over-earnings of $72,000 for the year. Our 
estimate for 2005 was recorded at  $700,000 in 2005 and we reduced that estimate in 2006 by $50,000 to $650,000. The 
combined effect of this was to  increase our revenues and gross profit over the prior year by approximately $678,000. 
Other factors contributing to  the increase in revenues and gross profit were 2% customer growth and storm surcharge 
revenues, which became effective November 2005. The revenues and gross profit increases were slightly offset by the 
loss of approximately $100,000 of revenue &om two customers who went off-line for several months to do maintenance 
work. 

Natural gas revenues increased $13.1 million in 2005 over 2004 primarily due to an $8.6 million increase in the cost of 
fuel and other costs that  were passed through to customers. The cost of natura1,gas increased significantly over prior 
years, partially as a result of hurricanes and their impact on supplies. Gross profit increased $4.5 million, or 21%, 
primarily as a result of rate relief effective in November 2004, normal customer growth and a 2% increase in units sold. 
Offsetting these increases was the estimated over-earnings for 2005 of $700,000, which reduced revenues and gross 
profit. 

E 1 ect ric 
Electric revenues increased $1.1 million in 2006 over 2005. Cost of fuel and other costs that  were passed through to 
customers contributed approximately $900,000 of the increase. Gross profit increased $170,000 or 1% in 2006 over 2005. 
The increase in gross profit was primarily due to a slight increase in customer growth and units sold. 

Electric revenues increased $4.5 million in 2005 over 2004. Cost of fuel and other costs that  were passed through to 
customers contributed.$3.6 million of the increase. Gross profit increased $920,000 or 7% in 2005 over 2004. The 
increase in gross profit was primarily due to a 6% increase in units sold along with the rate increases granted in March 
2004. A large distribution center was built in our Northwest division and increased revenues by approximately $700,000 
and gross profit by approximately $91,000 in 2005 over 2004. 

Propane Gas 
Propane revenues increased $1.2 million, or 9% and gross profit increased $82,000 or 1% in 2006 compared to  2005. 
Revenues increased primarily due t o  rising fuel costs. Although customers increased by 5% in 2006, the usage per 
customer declined by 8% contributing to a decrease of 3% in units sold. Warmer weather was the primary reason for 
this decrease in usage per customer in 2006 compared to 2005. The increase in gross profit was minimal when compared 
to last year primarily due to pre-buy gains of $383,000 realized in 2005 but not in 2006. 

Propane revenues increased $2.3 million and gross profit increased $1.1 million or 18% in 2005 compared to  2004. The 
Company realized gains of approximately $383,000 as a result of buying propane supplies before market price increases. 
The remaining increase of 12% from the previous year resulted from propane unit sales increasing 4% due primarily to a 
13% growth in residential bulk cListomers and units sold. 

Opera t ing  Expenses 
Operating expenses include operation, maintenance, depreciation, amortization and taxes other than income taxes, and 
exclude fuel costs, conservation and taxes based on revenues that are directly passed through to customers and 
recovered in revenues. 

Operating Expenses 
(Dollars in thousands) 

Natural gas 
Electric 

Year Elided December 31, 
2005 

$ 21,112 $ 20,230 $ 16,752 
11,215 10,596 9,825 
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Propane gas 5,918 5,756 5,126 
Total Operatmg Expenses $38,245 $ 36,582 $ 31,703 

Natural Gas 
Natural gas operating expenses increased $882,000, o r  4%, in 2006 as compared with 2005. Outside of the normal 
inflationary impacts on our expenses, customer account expenses increased by $237,000 as a result of our customer 
service focus initiated in 2005 based on our strategic plan. We continued the focus on this area and increased the  
number of employees in an  effort t o  respond more effectively to customers. Bad debt provision increased $49,000 over 
the prior year primarily due to increasing revenues, aging accounts receivable on several major accounts, and the 
slowing housing economy. We increased our collection efforts in the fourth quarter of 2006 and will continue to do so in 
2007. 

In  2006 we had additional increases of $90,000 t o  sales expense resulting from initiatives to  boost sales by increasing 
sales staff. Depreciation expense increased $137,000 principally due t o  construction of mains and new meters to 
distribute gas to a growing number of new developments i n  South Florida and increasing capacity requirements for 
existing customers. 

Natural gas operating expenses increased $3.5 million or 21%, in 2005 as compared with 2004. Amortization expense 
increased $1 million. The bare steel replacement program and recovery of future environmental costs approved in our  
2004 natural  gas rate proceeding were the primary reasons for this increase. We are currently under a 50-year program 
t o  replace all bare steel mains and service lines with coated steel and polyethylene lines. We have received approval to 
recover the funds necessary to  replace these mains and services over the 50-year period. Pursuant to a n  FPSC mandate, 
we accrue a n  amortization expense as an  offset to  the revenues received, and record a contribution reducing the related 
construction expenditures. The FPSC also approved recovery of our expected environmental liabihty over a 20-year 
period. 

Customer account expense increased $373,000 in 2005 as compared to 2004 primarily due t o  increased payroll expenses 
for additional staffing and facility and equipment upgrades. There were also imreased bad debt provisions as a result of 
the increases in accounts receivable due to general and fuel ra te  increases. The purchase of additional safety 
equipment, tools, hardware and office furniture contributed to a $942,000 increase in other operating expense. Other 
items affecting expenses included a research marketing study t o  provide us with data t o  better serve our customers and 
additional payroll expenses relating to hurricane preparedness and wage increases. Maintenance expense increased by 
$208,000 primarily due to  maintenance expenditures in Central Florida for cleaning and painting a distribution 
regulator and gate stations and the purchase of maintenance related safety equipment and tools. 

Electric 
Electric operating expenses increased $619,000, or 6%, in 2006 as compared with 2005. As a result of our efforts to 
inform and educate our electric customers about the expected 2007 and 2008 fuel rate increases in  upcoming bills, sales 
expense increased by $120,000. Customer account expenses increased $106,000 in 2006 over the prior year mainly due 
to increased bad debt provisions due to  higher sales and  slower housing economy. Depreciation expense increased 
$202,000 largely due to major construction work done in the latter part  of 2005 and  the beginning of 2006. This included 
the rebuilding of a transmission sub-station, the rebuilding of an  entire distribution sub-station with two transformers 
and the replacement of a failed sub-distribution station transformer. Additional significant work on transformers is 
expected in 2008. 

Electric operating expenses increased $771,000, or  8%, in 2005 as compared with 2004. As we continued to focus on 
improving service reliability, we increased maintenance expense by $397,000 for additional tree trimming and the use of 
a temporary mobile substation while a new transformer was purchased and put into service. Depreciation expense 
increased $100,000 due to normal increases in plant assets. I n  2005, other operating expenses increased $114,000 due to 
a shift from work on capital assets to  operational needs along with personnel raises. 

Propane Gas 
Propane gas operating expenses increased $162,000, or 3%, in 2006 as compared with 2005. Depreciation expense 
increased $99,000 for the addition of plant assets including a propane gas delivery system that will increase the 
efficiency of our deliveries and improve our overall customer satisfaction. Aging accounts receivable, slowing housing 
economy and increasing revenues contributed to an  increase in our bad debt expense over the prior year. 

Propane gas operating expenses increased $630,000, or 12%, in 2005 as compared with 2004. As we continued to  focus 
on increasing our propane gas business, other operating costs increased $467,000. We placed additional emphasis in the 
sales area, which resulted in signing up new housing developments that  will utilize propane gas. We incurred increased 
expenditures for piping homes, delivering propane gas, implementing a new delivery system and increasing commission 
payments. This increased effort in our sales area contributed to a n  increase of 150 customers and 4% overall units sold 
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in our propane gas segment. 

Administrative Expenses 
Administrative expenses increased $487,000, or 6%, in 2006 over 2005. These expenses generally are related to all of our 
operating segments. To continue to adequately support our internal and external customers, we increased staffing in our 
administrative areas. Payroll increases of $322,000 related to a n  increased number of employees, annual pay raises and 
normal inflationary impacts. In  2006, we discontinued eligibility to our defined benefit pension plan for new employees 
and replaced the defined benefit pension plan with a 401K-match plan for new employees. This change will take time to  
reduce pension expense; we had an increase of $203,000 in our pension expenses in 2006. Medical costs increased 
$120,000 over the prior year and these costs are expected to continue to  rise. 

Regulatory storm surcharge expenses approved in our 2005 natural gas petition increased natural gas expenses by 
$180,000. 

Administrative expenses increased $996,000, or 13%, in 2005 over 2004. Pension expense increased $274,000 due to our  
estimate that the return on the pension's assets will not keep pace with growing pension liabilities. Medical insurance 
premiums continue to rise, increasing $130,000 in 2005. Compliance costs related to Sarbanes-Oxley and internal 
control requirements, as  well as  au&t fees, increased outside services expenses by $156,000. With the impact from our 
focus on hurricane preparations and the 2005 hurricanes, our safety expense increased by $235,000. A portion of this 
increase related to compensation for an  additional safety employee and costs for a new safety incentive program. 

Total  Other  Income and Deduct ions 
Other income and deductions include revenues and expenses from sales and installation, service of merchandise, gains 
or losses on disposal of property, interest expense and other income and expenses. The largest components of this 
section are merchandise sales, services income and interest expenses. Our service activities include the installation of 
merchandise and other contract work. Interest expense consists of interest on bonds, short-term borrowings and 
customer deposits. 

Merchandise and Services Revenue and Expenses 
Although merchandise and services revenue decreased by approximately $268,000 in 2006, the overall profitability in 
this area increased by $325,000 compared t o  2005. This was primarily a result of significant strategic changes made by 
management. These changes included revising the product markup structure, increasing installation fees and increasing 
employee training. We experienced a revenue decrease due to lower demand for merchandise as a result of a quiet 
hurricane season and the slow down of new construction projects in our areas due to the downturn in the housing 
mar Ire t. 

Merchandise and services revenues and expenses increased in 2005 from 2004 but profitability decreased $1 14,000. We 
experienced an increase in revenues and cost of sales primarily due to an increased demand for electric to gas 
conversions and installations of customer owned propane gas tanks to supply back-up generators. We had increased 
expenses from sub-contractors that  were not passed on to customers in sales prices. 

Interest Expemes 
In 2005, total interest expense increased $106,000. Interest on short-tkrm debt increased $37,000. This was due t o  the 
increase in the average outstanding loan balance on the line of credit and higher interest rates. Interest on customer 
deposits increased $4S,OOO due to increased customer deposits primarily as a result of additional deposits required after 
implementing increased rates in our natural gas operation. 

Oth3er 
Other revenues increased $51,000 compared to  2005 due to additional interest income associated with the sale of the 
water assets. 

Income Taxes 
Income tax expense decreased in 2006 over the normal tax rate on net income by $67,000. This decrease was due to tax 
return adjustments related to the regulatory deferred tax liabilities. 

Income tax expense decreased in 2005 over the normal tax rate on net income by $43,000. Tax return adjustments 
related to the sale of our water assets and the regulatory deferred tax liabilities decreased expenses by $115,000. We 
had an offsetting increase of $75,000 related to our IRS auctt of the 2002 and 2003 income tax returns. 

Liquidity and Capi ta l  Resources  

Summary o f  Primary Sources and Uses o f  Cash. 
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Sources of Cash: 
Operatmg actinties, m c l u h g  workmg capital changes 
Net proceeds on short-term debt 
Other sources of cash 
Uses of Cash: 
Construction expenhtwes 
Dindends paid 
Net payment on short-term debt 
Other uses of cash 

Net (use) source of cash 

(Dollars in thousands) 
Year Ended December 31, 

2006 2005 2004 

$20,090 $10,213 $11,673 
3,733 3,547 

1,179 1,214 G48 

13,116 12,441 13,731 
2,551 2,448 2,368 
6,092 

12 1 75 129 
$ (GI11 $ 196 $ (360) 

Cash Flows 
Operating Activities 
Net cash flow pronded by continuing operating actinties increased m 2006 by approximately $10 million compared to 
2005. Fuel and other pass through costs accounted for $6 5 mdhon of the increase. This increase resulted &.om the 
collection of the prior year's under-recoveries of $3.4 mdion  and over-recoveries of $3 1 million in 2006 Amounts over- 
recovered wdl be refunded to  customers m subsequent calendar years. Lower fuel costs during the latter part of the 
year m our natural gas segment contributed to  a decrease in receivables and increase in cash of $3 milhon. The lower 
fuel costs and timing of payments to our major fuel suppliers resulted in a decrease t o  operating cash of $1 milhon. 
Income taxes paid increased by approximately $600,000 primarily due to the tax effect of the collection of prior year's 

fuel under-recoveries. 

Net cash flow provided by continuing operating activities decreased in 2005 by approximately $1.5 million compared to  
2004. Payments for fuel exceeded the amount collected from customers by an  additional $3.1 million in 2005. The under- 
recovery of fuel costs is collected in the following calendar year. Income tax payments increased approximately $1.5 
million, primarily as a result of less tax depreciation and higher income. The deduction for tax depreciation was higher 
in 2004 a s  a result of bonus depreciation, resulting in  lower taxes in that year. We also received a refund in 2004 
relating to the deferral of the gain on our water assets sale. 

Offsetting the decreases t o  2005 cash flow was additional cash received from rate increases in our natural gas segment. 
The rate increases also contributed t o  an  increase to  accounts receivable of $4 mdlion. Accounts payable increased $3.3 
million in 2005 primarily due to  the increased cost of fuel i n  our natural  gas segment. 

Investing Activities 
Capital expenditures increased in 2006 compared to 2005 by approximately $700,000. The increase in 2006 included 
expenditures for transportation equipment in our electric segment for approximately $400,000, vehicles in our natural 
gas segment above 2005 levels of approximately $600,000, and various other typical capital expenditures. Offsetting 
total 2006 increases was a $663,000 transformer replacement in 2005. 

Capital expenditures decreased in 2005 compared to 2004 by.approximately $1.3 million. In  2004, there were large 
projects to  rebuild two substations in our electric segment and additional propane community gas systems costing 
approximately $3.3 million. I n  2005 such expenditures were lower and consisted of the purchase of a transformer in  our 
electric segment for $663,000, a new natural gas mapping system to track our assets used in serving our customers for 
approximately $300,000, a propane delivery system' for approximately $300,000, additional propane community gas 
systems for approximately $300,000 and other various capital expenditures. 

Financing Activities 
Short-term borrowings decreased by $6 million in 2006. Over-recovery of fuel costs provided a large source of cash 
during 2006 as well as the recovery of the prior year's under-recovery of fuel costs in 2006, reducing the need for short- 
term borrowings. 

Although additional sources of cash were provided by o u r  rate increases and  lower construction expenditures in 2005, 
the additional expenditures €ram the under-recovery of fuel costs and  additional income taxes increased our short-term 
debt. Short-term borrowings increased in 2005 over 2004 by approximately $3.7 million. 

Capital Resources  
We currently have a $12 million line of credit, which expires on J d y  1, 2005. Upon 30 days notice by us we can increase 
the line of credit t o  a maximum of $20 million. The line of credit contains afhrmative and negative covenants that, if 
violated, would give the bank the right to  accelerate the due date of the loan to be immehately payable. The covenants 
include certain financial ratios. All ratios are currently met and management believes we are in full compliance with all 
covenants and anticipates continued compliance. We reserve $1 millioii of the lme of credit t o  cover expenses for any 
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major storm repairs in our electric segment and  an additional $250,000 for a letter of credit insuring propane gas 
facilities. As of December 31, 2006, the  amount borrowed on the  line of credit was $3.5 million. The line of credit, long. 
term debt and preferred stock as of December 31, 2006 comprised 54% of total capitalization and debt. 

In  prior years we periodically paid off short-term borrowings under lines of credit using the net proceeds &om the sale of 
long-term debt or equity securities. We may use similar types of proceeds in the future t o  pay off short-term borrowings, 
dependent on the amount borrowed fi-om the line of c r eh t ,  prevailing market conditions for debt and equity, the impact 
to our financial covenants and the effect on income. 

Our 1942 Indenture of Mortgage and Deed of Trust, which is a mortgage on all real and  personal property, permits the 
issuance of additional bonds based upon a calculation of unencumbered net real and  personal property. At December 
31, 2006, such calculation would permit the issuance of approximately $39.3 million of additional bonds. 

On November 30, 2006 we received approval from the  FPSC to issue and sell or exchange a n  additional amount of 
$45 million in any combination of long-term debt, short-term notes and equity securities and/or to assume liabilities or 
obligations a s  guarantor, endorser or surety during calendar year 2007. We will seek approval &om the  FPSC in 2007 
for any possible financing in 2008. 

We have $3.4 million in invested funds for payment of future environmental costs. We expect to use some of these fLInds 
in 2007. 

Capital R e q u i r e m e n t s  
Portions of our business are seasonal and dependent upon weather conditions in Florida. This factor affects the sale of 
electricity and  gas and impacts the cash provided by operations. Construction costs also impact cash requirements 
throughout the year. Cash needs for operations and  construction are met partially through short-term borrowings from 
our line of credit. 

Capital expenditures are expected to be higher in 2007 compared to 2006 by approximately $3.9 million. The primary 
reason for the expected increase in expenditures is the anticipated purchase of land for a new South Florida division 
office. The current division office is on environmentally impacted property, which requires relocating the office t o  allow 
for clean up of the property. It is not possible to  rebuild at the current location since the property has  been rezoned with 
a residential designation. The estimated cost of land is $3.8 million. We are planning to  build and  complete this new 
facility i n  the next five years. We do not have any commitments for capital expenditures in 2007 other than vehicles of 
approximately $102,000. 

Cash requirements will increase significantly in  the future due t o  environmental clean up costs, sinking fund payments 
on long-term debt and pension contributions. Environmental clean up is forecast to  require payments of approximately 
$600,000 in 2007, with remaining payments, which could total approximately $13.1 million, beginning in 2008. Annual 
long-term debt sinking fund payments of approximately $1.4 million will begin in 2008 and will continue for eleven 
years. Based on curlent projections, we will make voluntary contributions in our defined benefit pension plan of 
$250,000 in 2007 and  $500,000 in 2008. Required contributions will begin in 2009 and are forecast to be approximately 
$2 million in 2009 and 2010. 

Based on our current expectations for cash needs, including the possible land purchase and related South Florida office 
construction, we may choose to consider an  equity or debt financing in 2008 t o  address those cash needs. The need and 
timing will depend upon operational requirements, environmental expenditures, pension contributions and construction 
expenditures and  cannot be precisely predicted at this time. In  addition, if we experience significant environmental 
expenditures in the next two or three years i t  is possible we may need to raise additional funds. If interest rates remain 
favorable we may consider re-financing one of our mortgage bonds. If refinancing is deemed beneficial, we may re-issue 
the bond for additional principal. There can be no assurance, however, that  equity or debt transaction financing will be 
available on favorable terms or at all when we make the decision to proceed with a financing transaction. 

Out look  

Pension and Insurance Expenses 
Insurance costs have been increasing and are expected to continue to  increase while we expect pension costs to  decrease. 
Pension expenses increased $203,000 in 2006 and our actuarial estimates show pension expense increasing by a n  

additional $90,000 in 2007. Insurance expenses including Medical, Liability and Workers' Compensation increased 
$70,000 in 2006 and are expected to  increase further in 2007. 

The regulated segments received rate relief for some of the historical pension and insurance increases in 2003 and  2004. 
Increases beyond those experienced through 2005, which are allocated to the regulated segments, may require 

requesting future rate relief. The propane gas segment may recover these expenses by increasing rates, depending on 



Converted by EDGARwiz c Page 19 of 29 < 

market conditions in the  propane gas industry and the ability to remain competitive. 

In an  effort to keep pension expenses low, we discontinued eligibility t o  our pension plan for all new hires. 

For new hires not eligible for the defined benefit pension plan, we established an employer match t o  the employee’s 
contribution t o  their 401K plans. I t  provided for a company match of 50% for each dollar contributed by the employee, 
up to  6% of their salary, for a company contribution of up t o  3%. Beginning in 2007, for non-union employees the plan 
was enhanced t o  provide a company match of 100% for the first 2% of an  employee’s contribution, and a match of 50% 
for the next 4% of an employee’s contribution, for a total company match of up t o  4%. This new enhanced match will be 
negotiated with our six union contracts during 2007, to  be effective on their respective contract date within 2007. The 
employees are eligible for the company match after six months of continuous service, with vesting of 100% after three 
years of continuous service. 

Electric Power Su.pply Contracts 
Contracts with our two electric suppliers were originally set t o  expire on December 31, 2007. Those contracts provided 
electricity t o  our customers a t  rates much lower than market rates. As part of our negotiations, we agreed to  end the 
current contract terms for our Northeast division on December 31, 2006 and executed an  amended contract to begin 
January 1, 2007 and expire December 31, 2017. Although the contract rates will increase for 2007, this enabled us to  
obtain lower rates for the  longer term of the contract than would have been available if we had not revised the contract. 
The savlngs are passed through to  our customers without profit t o  us. 

We executed a contract for the provider of electricity in our Northwest division in December 2006 and are seeking 
approval of this contract and its related terms and conditions. &om the FPSC on or before July 1, 2007. If the FPSC does 
not approve this contract, we may need t o  seek a n  alternative supplier or  new contract with this same supplier for the 
purchase of electricity in the Northwest division. This contract will be for the purchase of electricity beginning January 
1, 2008. We anticipate tha t  contract will result in rates closer to market, which could cause our customers’ bills to  
double over existing prices in the next several years. 

We are unable t o  estimate what impact, if any, the higher rates could have on electric consumption. 

Propane Gas 
We are currently reviewing the possibibty of hedging activities in 2007 to  help mitigate the risk of price changes for our 
cost of propane gas. We are unable to determine the impact this activity will have on our future operating income. 

We used advance purchase agreements made in the normal course of procuring propane gas supplies in past years. 
These agreements resulted in a loss of gross profit of apptoximately $5,000 in 2006 and additional gross profit of 
approximately $383,000 in 2005 and $242,000 in 2004. 

Over-earnings-Nutu,ral Gus Segment 
The FPSC approves rates that  are intended t o  permit a specified rate of return on investment and limits the maximum 
amount of earnings of regulated operations. We currently estimate over-earnings in 2006 of $72,000 and in 2005 of 
$650,000. We revised our prior year’s 2005 estimate of $700,000 during 2006. These liabilities have been included in an  
over-earnings liability on our  balance sheet, with the potential of rate refunds to customers. The calculations supporting 
these liabilities are complex and involve a variety of projections and  estimates before the ultimate settlement of such 
obligations. 

Our 2005 and 2006 estimates of our over-earnings liabilities could change upon the FPSC finalization and review of our 
earnings in 2007 and 2008. The FPSC determines the disposition of over-earnings with alternatives that include 
refunding to customers, funding storm damage or  environmental reserves, or  reducing any depreciation reserve 
deficiency. 

In  2007, we requested that the 2005 natural  gas over-earnings be used t o  provide additional funds to  our regulatory 
storm reserve liability and reduce the costs currently being recovered from our customers through a storm surcharge. If 
the FPSC approves this disposition, we will end the storm surcharge in 2007. 

Electric Customers 
A large commercial customer in our electric division closed i ts  operations in  late 2006. As a result we anticipate annual 
revenues to  be reduced by approximately $300,000 and annual gross profit to be reduced by approximately $50,000. 

A large distribution center was built in our Northwest division in 2004 and  a second facility was added in 2006. A third 
distribution facility is expected to  be added by the end of 2007. Additional industrial and  commercial development is 
planned for this general area, which should increase load significantly. Additional gross profit is anticipated in the 
future to increase between $30,000 and $50,000 a s  a result of the additional developments. 
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Natural Gas Cu,stomers 
Two natural gas customers went off-line for approximately six months in 2006 due t o  lower production, market slow 
down and maintenance work on their facilities. We anticipate that they will not be fully operational until mid-2007. 
The decreased revenue and gross profit is estimated to be $100,000 in 2007. 

Indiantowiz Gas Agreement 
The FPSC approved our  joint  transportation and territorial agreements with Indiantown Gas Company in October 2006. 
We began construction in the Indiantown area to install nat,ural gas mains in the first phase of this development, for 
approximately 100 homes. Two more developments are slated for construction of approximately 1,000 homes in 2007. 

Storm Preparedness Expenses 
Regulators continue t o  focus on hurricane preparedness and storm recovery issues for utility companies. Newly 
mandated storm preparedness initiatives could impact our operating expenses and capital expenditures beginning in 
2007. The initial forecasts of these annual expenditures are approximately $700,000. It is possible that additional 
regulation and rules will be mandated regarding storm related expenditures over the next several years. We requested 
that the FPSC allow us to recover the cost of the newly mandated storm preparedness initiatives and t o  defer these 
storm-related expenditures until we receive recovery through a rate increase. If approved, both the recovery and 
expenditures may occur by mid-2007. If the FPSC does not approve our request, we plan to file a rate proceeding in 2007 
as an alternative option for recovery of these expenditures. 

Land Pu.rchase 
We are currently reviewing multiple sites for the new South Florida division office. We expect t o  purchase land for the 
new South Florida division office during 2007. 

Contractual  Obligations 

Table  of C o n t r a c t u a l  Obligat ions 
(Dollars in thousands) 

Less than More than 
Payments due by period: 
Long-term Debt Obhgations $52,500 $ -  $2,818 $2,818 $46,864 
Long-term Debt Interest 63,904 3,949 7,623 7,074 45,258 
Operatmg Lease Obhgations 362 161 163 38 
Natural Gas and Propane Gas Purchase 64,904 37,768 16,244 4,568 6,324 
Obhgations 
Electnc Purchase Obhgahons 268 53 106 61 48 

Total $184,636 $42,853 $28,652 $14,580 $98,551 

Total 1 year 1 to 3 years 3 to 5 years 5 years 

Other Purchase Obligations 2,698 922 1,698 21 57  

Long-term Debt Obligations 
The Long-term debt obligations are principal amounts. 

Long-term Debt Interest 
The Long-term debt interest represents the interest obligation on our Mortgage Bonds. 

Operating Lease Obligations 
Our total operating lease obligation is $362,000. We are leasing property from the City of Fernandina Beach in our 
Northeast division. The total obligation for the duration of this lease is about $107,000 over the next five years. We lease 
our appliance showroom in the same division for approximately $35,000 annually. We also have other operating lease 
agreements with various terms and expiration dates. 

Purchase Obligations 
A purchase order is considered an obligation if it is associated with a contract or is authorizing a specSc purchase of 
material. The Other Purchase Obligation amount presented above represents the amount of open orders. 

Pension, Medical Postretirement and Other Obligations 
Our pension plan continues t o  meet all funding requirements under ERISA regulations; however, under current 
actuarial assumptions, contributions may be required as early as 2009. Current projections indicate that we will make 
voluntary contributions of $250,000 in 2007, $500,000 in 2008 and make required contributions of approximately $2 
million in 2009 and 2010, decreasing t o  under $1 million in 2011. These payments are not included in the Contractual 
Obligations table. 

Environmental clean up is anticipated to require approximately $600:000 in 2007, the remainder t o  be paid in following 
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years. These payments are not included in the Contractual Obligations table. 

We have medical postretirement payments relating to  retiree medical insurance. These payments are not included in 
the Contractual Obligations table. Estimated future payments are described in Note 12 in  the Notes 
t o  Consolidated Financial Statements. 

Dividends 
We have historically paid dividends. I t  is our intent t o  continue to pay quarterly dividends for the foreseeable future. 
Our dividend policy is reviewed on an ongoing basis by our Board of Directors and is dependent upon our future 

earnings, cash flow, financial condition, capital requirements and other factors. 

O t h e r  

Impact of R e c e n t  Accoun t ing  S t a n d a r d s  

Financial Accounting Standard Board Interpretation No. 48 
In June  2006, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes (FIN 48). The 
interpretation clarifies the  accounting for uncertainty in  income taxes recognized in an  entity’s financial statements in 
accordance with SFAS No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes. The interpretation prescribes a recognition threshold and 
measurement attribute for the financial statement recognition and measurement of a tax position taken or expected to 
be taken in a tax return. FIN 48 also provides guidance on de-recognition, measurement, classification, interest and 
penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclosure and transition. This interpretation is effective for calendar years 
beginning January 1, 2007. 

We have performed an  analysis of tax positions taken and  expected t o  be taken on the tax returns and assessed the 
technical merits of each tax position by relying on legislation, statutes, common legislative intent, regulations, rulings, 
and case law and determined that the Company has no material uncertain tax positions. Additionally, the IRS 
concluded a n  audit of the 2002 and 2003 tax years in September of 2005. 

In February of 2007, the IRS informed us that it selected our 2003 and  2004 tax years for examination. As our tax 
positions have remained consistent with those horn the prevlously audited tax years, we are not expecting any material 
adverse findings as the result of the mpending IRS audit. 

Based on the aforementioned, we believe that the adoption of FASB Interpretation No. 48 will not have a material 
impact on our financial condition or results of operations. 

Financial Accounting Standard No. 157 
In  September 2006, the FASB issued Statement No. 157, “Fair Value WIeasurements”. This Statement clarifies fair 
value as the market value received to  sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability, that  is, the exit value, and applies t o  
any assets or  liabilities t ha t  require recurring determination of fair value. The measurement includes any applicable 
risk factors and does not include any adjustment for volume. This Statement is effective for financial statements issued 
for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007 and interim periods within. The Company expects to adopt SFAS No. 
157 effective January 1, 2008. The Company does not believe adoption of this Statement will have a material impact on 
our financial condition or  results of operation. 

Financial Accounting Standard No. 158 
In September 2006, the FASB issued Statement No. 158, “Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other 
Postretixemeiit Plans”. Statement 155 requires the Company t o  show the finded status of its pension and retiree health 
care plans as a prepaid asset or accrued liability, and to show the net deferred and unrecognized gains and losses 
related to  the retirement plans, net of tax, as par t  of accumulated other comprehensive income in shareholders’ equity. 
Previously, the net deferred and unrecognized gains and  losses were netted in the prepaid asset or accrued liability 

recorded for the retirement plans. The Company adopted the recognition provisions of Statement 158, as required, at 
December 31, 2006. 

The Company uses December 31 as the measurement da te  to measure the  assets and obligations of its retirement plans. 
Statement 158 will also require the Company to use December 31 a s  the measurement date no later than fiscal years 

ending after December 15, 2008. The Company currently uses this date as the measurement date, and has used it for 
all periods presented. 

The actuarial valuation of the retirement plan obligations has  been completed and  the recognition provisions of 
Statement 158 a t  December 31, 2006 resulted in an  additional liability for retirement plans. The tax on the non- 
regulated portion of the liability has been recorded a s  a deferred income tax asset. As a n  offset, the regulatory portion of 
this liability has been deferred as a regulatory asset-retirement plans to  be recovered in  future rate proceedings and the 



Converted by EDGARwiz Page 22 of 29 

remaining expense for recording the liability has  been included in other comprehensive income. The fair value of 
retirement plan assets and obligations are subject t o  change based on market fluctuations. The table below summarizes 
the effects t o  our financial statements. 

FASB 158 Implementation Summary 
(Dollars in thousands) 

December 31 2006 
Before After 

Application of Apphcation of 
SFAS 158 Adlirstment SFAS 155 

Assets: 
Other regulatory assets- retlrement plans $ -  $587 $587 

Liabilities and Equity: 
Accumulated other comprehensive income/aoss) (103) (103) 
Other accruals and payables 2,034 151 2,185 
Long term medical and pension reserve 4,129 602 4,731 
Deferred income taxes 16,167 6 3 )  16,104 

Staff Account ing  Bu.lletin No. 108 
In  September 2006, the SEC issued Staff Accounting Bulletin (SAB) No. 108 "Considering the  Effects of Prior Year 
Misstatements when Quantifying Misstatements in Current Year Financial Statements". SAB 108 requires tha t  public 
companies utilize a "dual-approach to assessing the quantitative effects of financial misstatements. This dua l  approach 
includes an  assessment from both an income statement and a balance sheet focus. The guidance in SAB 108 must be 
applied to  annual financial statements for fiscal years ending after November 15, 2006. The Company has adopted SAB 
No. 10s and  there has not been any impact on our consolidated financial position or results of operations as the  result of 
this adoption. 

Cr i t ica l  Accoun t ing  Pol ic ies  a n d  E s t i m a t e s  

Regula tory  Account ing  
We prepare our financial statements in accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 71  "Accounting for the Effects of 
Certain Types of Regulation" and  it is our most critical accounting policy. In  general, SFAS No. 71 recognizes that 
accounting for rate-regulated enterprises should reflect the relationship of costs and  revenues introduced by rate 
regulation. As a result, a regulated utility may defer recognition of a cost (a regulatory asset) or recognize a n  obligation 
(a regulatory liability) if it is probable that,  through the  ra te  making process, there wdl be a corresponding increase or 
decrease in revenues or expenses. SFAS No. 71 does not apply to our unregulated propane gas operations. 

Use of Es t ima tes  
We are required to use estimates in preparing our financial statements s o  they will be in compliance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in  the United States of America. Actual results could hffer from these estimates. We 
believe tha t  the accruals for potential liabilities are adequate. The estimates in our  financial statements included the 
accrual for pensions, environmental habilities, over-earnings liability, unbilled revenues. allowances for doubtful 
accounts, uninsured liability claims and the regulatory deferred income tax and  deferred income tax liabilities. 

Pension and post retirement benefits-An actuary calculates the  estimated pension liability in accordance with FASB 87, 
FASB 88 as  amended by FASB 132 and FASB 158. 

Environmental liabilities-These liabilities are subject to certain unknown future events. The Company reviews the 
environmental issues regularly with the geologists performing the feasibility studies and  their legal counsel specializing 
in manufactured gas plant issues and negotiates with the environmental regulators and the other participating parties 
to  determine the adequacy of the estimated liability for environmental reserves. 

Over-earnings liability-This liability is subject t o  regulatory review and possible disallowance of some expenses in 
determining the amount of over-earnings. 

Unbilled revenues-Unbilled revenue is estimated with certain assumptions including unaccounted for units and the use 
of current month sales t o  estimate unbilled sales. 

Allowances for doubtful accounts- This liability is estimated based on historical information and trended current 
economic conditions, certain assumptions, and is subject to unknown future events. Actual results could hffer from our 
estimates. 
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Uninsured liability claims-We are self-insured for the first $250,000 of each general and auto liability claim and accrue 
for estimated losses occurring from both asserted and unasserted claims. The estimate for unasserted claims arising 
from unreported incidents is based on a n  analysis of historical claims data and judgment. 

Regulatory deferred income tax and deferred income tax liabihties-These liabilities are estimated based on historical 
data and are subject to  finalization of our income tax return. Actual results could differ &om our estimates. 

Revenue Recognition 
We bill utility customers on a monthly cycle basis; however, the billing cycle periods for most customers do not coincide 
with the accounting periods used for financial reporting. We accrue estimated revenue for gas and  electric customers for 
consumption used but not yet billed for in an accounting period. Determination of unbilled revenue relies on the use of 
estimates and historical data. We believe tha t  the estimates for unbilled revenue materially reflect the unbilled gross 
profit for our customers for units used but not yet billed in the current period. 

The FPSC approves rates that are intended to  permit a specified rate of return on investment and limits the maximum 
amount of earnings of regulated operations. Any earnings in excess of this maximum amount are accrued for as an  over- 
earnings liability and revenues are reduced for this same amount. The calculations supporting these liabilities are 
complex and involve a variety of projections and estimates before the ultimate settlement of such obligations. The FPSC 
determixes the disposition of any over-earnings with alternatives that include refunding t o  customers, fiinding storm 
damage o r  environmental reserves or reducing any depreciation reserve deficiency. 

Effects of  Inflation 
Our tarlffs for natural gas and electric operations provide for fuel clauses that adjust annually for changes in the cost of 
fuel Increases in other u t h t y  costs and expenses not offset by increases in revenues or  reductions in other expenses 
could have an  adverse effect on earnings due to the time lag associated with obtaining regulatory approval to  recover 
such increased costs and expenses, the uncertainty of whether regulatory commissions will allow full recovery of such 
increased costs and expenses and any effect on unregulated propane gas operations. 

Env i 1-onment u 1 Mutt e rs 
We currently use or have used in  the past, several contamination sites that  are currently involved in pending or 
threatened environmental litigation as discussed in Note 10- "Contingencies" in the Notes to  Consolidated Financial 
Statements. We intend to vigorously defend our rights in this litigation. We have insurance and rate relief to cover any 
expected losses or expenses. We believe that the aggregate of all future contamination assessment and remedial costs, 
legal fees and other related expenses would not exceed the insurance proceeds received and  any rate relief granted. The 
final 2004 natural  gas rate relief granted by the FPSC provided fLiture recovery of $8.9 million for environmental 
liabilities. The remaining balance to be recovered from customers through future recovery is included on the balance 
sheet as "Other regulatory. assets-environmental". 

Off-Balance S h e e t  A r r a n g e m e n t s  
We do not have any off-balance sheet arrangements. 

Forward-Looking  Statements (Caut ionary  S ta t emen t )  
This report contains forward-looking statements including those relating to the following expectations: 

Based on our current expectations for cash needs, including cash needs relating to  the possible land purchase and 
related construction, we may choose t o  consider an equity or debt financing in 2005 to address those cash needs. The 
need and timing will depend upon operational requirements, environmental expenhtures,  pension contributions and 
construction expenditures and cannot be precisely predicted a t  this time. 

Other insurance costs will increase in 2007. 

Our anticipation of continued compliance in the foreseeable future with our line of credit covenants. 

Our expectation that cash requirements will increase significantly in the future due to  environmental clean-up costs, 
sinking fund payment on long-term debt and pension contributions. 

Electric storm related expenditures may be necessary beginning in mid-2007 and the total cost may be significant. We 
may receive recovery for these expenditures. 

o inn 



Converted by EDGARwiz Page 24 of 29 

Propane gas hedging activity may occur in 2007. 

The fuel supply contract in our Northwest Florida division beginning January 1, 2008 will be approved by the FPSC in 
2007 and will be effective for the  purchase of fuel supply beginning in 2005. 

Our 2005 and 2006 over-earnings liabilities in natural  gas will materialize as estimated after the FPSC reviews and 
audits. 

We expect t o  have higher fuel costs for 2007, 2005 and beyond. 

The development in Indiantown will occur as estimated. 

The purchase of land for our new natural  gas and propane gas division office will occur in 2007 

Pension expenses are expected to  increase in 2007. 

The FPSC will allow our natural  gas over-earnings to fund a future storm reserve and reduce our current regulatory 
asset related to historic storm costs and  discontinue the related natural  gas storm surcharge in 2007. 

The commercial and industrial growth will occur a s  expected in  our Northwest division providing increases in our 
revenues and  gross profit. 

The two customers that went off-line in  2006 will be fully operational by mid-2007 

These statements involve certain risks and uncertainties. Actual results may differ materially &om what is expressed 
in such forward-looking statements. Important factors tha t  could cause actual results to  differ materially from those 
expressed by the  foiward-looking statements include, bu t  are not limited to,  those set forth above in "Risk Factors". 

Item 7A. Quan t i t a t ive  a n d  Qual i ta t ive  Disc losures  a b o u t  M a r k e t  Risk 

All financial instruments held by us  were entered into for purposes other than  for trading. We have market risk 
exposure only from the potential loss in fair value resulting from changes in interest rates. We have no material 
exposure relating t o  commodity prices because under our regulatory segments, we are currently fully compensated for 
the actual costs of commodities (natural gas and  electricity) used in our operations. Any commodity price increases for 
propane gas are normally passed through monthly to  propane gas customers as the fuel charge portion of their rate. 

None of our gas or electric contracts are accounted for using the fair value method of accounting. While some of our 
contracts meet the definition of a derivative, we have designated these contracts as "normal purchases and sales" under 
SFAS No. 133, "Accounting for Derivative Instruments and  Hedging Activities". 

Beginning in 2007 we plan, on a rolling four-quarter basis, t o  purchase a "cap" on approximately one-third of our 
forecast propane gas volume purchases and pre-buy or hedge with a swap one-third of our forecast anticipated propane 
gas purchases. The remaining one-third will fluctuate with the market price. Our energy strategy allows us to 
participate in two-thirds of price declines but only one-third of price increases. As of December 31, 2006, we have not 
entered into any hedging activities. When we do enter into hedging activities, we will determine whether they meet the 
definition of normal sales and purchases and  if not, we will determine whether we can use hedge accounting. 

We have no exposure to equity risk, as we do not hold any equity instruments. Our exposure to  interest rate risk is 
limited t o  investments held for environmental costs, the water sale long term receivable and short-term borrowings on 
the line of credit. The investments held for environmental costs are short-term fixed income debt securities whose 
carrying amounts are not materially different than fair value. The short-term borrowings were $3.5 million a t  the end 
of December 2006. Therefore, we do not believe we have material market risk exposure related to these instruments. 
The indentures governing o w  two f i s t  mortgage bond series outstanding contain "make-whole" provisions, which are 

pre-payment penalties that  charge for lost interest, which render refinancing impracticable. 

Our non-interest bearing long-term receivable from the sale of the water operations was discounted at 4.34%. A 
hypothetical 0.5% (50 basis points) increase in the interest rate used would change the current fair value from $6 
million to $5.9 million. 

In 2006, a hypothetical 0.5% (50 basis points) decrease in the long-term interest rate on $52.5 million debt excluding 
unamortized debt discount would change the fair value from $63 million t o  $66.9 million. 

0 I? 0 I? l-m I 
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Changes in short-term interest rates could have a n  effect on income depending on the balance borrowed on the variable 
rate line of credit. We had short-term debt of $3.5 million on December 31, 2006 and $9.6 m&on on December 31, 2005 
A hypothetical 1% increase in interest rates would have resulted in a decrease in annual earnings for 2006 by $35,000 
and for 2005 by $96,000, based on year-end borrowings. 

Item 8. F inanc ia l  S t a t e m e n t s  and S u p p l e m e n t a r y  D a t a  

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME 
(Dollars in thousands, except per share data) 

Years Ended December 31 
Revenues 2006 2005 2004 
Natural gas $ 71,139 $ 69,094 $ 55,962 
Electric 48,527 47,450 42,910 
Propane gas 14,727 13,479 11,167 

Total revenues 134,393 130,023 110,039 
Cost of Fuel and Other  Pass Throuzh - 
costs  
Gross Profit 
Operating Expenses 
Operation 
Maintenance 
Depreclation and amortlzation 
Taxes other than income taxes 

Total operating expenses 
Operating Income 
Other Income a n d  (Deductions) 
Merchanhse and servlce revenue 
Merchanhse and servlce expenses 
Other mcome 
Other deductions 
Interest expense on long-term debt 
Interest expense on short-term 
borrowmgs 
Customer deposits and other interest 
expense 

Earnings Before Income Taxes 
Income Taxes 
Net Income 
Preferred Stock Dividends 
Earnings for Common Stock 
Earnings Per  Common Share (basic 
and  diluted) 
Dividends Declared Per  Common 

Total other deductions - net  

85,971 
48,422 

24,034 
3,484 
7,742 
2,985 

38,245 
10,177 

4,322 
(4,071) 

620 
(33) 

(3,949) 

(108) 

(551) 
(3,770) 
6,407 

(2,238) 
4,169 

29 
4,140 

$ .69 

$ 

82,804 
47,219 

22,881 
3,566 
7,266 
2,869 

36,582 
10,637 

4,590 
(4,664) 

569 
(29) 

(3,949) 

(79) 

(540) 
(4,102) 
6,535 

(2,287) 
4,248 

29 
4,219 $ 

$ .71 

69,350 
40,689 

20,068 
2,982 
5,900 
2,753 

31,703 
8,986 

3,366 
(3,326) 

625 
20 

(3,949) 

(42) 

(47 1) 
(3,777) 
5,209 

(1,615) 
3,594 

29 
3,565 $ 

$ .GO 

Share  $ .43 $ .41 $ .40 
Average Shares Outstanding 5,993,589 5,952,684 5,908,220 

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
(Dollars in thousands) 

Years Ended December 31 

Net income 
Other comprehensive income/(loss), net: 

Retirement plans adjustment 

2006 2005 2004 
$ 4,169 $ 4,248 $ 3,594 

Deferred mcome taxes benefit 63 
4,066 $ 4.248 $ 3,594 Comprehensive income $ 

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE S H E E T S  

- - . _  - _ ^ .  ^ ^ ^  r .  
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(Dollars in thousands)  

ASSETS 
Utility Plant 
Natural gas 
Electnc 
Propane gas 
Common 
Total 
Less accumulated depreciabon 
Net uthty plant 
Current  Assets 
Cash 
Accounts receivable 
Notes receivable 
Allowance for uncollectible accounts 
Unbdled receivables 
Inventories (at average or umt cost) 
Prepiud expenses 
Income tax prepayments 
Under-recovery of fuel costs 
Total current assets 
Other Assets 
Investments held for envu-onmental costs 
Other regulatory assets - storm reserve 
Other regulatory assets - enwonmental 
Other regulatory assets - retrement plans 
Long-term receivables and other mvestments 
Deferred charges 
Goodwdl 
Intanmble assets (net) 
Total other assets 

Total 

December 31, 
2006 2005 

$ 95,393 $ 89,835 
72,776 70,084 
17,153 15,500 
3,646 3,859 

188,968 179,278 
59,757 56,217 
129,211 123,061 

84 
12,199 
298 
(429) 
1,957 
4,120 
962 
98 
862 

20,15 1 

3,364 
270 

8,284 
587 

5,740 
6,496 
2.405 
4,405 
31,551 
180,913 $ 

695 
15,780 
299 

1,918 
3,781 
951 

1,159 

(272) 

3,375 
27,686 

3,258 
452 

8,868 

5,794 
6,751 
2,405 
4,391 
31,919 
182,666 $ 

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 
(Dollais i n  thousands)  

December 31, 
CAPITALIZATION AND LIABILITIES 2006 2005 
Capitalization 
Common shareholders' equity $ 47,572 $ 45,503 
Preferred stock GOO GOO 
Long-term debt 50,702 50,620 
Total capitahation 98,874 96,723 
Current  Liabilities 
Lme of creht 3,466 9,558 
Accounts payable 10,279 13,166 
Insurance accrued 181 296 
Interest accrued 789 1,014 
Other accruals and payables 2,185 1,984 
Taxes accrued 1,277 1,512 
Deferred income tax 579 1,066 
Over-earmngs habhty 722 700 
Over-recovery of fuel costs 3,656 
Over-recovery of conservation 355 24 
Customer deposits 9,G08 8,851 
Total current habihties 33,097 38,171 
Other Liabilities 
Deferred mcome taxes 16,104 17,568 
Unamortlzed investment tax crebts 335 411 
Enwonmental habhty 13,753 14,001 
Regulatory habhty - cost of removal 8,800 8,256 

Long-term mehcal and pension reserve 4,731 2,663 
Customer advances for construcbon 2,707 2,346 
Regulatory habihty - storm reserve 1,636 1,536 
Total other habhties 48,942 47,772 

182,666 

Regulatory tax habhties 876 99 1 

Total $ 180,913 $ 
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See Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateiiients 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS O F  CAPITALIZATION 
(Dollars in thousands) 

December 31, 
2005 2006 

Common Shareholders' Equity 
C,oinmon stock, $1.50 par value, authorized 10,000,000 shares; 
issued 6,166,648 shares in 2006; issued 6,152,676 shares in 2005 
Paid-in capital 
Retained earnings 
Accuniulated other comprehensive income/(loss), retirement plan 
adjustment, net of income tax benefit 
Treasury stock - at cost (160,349 shares in 2006, 188,994 shares 
in 2005) 
Total common shareholders' equity 
Preferred Stock 
4 %% Series A, $100 par value, redemption price $106, authorized 
and outstanding 6,000 shares 
4 %% Series B Cumulative Preferred, $100 par value, redemption 
price $101, authorized 5,000 and none issued 
$1.12 Convertible Preference, $20 par value, redemption price 
$22, authorized 32,500 and none issued 
Total preferred stock 
Long-Term Debt 
First mortgage bonds series 

9.57 % due 2018 
10.03 % due 2018 
9.08 % due 2022 
4.90 % due 2031 
6.85 % due 2031 

Unamortized debt hscount 
Total long-term debt 
Total Capitalization 
See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

$ 9,250 
6,054 

35,213 

$ 9,229 
5,998 

33,625 

(3,349) 
45,503 

(2,842) 
47,572 

GOO GOO 

GOO GOO 

10,000 
5,500 
8,000 

14,000 
15,000 

10,000 
5,500 
8,000 

14,000 
15,000 
(1,880) 
50,620 
96,723 $ 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMMON SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 
(Dollars in thousands) 

Common Stock 
Accinnulated 

Other 
Comprehensive 

(LOSS)  

Paid- 
iu 

C a p t a l  

$5.632 

Common 
Shareholders' 

Equity 

Treasury 
Shares 

cos t  
Retained 
Earniugs 

$30,638 
3,594 

(2,383) 

Treasury 
Shares 

Agpegate 
Par Value 

$9.146 

Shares 
Issued 

B a l a n c e s  as 
of D e c e m b e r  
31, 2003 6,097,478 
Net income 
Dividends 
Stock plans 32,619 
B a l a n c e s  as 
of D e c e m b e r  
31,2004 6,130,097 
Net income 
Dividends 

B a l a n c e s  as 
of D e c e m b e r  
31, PO06 6,152,676 
Net income 
Other 
comprehensive 
loss, 
retuement 
plans 
atljusiment, 
net of tax 
Dividends 

B a l a n c e s  as 
of D e c e m b e r  
41 ,2006  

Stock plans 22.579 

Stock plans 13,972 

6.166.648 

, .  

223.062 $ -  K3.953) $41 463 
3,594 

(2,383) 
539 (17.521) 316 

(3,637) 

288 

(3,349) 

49 

9,195 

174 

5,506 43,213 
4.248 

(2,472) 

31,849 
4,245 

(2,472) 

205,241 

(16,247) 

188,994 

192 34 

9,229 45,503 
4,169 

5,998 33.625 
4,169 

(103) (103) 
(2,581) 

,654 
(2,581) 

21 56 5177 (28,645) 

$ 4 7 , 5 i 2  160,349 $0.642)  $ (103) 59 250 $6,054 $35,213 
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See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
(Dollars in thousands) 

Years Ended December 31, 
2006 2005 2004 

Cash Flows f r o m  Opera t ing  Activities: 
Net income 
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash 
from operating activities: 
Depreciation and amortization 
Deferred income taxes 
Bad debt expense 
Investment tax credits 
Other 
Interest income from sale of non-utility property 
Compensation expense from the issuance of stock 
Effects of changes in: 
Receivables 
Unbilled receivables 
Inventories and prepayments 
Accounts payable and accruals 
Over (under) recovery of fuel and other pass 
through costs 
Area expansion program deferred costs 
Environmental l iabhty 
Other 

Cash Flows f r o m  Invest ing Activities: 
Construction expenditures 
Customer advances received for construction 
Purchase of long-term investments 
Proceeds received on notes receivable 
Issuance of notes receivable 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

Other 
Net cash used in investing activities 

C a s h  Flows from Financing Activities: 
Net change in short-term borrowings 
Proceeds from common stock plans 
Dividends paid 

activities 
Net  Increase (Decrease) in Cash 
Cash at Beginning of Year 
C a s h  at End of Year  
Supp lemen ta l  Cash  Flow Information 
Cash was paid during the years as follows: 

Net cash provided by (used in) financing 

Interest 
Income taxes 

$ 4,169 

3,115 
(39) 
711 

(976) 

6,500 
238 
584 

(1,140) 
20,090 

(13,116) 
36 1 

(106) 
321 

(15) 
( 12,55 5) 

(6,09 2) 
497 

(2,551) 

(8,146) 

695 
a 4  

(611) 

$ 

$ 4,777 
$ 3,298 

$ 4,248 

(4,513) 
367 

(495) 
5,560 

(3,171) 
109 
429 

(329) 
10,213 

(12,441) 
454 
(75) 
304 

(11,758) 

3,733 
456 

(2,448) 

1,741 
196 
499 
695 $ 

$ 4,469 
$ 2,698 

$ 3,594 

5,900 
2,470 

409 
(83) 
121 

(271) 
91 

(1,688) 
(6 12) 

2,746 
1,131 

(1,991) 
(372) 
(586) 
8 14 

11,673 

( 13,73 1) 
144 
(34) 
57 

(95) 

(13,659) 

3,547 
447 

(2,368) 

1,626 
(360) 
859 
499 $ 

$ 4,357 
$ 1,215 

See Notes to Consolidat,ed Financial Statements 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

S u m m a r y  of S igni f icant  Accoun t ing  and R e p o r t i n g  Pol ic ies  

A. G e n e r a l  
The Company is a n  operating public utility engaged principally in the purchase, transmission, distribution and  sale of 
electricity and in the purchase, transmission, distribution, sale and  transportation of natural gas. The Company is 
subject to  the jurisdiction of the FPSC with respect t o  its natural  gas and electric operations. The suppliers of electric 
power to the  Northwest Florida division and of natural  gas to the natural gas divisions a re  subject to the jurisdiction of 
the FERC. The Northeast Florida division is supplied most of its electric power by a municipality which is exempt from 
FERC and FPSC regulation. The Company also distributes propane gas through a non-regulated subsidiary. 

B. Bas i s  of P r e s e n t a t i o n  
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Florida Public Utilities Company (FPU) and its wholly 
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owned subsidiary, Flo-Gas Corporation. All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated. 
The Company's accountmg policies and practices conform to  accounting principles generally accepted m tlie United 
States ofAmerica (GAAP) as apphed to  regulated pubhc utdities and are in accordance with the accounting 
requirements and rate-making practices of tlie FPSC and in accordance to the rule requirements of the Securities and 
Exchange Commission (SEC) 

C. Use  of Es t imates  
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with G M  requires tlie Company to make certain estimates and 
assumptions that affect tlie reported amounts of assets and  liabilities, disclosure of any contingent assets and liabilities 
a t  the date of the financial statements and  the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. 
Some of these estimates include the accruals for pensions, allowances, environmental liabilities, liability reserves, 

unbilled revenue, regulatory deferred tax liabilities and over-earnings liability. Actual results may differ from these 
estimates and assumptions. 

D. Reclassifications 
Certain amounts in the prior years' financial statements have been reclassified to conform to the 2006 presentation. 

E. Regula t ion  
The financial statements are prepared in accordance with the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting 
Standards (SFAS) No. 7 1  - "Accounting for the Effects of Certain Types of Regulation". SFAS No. 71 recognizes that 
accounting for rate-regulated enterprises should reflect the relationship of costs and revenues introduced by rate 
regulation. A regulated utility may defer recognition of a cost (a regulatory asset) or show recognition of a n  obligation (a 
regulatory liability) if it is probable that, through the ratemaliing process, there will be a corresponding increase or . 

decrease in revenues. The Company has recognized certain regulatory assets and liabilities in the consolidated balance 
sheets. The Company believes that the FPSC will continue to  allow recovery of such items through rates. As these 
regulatory assets and liabilities are recovered through rates or paid through a reduction of rates, the assets and 
liabilities are amortized to  revenue and expense. I n  the event that  a portion of the Company's operations are no longer 
subject to  the provisions of SFAS No. 7 1, the Company would be required t o  write-off related regulatory assets and 
liabilities that  are not specifically recoverable through regulated rates. I n  addition, tlie Company would be required t o  
determine if an  impairment related t o  other assets exists, including plant, and write-down tlie assets, if impaired, to 
their fair value. 

Summary of Regulatory Assets  a n d  Liabi l i t ies  
(Dollars in thousands) 

2005 
Assets 
Deferred development costs (1) $ 3,952 $ 4,190 
Unamortlzed fuel related regulatory costs (6) 48 24 
Enwonmental assets (2) 8,284 8,868 
Storm Reserve assets (3) 270 452 
Deferred retlrement plan costs (5) 
Unamortrzed Rate Case expense 368 541 
Under-recovery of fuel costs 862 3,375 
Unamortrzed pipmg and conversion costs (1) 1,521 1,587 
Unamortized loss on reacqued debt (1) 209 227 

Total Regulatory Assets $16,101 $19,264 

587 

Liabilities 
Tax habhhes $ 876 $ 991 
Cost of removal 8,800 8,256 
Storm reserve habhhes 1,636 1,536 
Over-recovery of fuel costs 3,656 
Over-recovery of conservahon 355 24 
Over-earrugs habhty (4) 722 700 

Total Regulatory Liabdities $16,045 $11,507 

Deferred development costs, unamortized piping and  conversion costs, and unamortized loss on reacqulred debt 
are included in deferred charges in the coiisohdated balance sheets 
( 2 )  

The Company has included the amount due from customers as a regulatory asset for enwonmenta l  costs. The 
FPSC authorized recovery of these envronmental  costs from customers over 20 years 
(3) 

The FPSC has authorized the Company to recover storm damages incurred in 2004 in their natural gas 
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operations. Recovery of these costs from customers over 30 months began November 2005. 

The Company originally estimated the 2005 over-earnings for regulated natural gas operations a t  $700,000. In 
2006 the estimate was reduced to $650,000. The Company has estimated 2006 over-earnings for regulated natural gas 
operations of $72,000. The Company has recorded these liabilities which reduced revenues. The FPSC determines the 
disposition of over-earnings with alternatives that include refunding to customers, funding storm damage or 
environmental reserves: or reducing any depreciation reserve deficiency. 

(4) 

(5) 

Statement 158 a t  December 31, 2006 resulted in a regulatory asset for the portion of the loss of $587,000 to be recovered 
in future rate proceedings. 
(6) 

these over five years according to a FPSC order in the November 2005 fuel hearings. 

The base revenue rates for regulated segments are determined by the FPSC and remain constant until a request for an 
increase is filed and approved by the FPSC or the FPSC orders the Company t o  reduce their rates. For the Company to  
recover increased costs kom the effects of inflation and construction expenditures for regulated segments, a request for 
an increase in base revenues would be required. Separate filings would be required for the electric and natural gas 
segments. The Company is currently seeking rate relief for electric storm preparedness initiatives required in 2007. 

The actuarial valuation of the retirement plan obligations has been completed and the recognition provisions of 

The Company has deferred certain regulatory fuel related costs and as of January 2006 has been amortizing 

F. Derivatives 
None of the Company’s gas or electric contracts are accounted for using the fair value method of accounting. All material 
contracts that  meet the definition of derivative instruments are considered “normal purchases and sales” under SFAS 
No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities”. 

G. Revenue Recognition 
The Company’s revenues consist of base revenues, fuel adjustment charges, conservation charges and the pass-through 
of certain governmental imposed taxes based on revenues. 

The FPSC approves base revenue rates that  are intended to permit a specified rate of return on investment and limits 
the maximum amount of earnings of regulated operations. Fuel adjustment charges, conservation charges and the 
pass-through of certain governmental imposed taxes based on revenues are approved by the FPSC to  allow recovery of 
fuel, conservation and revenue based taxes from the Company’s customers. Any over or under-recovery of these expense 
items are deferred and subsequently refunded or collected in the following period. 

Annually, any earnings in excess of this maximum amount permitted in the base rates are accrued for as an  over- 
earnings liability and revenues are reduced an equivalent amount. The calculations supporting these liabhties are 
complex and involve a variety of projections and estimates before the ultimate settlement of such obligations. The FPSC 
determines the disposition of any over-earnings with alternatives that include refunding to customers, funding storm 
damage or environmental reserves, or reducing any depreciation reserve deficiency. 

The Company bills utility customers on a monthly cycle basis; however, the billing cycle periods for most customers do 
not coincide with the accounting periods used for financial reporting. The Company accrues estimated revenue for gas 
and electric customers on usage not yet billed for the accounting period. Determination of unbilled revenue relies on the 
use of estimates, fuel purchases and historical data. 

H. Allowance for Doubtful Accounts  
The Company records an allowance for doubtful accounts based on historical information and trended current economic 
conditions. The following is a summary of the activity in Allowance for Doubtful Accounts for the years ending 
December 31: 

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts 
(Dollars in thousands) 

Balance at Provisions to Bad Balance a t  End 
Begmning of Year Wnte-ofh Debt Expense of Year 

2004 $ 180 320 409 $269 
2005 $269 356 359 $272 
2006 $272 466 623 $429 

I. Utility P lan t  a n d  Depreciat ion 
Utility plant is stated a t  original cost. The propane gas utility plant that has been acquired in acquisitions was stated 
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at f a x  market value when acquxed. Additions to u t h t y  plant include contracted services, dlrect labor, transportation 
and materials for additions. Units of property are removed from u t h t y  plant when retlred. Maintenance and repalrs of 
property and replacement and renewal of items determined not to  be units of property are charged to  operating 
expenses. Substantially all of the utllity plant and the shares of Flo-Gas Corporation collaterahze the Company’s first 
mortgage bonds 

Util i ty P l a n t  
(Dollars in thousands) 

Annual 
Composite 

Depreciation 
Plant Classification Rate 2006 2005 
Land $ 1,130 $ 1,124 
Buildmgs 
Distribution 
Transmission 
Equipment 
Furniture and Fixtures 
Work-in-Progress 

2.0% to 4.9% 6,991 6,862 
2.0% t o  8.6% 158,010 147,580 
2.2% to  3.8% 6,878 6,799 

2.0% to 20.0% 12,700 11,534 
4.8% to 20.0% 392 369 

2,867 5,010 
$ 188,968 $ 179,278 

Depreciation for the Company’s regulated segments is computed using the composite straight-hne method a t  rates 
prescribed by the FPSC for financial accounting purposes. Propane gas depreciation is computed using a composite 
straight-hne method at a n  average rate based on estimated average llfe of approximately 20-30 years. Such rates are 
based on estimated servlce hves of the various classes of property. Depreciation provisions on average depreciable 
property approximate 3.9% 111 2006, 3.9% in 2005 and 3.6% in 2004. 

J. I m p a c t  of Recen t  Accoun t ing  S t a n d a r d s  

Financial Accounting Standard Board Interpretation No. 48 
In  June 2006, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes (FIN 48). The 
interpretation clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in an  entity’s financial statements in 
accordance with SFAS No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes. The interpretation prescribes a recognition threshold and 
measurement attribute for the financial statement recognition and measurement of a tax position taken or expected to 
be taken in a tax return. FIN 48 also provides guidance on de-recognition, measurement, classification, interest and 
penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclosure and transition. This interpretation is effective for calendar years 
beginning January 1, 2007. 

We have performed a n  analysis of tax positions taken and  expected to be taken on the tax returns and assessed the 
technical merits of each ta.. position-by relying on legislation, statutes, common legislative intent, regulations, rulings 
and case law and determined that the Company has no material uncertain tax positions. Additionally, the IRS 
concluded a n  audit of the 2002 and 2003 tax years in September of 2005. 

In February of 2007, the IRS informed us that it selected our 2003 and 2004 tax years for examination. As our tax 
positions have remained consistent with those from the previously audited tax years, we are not expectiiig any material 
adverse findings as the result of the impending IRS a u h t .  

Based on the aforementioned, we believe that the adoption of FASB Interpretation No. 48 will not have a material 
impact on our financial condition or  results of operations. 

Financial Accounting Standard No. 157 
In September 2006, the FASB issued Statement No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements”. This Statement clarifies fair 
value as the market value received to sell an  asset or paid to  transfer a Liability, that  is, the exit value, and applies to 
any assets or Liabilities that  require recurring determination of fair value. The measurement includes any applicable 
risk factors and does not include any adjustment for volume. This Statement is effective for financial statements issued 
for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007 and  interim periods within. The Company expects t o  adopt SFAS No. 
157 effective January 1, 2008. The Company does not believe adoption of this Statement wiU have a material impact on 
our financial condition or  results of operation. 

Financial Accounting Standard No. 158 
In September 2006, the FASB issued Statement No. 158, “Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and  Other 
Postretirement Plans”. Statement 158 requires the Company to show the funded status of its pension and  retiree health 
care plans as a prepaid asset or accrued liability, and to show the net deferred and unrecognized gains and  losses 
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related to  the retirement plans, net of tax, as par t  of accumulated other comprehensive income in shareholders’ equity. 
Previously, the net deferred and unrecognized gains and losses were netted in  the prepaid asset or accrued liability 

recorded for the retirement plans. The Company adopted the  recognition provisions of Statement 158, a s  required, a t  
December 31, 2006. 

The Company uses December 31 a s  the measurement date to measure the  assets and obligations of its retirement plans. 
Statement 158 will also require the Company to use December 31 as the measurement date no later than  fiscal years 

ending after December 15, 2008. The Company currently uses this date as the measurement date, and has used it for 
all periods presented. 

The actuarial valuation of the retirement plan obligations has  been completed and  the recognition provisions of 
Statement 158 at December 31, 2006 resulted in a n  additional liability for retirement plans. The tax on the non- 
regulated portion of this liability has been recorded a s  a deferred income tax asset. As an  offset, the regulatory portion 
of this Liability has been deferred a s  a regulatory asset-retirement plans to be recovered in future rate proceedings and 
the remaining expense from recording the liability has been included in other comprehensive income. The fair value of 
retirement plan assets and  obligations are subject to  change based on market fluctuations. The table below summarizes 
the effects to  our financial statements. 

FASB 158 Implementation Summary 
(Dollars in thousands) 

December 31, 2006 
Before 

Application of After Apphcation 
SFAS 158 Adlustment of SFAS 158 

Assets: 
Other regulatory assets- retrement plans $ -  $587 $587 

L a b i k e s  and Equity: 
Accumulated other comprehensive mcome/(loss) (103) (103) 
Other accruals and payables 2,034 151 2,185 
Long term mechcal and pension reserve 4,129 602 4,731 
Deferred mcome taxes 16,167 (63) lG, 104 

S t a f f  Accounting Bulletin No. 108 
In September 2006, the SEC issued Staff Accounting Bulletin (SAB) No. 108 “Considering the Effects of Prior Year 
Misstatements when Quantifying Misstatements in Current Year Financial Statements”. SAJ3 108 requires tha t  public 
companies utilize a “dual-approach to assessing the quantitative effects of financial misstatements. This dual approach 
includes a n  assessment from both an  income statement and  a balance sheet focus. The guidance in SAB 108 must be 
applied to annual financial statements for fiscal years ending after November 15, 2006. The Company has adopted SAJ3 
No.108 and  there has not been any impact on our consolidated financial position or results of operations as the result of 
this adoption. 

2.. Goodwill  a n d  In t ang ib le  Asse ts  
I n  accordance with SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets”, the Company does not amortize goodwill o r  
intangibles with indefinite lives. The Company periodically tests the applicable reporting segments, natural  gas and 
propane gas, for impairment. In  the event a segment becomes impaired, the Company would write down the associated 
goodwill and  intangible assets to fair value. The impairment tests performed in 2005 and 2006 showed no impairment 
for either reporting segment. 

Goodwill associated with the Company’s acquisitions is identified a s  a separate line item on the consolidated balance 
sheet and  consists of $1.9 million in the propane gas segment and  $500,000 in the natural gas segment. 

Intangible assets associated with the Company’s acquisitions a n d  software have been identified as a separate line item 
on the balance sheet. Summaries of those intangible assets at December 31 are as follows: 

Intangible Assets  
(Dollars in thousands) 

Customer distribution rights ( Indehi te  Me) 
Customer relationships (Indefbite life) 
Software 
Non-compete agreement (Five year life) 
Accumulated amortization 
Total intangible assets, net of amortization 

(Five to nine year life) 

2006 2005 
$ 1,900 $1,900 

900 900 
3,122 2,971 

35 
(1,5 17) ( 1,4 15) 
$4,405 $4,391 
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The 2006 amortization expense of computer software is approximately $300,000. The Company expects the amortization 
expense of computer software to be approximately $300,000 annually over the nest five years, with the current level of 
software investment. The non-compete agreements explred in 2006. 

3. Over-earnings-Natural Gas 
The FPSC approves rates that  are intended to  permit a specified rate of return on investment and hmits the maximum 
amount of earnings of regulated operations. The Company has agreed with the FPSC staff to limit the earned return on 
equity for regulated natural  gas and electric operations. 

The Company estimated 2005 over-earnings for regulated natural gas operations of $700,000. The 2005 over-earnings 
estimate was revised in 2006 to be $650,000. The Company estimated 2006 over-earnings for regulated natural gas 
operations of $72,000. These liabilities have been included in the over-earnings liability on the Company’s balance sheet. 
The calculations supporting these liabilities are complex and involve a variety of projections and estimates before the 
ultimate settlement of such obligations. 

The Company feels the estimates of the 2005 and 2006 over-earnings liabilities are accurate, but the amounts could 
change upon the FPSC finalization and review of earnings expected in 2007 and 2008. The FPSC determines the 
disposition of over-earnings with alternatives tha t  include refunding to  customers, increasing storm damage or 
environmental reserves or reducing any depreciation reserve deficiency. 

4. Storm Reserves 
As of December 31, 2006, the electric segment storm reserve was approxlmately $1.6 mdlion. Since the last order on the 
1999 hsposition of electric over-earnings, the FPSC has allowed the Company the flexibdity of automatically applymg 
the electric over-earnings to the storm damage reserves each year since 1999 and allowing additional storm damage 
accruals up t o  a cap of $2.9 mdhon. In 2006, 2005 and 2004 there were no electric over-earnings and accordingly no 
adhtional over-earnings amounts were added t o  the storm damage reserves. 

In October 2005, the FPSC approved recovery of 2004 natural  gas segment storm costs plus interest and revenue taxes 
over a 30-month period beginning November 2005. The Company deferred storm costs as a regulatory asset due from 
customers on the balance sheet. As of December 31, 2006, the unrecovered amount of natural gas regulatory asset 
relating t o  storm costs was $270,000. 

The Company has requested tha t  the FPSC allow 2005 over-earnings in natural gas to be used to recover the regulatory 
asset -storm and discontinue this storm surchaxge. As part of this same request, the Company has  also asked the FPSC 
t o  allow any excess over-earnings amount to  provide additional funds for the  “regulatory liability- storm reserve” for 
natural gas. We expect the FPSC to  rule on this request during 2007. 

In 2005, the FPSC approved applying 2002 natural  gas over-earnings of $118,000 to the storm reserve to  cover future 
storm costs. 

5. Income Taxes 
Deferred income taxes are provlded on all significant temporary hfferences between the financial statements and tax 
basis of assets and l iabkties a t  currently enacted tax rates. Investment tax credits have been deferred and are 
amortized based upon the average useful life of the related property in accordance with the rate treatment. 

A. Income Taxes related to Deferred Gain on Water Sale 
On March 27, 2003, the Company sold substantially all of its assets of the water division to  the City of Fernandina 
Beach. The sale was made pursuant to a “threat of condemnation” during the fourth quarter of 2002. For tax purposes 
the Company elected to defer the gain on the sale of the assets pursuant to Code Section 1033 of the Internal Revenue 
Code of 1986 (IRC). Section 1033 allows non-recognition of gain if property is disposed a s  a result of threat of 
condemnation and property that is similar or  related in service or use is purchased to  replace the disposed property. To 
qualify, the replacement property must be purchased witlun the replacement period, which begins on the earlier of date 
of disposition (March 27,  2003) or  date of threat of condemnation (December 31, 2002) and  ending two years after the 
close of the year of sale (December 31, 2005). For real property, the replacement period is extended to three years 
(December 31, 2006). 

The Company purchased property that is similar o r  related in service or use within the replacement periods with the 
exception of the intangible assets. During the IRS audit i n  2005, the IRS dmallowed a portion, approximately $900,000 
of the deferral relating to the intangible assets, since replacement was no longer expected. 

A $2.9 million estimated tax payment was made in 2003 related to the gain on the  sale of the water division. It was 
subsequently determined that the income tax would be deferred. The Company applied for a refund and received $3.9 
million in July 2004, which included other estimated tax overpayments. 
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B. Provision for Income Taxes 
The provision (benefit) for income taxes consists of the following: 

(Dollars in thousands) 

Current payable 
Federal 
State 

Deferred 
Federal 
State 

Current - net 

Deferred - net 
Investment tax credlt 
Total income taxes 

Years ended December 31, 
2006 2005 

$ 3,652 $ 2,150 
664 370 

4,316 2,520 

(1,723) (143) 
(280) (9) 

(2,003) (152) 
(75) (81) 

2,287 $ 2,238 $ 

2004 

$ (566) . .  
(96) 

(662) 

2,003 
358 

2,361 
(84) 

$ 1,615 

C. Effective Tax Rate  Reconciliation 
The difference between the effective income tax rate and the statutory federal income tax rate applied to pretax income 
is of continuing operations accounted for as follows: 

(Dollars in thousands) 

Federal income tax a t  statutory rate (34%) 
State income tax, net of federal benefit (5.5%) 
Investment tax credit 
Tax exempt interest 
Other 
Total provision for income taxes 

Years ended December 31, 
2006 2005 2004 

$ 2,178 $ 2,222 $ 1,771 
233 237 189 
(75) (8 1) (84) 
(85) (71) (94) 
(13) (20) (167) 

$ 2,238 $ 2,287 $ 1,615 

D. Deferred Income Taxes 

Temporary timing differences which produce deferred income taxes in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets are 
as follows: 

(Dollars in thousands) 
Deferred tax assets. 

Enwonmental 
Self insurance 
Storm reserve habllity 
Vacation pay 
Other deferred credlts 
Allowance for uncollechble accounts receivable 
General habhty 
Rate refund 
Pension 
Undedover-recovery of conservation costs 
Other 

Total deferred tax assets 
Deferred tax habhties: 

Utlllty plant related 
Deductible mtangbles 
Under-recovery of fuel costs 
Rate case expense 
Loss on reacqwed debt 
Other 

Total deferred tax habhties 
Net deferred mcome taxes habkties 

Years ended December 31, 
2006 2005 

$ 2,063 $ 1,932 
774 731 
509 408 
357 320 

15 61 
162 103 
68 111 

271 263 
789 286 
134 9 
37 37 

5,179 4,261 

20,274 20,319 
696 577 
643 1,704 
138 204 
79 85 
32 6 

21,862 22,895 
$ 16,683 $ 18,634 

Deferred tax liabilities included in the consolidated balance sheets are as follows: 

(Dollars in thousands) 2006 2005 
Deferred income tax - current $ 579 $ 1,066 
Deferred income tax - long term 16,104 17,568 

, 
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Net deferred income tax liabhties $ 16,683 $ 18,634 

E. IRS Aud i t  
The IRS has informed us that it has selected our 2003 and 2004 tax returns for examination. Management does not 
expect any material adjustments from the audit but the effects, if any, that result from the final resolution of this IRS 
audit will be recorded when they become known and estimable. The Company expects the audit will be completed 
before the end of 2007. 

The IRS completed an  audit in 2005 of the Company’s 2002 and 2003 federal income tax returns. The audit resulted in a 
current income tax payable amount of $361,000 due to adjustments to depreciation, reserve accounts and recognition of 
a portion of the water sale gain that was previously deferred. This amount was partially offset by $285,000 in deferred 
tax liabilities previously established. 

6. Capi ta l iza t ion  

A. Stock Dividend 
On July 25, 2005 a three-for-two stock split in the  form of a stock dividend was issued t o  the shareholders of record on 
July 15, 2005. All common share information has  been restated to  reflect the stock split for all periods presented. 

B. Common Shares Rese rved  
The Company has 3,533,352 authorized but unissued shares and 160,349 treasury shares as of December 31, 2006. The 
Company has reserved the following common shares for issuance as of December 31, 2006: 

Dividend Reinvestiiient Plan 
Employee Stock Purchase Plan 
Board Coinpensation Plan 

54,071 
52,035 
20,714 

C. P re fe r r ed  S tock  
The Company has 6,000 shares of 4 % %  Series A preferred stock $100 par value authorized for issuance of which 6,000 
were issued and outstanding at December 31, 2006. The preferred stock is included in stockholders’ equity on the 
balance sheet. 

The Company also has 5,000, 4 %% Series B preferred stock $100 par value authorized for issuance none of which has 
been issued. 

The Company also has 32,500, $1.12 Convertible Preference stock, $20 par value and  $22 redemption price, authorized 
for issuance none of which has been issued. 

D. Div idend Res t r ic t ion  
The Company’s Fifteenth Supplemental Indenture of Mortgage and Deed of Trust restricts the amount that is avallable 
for cash dividends. At December 31, 2006, approximately $9 million of retained earnings were fkee of such restriction 
and therefore available for the payment of dividends. The line of credit agreement contains covenants that, if violated, 
could restrict or prevent the payment of dividends. At December 31, 2006 the Company is not in violation of these 
covenants. 

E. T r e a s u r y  Shares 
In prior years, common shares resulting from stock dividends have been allocated to common shares held as treasury 
shares. Treasury shares are not eligible t o  receive such allocations. Some of these treasury shares were subsequently 
reissued, resulting in an  overstatement of additional paid-in capital. Accordingly, the Company has restated all periods 
presented to  reflect the correct number of treasury shares and the  value of treasury shares and additional paid-in 
capital a t  each year-end. As the adjustment is a reallocation of amounts between treasury stock and additional paid-in 
capital, there is no effect on net income, earnings per common share or  total stockholders’ equity in any period 
presented. 

F. Employee  Stock P u r c h a s e  Plan 
The Company’s Employee Stock Purchase Plan offers common stock at a discount to qualfied employees. 

G. Div idend Re inves tmen t  P l a n  
The Company’s Dividend Reinvestment Plan is offered to all Company shareholders and allows the shareholder to 
reinvest hvidends received and purchase additional shares without a fee. 

7 .  Long- te rm Deb t  
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The Company issued its Fourteenth Series of F P U s  First Mortgage Bond on September 27, 2001 in the aggregate 
principal amount of $15 mihon  a s  security for the 6.85% Secured Insured Quarterly Notes, due October 1, 2031 (I& 
Notes). Interest on the pledged bond accrues a t  the annual rate of 6.85% payable quarterly in arrears on January 1, 
April 1, July 1 and October 1 of each year beginning January  1, 2002. 

The Company issued $14 million of Palm Beach County municipal bonds (Industrial Development Revenue Bonds) on 
November 14, 2001 to  finance development in  the area. The interest ra te  on the thirty-year callable bonds is 4.90%. 
The bond proceeds were restricted a n d  held in t rus t  until construction expenditures were actually incurred by the 
Company. In  2002 the remaining $8 million was drawn from the restricted funds held by the trustee. 

In  1992, the Company issued its First Mortgage Bond 9.08% Series i n  the  amount of $8 million. The thirty-year bond is 
due in June  2022. 

The Company issued two of its Twelfth Series First Mortgage bond series on May 1, 1988; the 9.57% Series due 2018 in 
the amount of $10 million and 10.03% Series due 2018 in the amount of $5.5 million. These two issuances require 
sinking fund payments of $909,000 and  $500,000 respectively, beginning in 2008. 

Long-term debt on the balance sheet has been reduced for unamortized debt discount. The unamortized debt discount a t  
December 31 included in long-term debt on the balance sheet is $1.8 million in 2006 and  $1.9 million in 2005. 

Annual Maturities of Long-Term Debt 
(Dollars in thousands) 

Total 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 Thereafter 
Long-term Debt $52,500 - $1,409 $1,409 $1,409 $1,409 $ 46,864 

8. Notes  Payab le  
In  2004, FPU entered into a n  amended and restated loan agreement that allows the Company to increase the line of 
credit upon 30 days notice by the Company to a maximum of $20 million. In 2006 the  agreement was renewed with a n  
expiration date of July 1, 2008. We have not exercised our option to  increase the line of credit limit which is currently a t  
$12 milhon with an  outstanding balance of $3.5 million and a remaining amount available of $8.5 million. The 
Company reserves $1 million of the line of credit to cover expenses for any  major storm repairs in its Northwest Florida 
division. An additional $250,000 of the line of credit is reserved for a 'letter of credit' insuring our propane facilities. 

The average interest rates for the line of credit were as follows as of December 31: 

Year Rate 
2006 6.2% 
2005 5.3% 
2004 3.3% 

9. F a i r  Va lue  of  Financ ia l  Instruments 
The carrying amounts reported in the  balance sheet for investments held in escrow for environmental costs, notes 
payable, taxes accrued and other accrued liabilities approximate fair value. The fair value of long-term debt excluding 
the unamortized debt discount is estimated by discounting the future cash flows of each issuance a t  rates currently 
offered to the Company for similar debt instruments of comparable maturities. The values a t  December 31 are shown 
below. 

Carrying Approximate Fair  Carrying Approximate Fair  
Amounts Value Amounts Value (DoLhs in thousands) 

Long-term debt $ 52,500 $63,000 $52,500 
............................. ~ ......-_..... ~ ............................ ~ ................................................................................................. 

$63,000 

10. Cont ingencies  

E n v i r o n m e n t a l  
The Company is subject to  federal and  state legislation with respect to  soil, groundwater and employee health and 
safety matters and to environmental regulations issued by the Florida Department of Environmental Protection 
(FDEP), the United States Environmental Protection Agency @PA) and other federal and state agencies. Except a s  
discussed below, the Company does not expect to incur material future expenditures for compliance with existing 
environmental laws and  regulations. 

(Dollars in thousands) 
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Site Range From Range To 
West Palm Beach $ 4,801 $ 18,027 
Sanford 7 10 7 10 
Pensacola and Other 110 110 

$ 5,621 $ 18,847 Total 
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The Company currently has $13.8 million reserved as an  environmental liability. The FPSC approved up to  $14 million 
for total recovery from insurance and rates based on the original 2005 projections as a basis for rate recovery. The 
Company has recovered a total of $5.5  million from insurance and rate recovery, net of costs incurred to  date. The 
remaining balance of $8.3 million is recorded as a regulatory asset. On October 18, 2004 the FPSC approved recovery of 
$9.1 million for environmental liabilities (the remaining amount to  be recovered is $8.3 million and is included on the 
balance sheet as "Other regulatory assets - environmental"). The amortization of this recovery and reduction t o  the  
regulatory asset began on January 1, 2005. The majority of environmental cash expenditures are expected t o  be 
incurred before 2010, bu t  may continue for another 10 years. 

West Palm Beuch Site 
The Company is currently evaluating remedial options t o  respond t o  environmental impacts to  soil and groundwater a t  
and in the immediate vicinity of a parcel of property owned by it in West Palm Beach, Florida upon which the Company 
previously operated a gasification plant. The Company entered into a Consent Order with the FDEP effective April 8, 
1991, that  requires the Company to delineate the extent of soil and groundwater impacts associated with the prior 
operation of the gasification plant and to  remediate such soil and groundwater impacts, if necessary. The Company 
completed the delineation of soil and  groundwater impacts a t  t h e  site in October 2006. An engineering consultant was 
retained to perform a feasibility study to evaluate appropriate remedies for the site. The feasibility study was 
transmitted to FDEP on November 30, 2006. 

The feasibility study evaluated a wide range of remedial alternatives based on criteria provided by applicable laws and 
regulations. The total costs for the remedies evaluated in the feasibility study ranged from a low of $2.8 milhon to a h g h  
of $54.6 million. Based on  the likely acceptability of proven remedial technologies described in the feasibility study and 
implemented a t  similar sites, consultingiremediation costs to  address the impacts now characterized a t  the West Palm 
Beach site are projected t o  range &om $4.6 million to  $17.9 million. This range of costs covers such remedies as in situ 
solidification for deeper soil impacts, excavatioii of superficial soil impacts, installation of a barrier wall with a 
permeable biotreatment zone (PBZ), monitored natural attenuation of dissolved impacts in groundwater "A) or some 
combination of these remedies. The feasibility study proposed a remedy of superficial soil excavation, and installation of 
a hanging barrier wall with PBZ and MNA, the cost of which is projected to  range from $4.6 million to  $9.9 million. 

Prior to FDEP's approval of a final remedy for the site, the Company is unable to determine, to  a reasonable degree of 
certainty, the complete extent or  cost of remedial action tha t  may be required. As of December 31, 2006, and subject to 
the limitations described above, remediation costs (including attorneys' fees and costs) for this site are projected t o  
range from approximately $4.8 million to  $18 million. 

Sanford Site 
The Company owns a parcel of property located in Sanford, Florida, upon which a gasification plant was operated prior 
t o  its acquisition of the  property. Following discovery of soil and groundwater impacts on the property, the Company has 
participated with four  former owners and operators of the gasiiication plant in the funding of numerous investigations of 
the extent of the impacts and the identscation of an  appropriate remedy. On or about March 25, 1998, the Company 
executed an  Administrative Order on Consent (AOC) with the four former owners and  operators (collectively, the Group) 
and the EPA that obligated the Group to  implement a Remedial InvestigationiFeasibility Study (RI/FS) and to  pay 
EPA's past and future oversight costs. The Group also entered into a Participation Agreement and an  Escrow 
Agreement on or about April 13, 1998 (WFS Participation Agreement). Work under the  RI/FS AOC and R I F S  
Participation Agreement is now complete and the Company has no further obligations under either document. 

In late September 2006, EPA sent a Special Notice Letter to the Company, notifying the Company of EPA's selection of a 
final remedy for OU1 (soils), OU2 (groundwater), and OU3 (sediments), and giving the Company and the other Group 
members sixty (60) days within which to submit a "good faith offer" to EPA to provide for implementation of the selected 
remedies. The Special Notice Letter included an  Amended Record of Decision (ROD) for OU1 (the ROD for OU1 was 
amended to  account for a signifcant increase in the volume of off-site soil impacts and  a change in the selected remedy), 
the original ROD for OU2, and a ROD for OU3. The total estimated remediation costs for the Sanford Gasification Plant 
Site are now projected to be $12.5 milhon. On November 30, 2006, the Company and  the Group submitted to EPA a good 
faith offer to implement the approved remedies a s  set forth in the RODS for OU1 through OU3. 

In January, the Company along with the other members of the Group signed a Third Participation Agreement, which 
provides for funding the remediation work specified in the  RODS for OU1 through OU3 and supercedes and replaces the 
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Second Participation Agreement. The Company's share of remediation costs under the  Third Participation Agreement is 
set a t  5% of a maximum of $13 million, or $650,000. At present, it is not anticipated that the total cost of remediation 
will exceed $13 million. If it does, the Group members have agreed to negotiate i n  good faith t o  allocate the excess costs 
at such time tha t  it reasonably appears that  the total remediation costs will exceed $13 million. In any such event, the 
Company does not expect our share of such additional costs to  be greater than 5%; and its share of such additional costs 
may be less than  5%. 

The Company's future legal costs and  expenses and i ts  share future remediation expenses for this site are currently 
projected to be approximately $710,000. 

Pensacola Site 
The Company is the prior ownerloperator of the former Pensacola gasification plant, located in Pensacola, Florida. 
Following notification on October 5 ,  1990 tha t  FDEP had  determined tha t  the Company was one of several responsible 
parties for any environmental impacts associated with the former gasification plant site, the Company entered into cost 
sharing agreements with three other responsible parties providing for the  funding of certain contamination assessment 
activities at the site. 

Following field investigations performed on behalf of the responsible parties, on J U ~ Y  16, 1997, FDEP approved a final 
remedy for the site t ha t  provides for annual sampling of selected monitoring wells. Such annual sampling has  been 
undertaken a t  the site since 1995. The Company's share of these costs is less than $2,000 annually or a total of $27,000. 

In  March 1999, EPA requested site access in order to undertake a n  Expanded Site Inspection (ESI). The ESI was 
completed by EPAs  contractor i n  1999 and a n  ESI Report was transmitted t o  the Company in January 2000. The ESI 
Report recommends additional work a t  the site. The responsible parties met with FDEP on February 7, 2000 to  discuss 
EPA's plans for the site. In February 2000, EPA indicated preliminarily tha t  it will defer management of the site t o  
FDEP; however, as of December 31, 2006, the Company has  not received any written confirmation from EPA or FDEP 
regarding this matter. Prior to receipt of EPA's written determination regarding site management, the Company is 
unable t o  determine whether additional field work or site remediation will be required by EPA and, d so, the scope or 
costs of such work. 

Key West Site 
From 1927 to 1935, the Company owned and operated a gasification plant in Key West, Florida. The plant discontinued 
operations in  the  late 1940s; the  property on which the plant was located is currently used for a propane gas distribution 
business. In March 1993, a Preliminary Contamination Assessment Report (€'CAR) was prepared by a consultant jointly 
retained by the Company and the current site owner and  was delivered t o  FDEP. The PCAR reported tha t  very limited 
soil and groundwater impacts were present a t  the site. By letter dated December 20, 1993, FDEP notified the Company 
that the site did not warrant further "CERCL4 consideration and a Site Evaluation Accomplished disposition is 
recommended." FDEP then referred the matter t o  its Marathon office for consideration of whether additional work 
would be requlred by FDEP's district office under Florida law. As of December 31, 2006, the Company has received no 
further communication from FDEP with respect to the site. At this time, we are unable to  determine whether additional 
fieldwork will be r equred  by FDEP and, if so, the scope or costs of such work. I n  1999, the Company received a n  
estimate fiom its consultant that additional costs to assess and remediate the reported impacts would be approximately 
$166,000. Assuming the current owner shared in such costs according to the allocation agreed upon by the parties for 
the PCAR, the  Company's share would be approximately $83,000. 

11. Commi tmen t s  

A. General 
To ensure a reliable supply of electric and natural gas at competitive prices, the Company has entered into long-term 
purchase and transportation contracts with various suppliers and  producers, which expire a t  various dates through 
2015. Purchase prices under these contracts are determined by formulas either based on market prices or a t  fixed 
prices. At December 31, 2006, the Company has firm purchase and transportation commitments adequate to supply its 
expected future sales requirements. The Company is committed to pay demand or similar fixed charges of 
approximately $37.8 milLon during 2007 related to gas purchase agreements. Substantially all costs incurred under the 
electric and  gas purchase agreements are recoverable from customers through fuel adjustment clause mechanisms. 

B. Operating Leases 
The Company's total operating lease obligation is $352,000. The Company is leasing property from the  City of 
Fernandina Beach in our Northeast division. The Company is in  the process of renegotiating the terms of this lease and 
it may be able to  terminate this lease at a n  earlier date. The Company leases a n  appliance showroom in the same 
division for approximately $35:000 annually. The Company also has other operating lease agreements with various 
terms and  expiration dates. The following table shows the approximate future obligations under noncancelable 
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agreements. 

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 
Operatmg Lease Obligations $161,000 $116,000 $47,000 $38,000 $ -  

12. Employee  Benef i t  P l ans  

The actuarial valuation of the retirement plan obligations has been completed and the recognition provisions of 
Statement 158 a t  December 31, 2006 resulted in a n  additional liability for retirement plans, pension plan and retirees 
medical plan. See Footnote lJ, Impact of Recent Accounting Standards, Financial Accounting Standard 158 for a 
summary of the impact to our financial statements. 

A. Pens ion  Plan 
The Company sponsors a q u a u e d  defined benefit pension plan for non-union employees that were hired before January 
1, 2005 and for unionized employees tha t  work under one of the six Company union contracts and were hired before 
their respective contract dates in 2005. 

The following tables provide a reconciliation of the changes in the plan's benefit obligations and fair value of assets over 
the 3-year period ending December 31, 2006 and a statement of the funded status as of December 31, of all three years: 

Benefit Obligations and Funded Status 
Years Ended December 31, 

2006 2005 2004 

(1) Change III Projected Benefit Obhgahon 
Projected Benefit Obhgation 

(a) $36,349,925 $34,926,383 $31,540,942 a t  the Begmmng of the Year 
1,084,564 Service Cost 1,225,495 1,195,723 

2,160,719 2,000,099 1,940,122 
(b) 

Interest Cost 
Actuarial (Gam) or Loss 541,865 (842,777) 1,708,132 

(4 
(1,529,258) (1,514,341) (1,347,377) 

(4 
Benefits Paid 

584,838 
(e) 
if, Change III Plan Provlsions 
\ ,  

(g) Curta;lment (97,858) 

$38,650,888 (h) $36,349,925 $34,926,383 
Projected Benefit Obligation 
a t  the End of the Year 

ii) Accumulated Benefit 

$30,518,393 
Obligation a t  the End of the 
Year $33,693,860 $3 1,966,5 13 

(2) Change m Plan Assets 
Fair Value of Plan Assets a t  

$3 1,08 1,063 
(a) 

the Begmnmg of the Year $32,936,666 $32,385,2 14 
Actual Return on Plan Assets 3,977,806 2,065,793 2,651,528 

(4 Benefits Paid (1,529,258) ( 1 3  14,341) (1,347,377) 
(b) 

(d) Employer Contributions 250,000 

$32,936,666 $32,385.214 $35,635,214 (e) 

$(3,015,674) $(3,413,259) $(2,541,169) 

Fair Value of Assets a t  the 
End of the Year 

Funded Status: @)(e) - (1)h) (3) 

Amounts Recognized in the Statement of Financial 
Position 

(a) Prepaid (Accrued) Benefit $(2,070,740) $(721,333) 
(4) Before Applying FAS 158 

$725,619 
cost 

(b) Net Asset (liabhty) $(2,070,740) $(721,333) $725,619 

(C) Charge to Accumulated Other 

Adjustments Caused by Applymg FAS 158 
(a) Increase in Net Asset $(944,934) NIA NIA 

Comprehensive Income: 
(5) 

, .  
(Liabhty): (3) - (4)(b) 
Increase in Charge to 207,885 
Accumulated Other 
Comprehensive Income: 

Regulatory Asset -retirement 

(b) 

(d Increase in Charge to 73'7,049 

NIA 

N/A 

NIA 

NIA 

plans 

(b)+(C) 
$ NIA NIA (d) Subtotal of Adjustments: (a)+ 

Amount Recognized in Statement of Financial Position 
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After applymg FAS 158 
(a) Net Asset (Liabihty) (4)(b) + $(3,015,674) 

co) 
(5)(a) 
Charge to Accumulated Other 
Comprehensive Income (4)(c) 
+ (5)(b) 

Plans (5) (c) 

$207,885 

( 4  Regulatory Asset-Retuement $737,049 

Net Asset (Liability) Recognized in the 
Statement of Financial Position 
After applylng FAS 158 

(a) Noncurrent Assets 

$(3,015,674) 
(b) 
(4 (Noncurrent Liabilities) 
(d) Total Net Asset (Liability): (a) $(3,015,674) 

(Current Liabihties) 

+ (b) + ( 4  

Amount Recognized in Accumulated Other 
Comprehensive Income 
And Regulatory Asset -Retirement Plans After 
applying FAS 158 
(a) Transition Obligation (Asset) 
(b) 
(C) Net (Gain) or Loss 
( 4  Total $944,934 

Prior Service Cost (Credit) $3,992,489 
(3,047,555) 

Weighted Average Assumption at End of Year 
(a) Discount Rate K O O %  
(b) Rate of Compensation 3.25% 

(4 Mortahty GAM 83 
Increase 

$(721,333) $725,6 19 

NIA 
NIA 
NIA 
NIA 

NIA 
NIA 
NIA 
NIA 

5.90% 
3.15% 

GAM 83 

NIA 
NIA 
NIA 
NIA 

NIA 
NIA 
NIA 
NIA 

5.75% 
3.00% 

GAM 83 

The following table provides the components of net  periodic benefit cost for the plans for fiscal years 2006, 2005 and 
2004: 

N e t  Periodic Pension Costs 
Years Ended December 31, 

2006 2005 2004 
$1,195,723 $1,084,564 (1) Semce  Cost $1,225,495 

1,940,122 (2) Interest Cost 2,160,719 2,000,099 
(3) Expected Return on Plan Assets (2,426,064) (2,485,985) (2,591,099) 

Amortization of Transition Obligation/ 
(4) (Asset) 
(5) Amortnakon of Prior Sernce Cost 737,115 
(6) Amorkzation of Net (Gam) or Lass 
(7) Total FAS 87 Net Penodx Pension Cost $1,697,265 
(8) FAS 88 Charges I (Crehts) 

(a) Curtallment (97,858) 
Total Net Penodx Pension Cost and  

(9) Comprehensive Income $1,599,407 
(10) Weighted Average Assumptions 

Discount Rate at BegLnning of 
(a) the Period 5.90% 

Expected Return on Plan Assets 8.50% 
Rate of Compensation Increase 3.15% 

(b) 
(c) 

737,115 

$1,446,952 

$1,446,952 

5.75% 
8.50% 
3.00% 

698,211 

$1,131,798 

$1,131,798 

6.25% 
8.50% 
3.50% 

Plan Asse ts  
Ta rge t  Pe rcen tage  of Plan 

Allocation Assets at December  31 
2007 9006 2005 2004 

69% 
Debt Securities 25%-40% 30% 32% 30% 

Plan Assets 
(a) E q u t y  Securities 40%-60% 68% 67% 

(4 Real Estate 5%-15% 0% 0% 0% 
@) 

Other 5%-15% 2% 1% 1% (4 
Total (e) 

( 1) 

100% 100% 100% 

Expected Retui-1% on Plan Assets 

8/28/2007 
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The expected rate of return on plan assets is 8 5%. The Company expects 8 5% to fall w i t h n  the 40 to  50 percent.de 
range of returns o n  investment portfohos with asset diversification similar t o  that  of the Pension Plan's target asset 
allocation. 

Investment  Policy and Strategy 
The Company has established and maintains an  investment policy designed to  achieve a long-term rate of return, 
including investment income and appreciation, sufficient to  meet the actuarial requirements of the Pension Plan. The 
Company seeks to  accomplish its return objectives by investing in a diversified portfolio of equity, fixed income and cash 
securities seeking a balance of growth and stability as well as an  adequate level of liquidity for pension distributions as 
they fall due. Plan assets are constrained such that no more than 10% of the portfolio will be invested in any one issue. 

( 1) Expected Contnbuhons for Fiscal Year Endmg December 31,2007 
(a) Expected Employer Contnbuhons 
@) Expected Employee Contributions 
Estunated Future Benefit Payments Reflectmg Expected Future Semce  
for the years endmg December 31, 
(a) 2007 
@) 2008 

. (4 2009 
(d) 2010 
(e) 2011 

Amount of Plan Assets Expected to be Returned t o  the Employer in the 

(2) 

(r) 2012 - 2016 

(3) Fiscal Year Endmg 12/31/07 

$250,000 

$1,756,069 
$1,839,843 
$1,975,656 
$2,092,003 
$2,182,628 

$13,040,794 

Other  Account ing  Items 
Years Ended December  31, 

2006 2005 2004 
Marlret-Related Value of Assets as of 
the Beginning of fiscal year 
Amount of Future Annual Benefits of 
Plan Participants Covered by 
Insurance Contracts Issued by the 
Employer or Related Parties 
Alternative Amortization Methods 
Used to Amortize 
(a) . Prior Service Cost 

@) LQss 
Average Future Service 
Employer Commitments to  Make 
Future Plan Amendments (that Serve 
as the Basis for the Employer's 
Accounting for the Plan) 
Description of Special or Contractual 
Termination Benefits Recognized 
During the Period 
Cost of Benefits Described in (6) 
Explanation of Any Significant 
Change in Benefit Obligation or Plan 
Assets not Otherwise Apparent in the 
Above Disclosures 

Unrecognized Net (Gain) or 

Measurement Date Used 

$29,290,131 

$ 0  

Straight h e  

Straight h e  
10.80 

None 

N/A 
N/A 

N/A 
December 31, 

2006 

$30,016,761 $31,222,154 

Straight h e  Straight Lme 

Straight h e  Straight Lme 
10.95 10.95 

None None 

NIA 
N/A 

N/A 
N/A 

NIA N/A 
December 31, December 3 1, 

2005 2004 

B. Medical Plan 
The Company sponsors a postretirement medical program. The medical plan is contributory with participants' 
contributions adjusted annually. The following tables provide required financial disclosures over the three-ye= period 
ended December 31, 2006: 

Benefit Obligations and Funded Status 
Fiscal Year Ending 

12/31/2006 12/31/2005 12/31/2004 

Change in Accumulated 
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Postretirement Benefit 
(1) Obhgation 

Accumulated 
Postretirement Benefit 
Obligation a t  the 

(a) Begmnlng of the Year 
Semce  Cost 
Interest Cost 

(-b) 
(4 
( 4  Actuarial (Gam) or Loss 
(e) Benefits Paid 

(D Pronsions 

(g) Contribuhons 

Change m Plan 

Plan Participant's 

Accumulated 
Postretirement Benefit 
Obligation at the End of 

(h) the Year 
(2) Change m Plan Assets 

F a u  Value of Plan Assets 
a t  the Beginning of the 

(a) Year 
(b) Benefits Paid 

( 4  Contribuhons 

(d) Contributions 

Employer 

Plan Participant's 

Fau Value of Assets 
a t  the End of the 

(e) Year 

(a) (e) - (l)(h) 

(3) Net Amount Recognlzed 
Funded Status: (2) 

Amounts Recognized in the 
Statement of Financial 
Position Before Applying 

(4) FAS 158 
Prepad  (Accrued) 

(a) Benefit Cost 

$2,343,583 
59,982 

105,483 
(568,755) 
(1 17,459) 

$1,925,254 $1,807,999 
100,054 70,300 
127,312 106,079 
282,812 32,646 

(135,166) (1 19,OO 5) 

43,317 27,235 42,519 

$1,925,254 $2,343,583 $1,865,353 

$ -  
(135,166) 

$ -  
(119,005) 

$ -  
(117,459) 

74,940 

42,519 

91,849 91,770 

43,317 27,235 

$ -  $ -  $ -  

$(1,925>254) $(2,343,583) $(1,865,353) 

(1,942,393) (1,763,980) (2,057,833) 
(Additional Liability 
due to an  Unfunded 

@) ABO) 
(4 Intangible Asset 

Net Asset 
(Liability): (a) + (b) 
+ ( 4  $(2,057,833) $f1,763,980) $(1,942,393) 
Charged to 
Accumulated Other 
Comprehensive 

(e) Income: 
Adjustments Caused by 

(5) App ly"  FAS 158 
Increase m Net 
Asset (Liability). (3) 

Increase UI charge to 
Accumulated Other 
Comprehensive 

Increase m charge to 
Regulatory Asset- 

Subtotal of 
Adjustments' (a) + 

(a) - (4)(d) $192,480 

0s) Income. (42,346) 

( 4  re t rement  plans (150,134) 

( 4  0s) + (4 $ -  
Amounts Recognized in the 
Statement of Financial 
Position After applying FAS 

(6) 158 
Net Asset 
(Liability) (4)(d) + 

Charge to 
Accumulated Other 
Comprehensive 

(4 (5)(a) 

NIA N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

NIA 

N/A 

NIA N/A 

(1,865,353) (1,942,393) (1,763,980) 
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Income: (4)(e) + (5) 

Charge to 
Regulatoiy Asset- 
Retirement Plans (5) 

@) (b) (42,346) 

(4 (C) (150,134) 
Net Asset (Liability) 
Recognized in the Statement 
of Financial Position After 

(a) Noncurrent Assets $ -  
(7) Applymg FAS 158 

co) (Current Labh t i e s )  (150,589) 

(4 Labf ihes)  (1,714,764) 
(Noncurrent 

Total Net Asset 
(Liability). (a) + (b) + 

(4 ( 4  $(1,865,353) 
Amounts Recogmzed in 
Accumulated Other 
Coinprehensive Income and 
Regulatory Asset After 

Transition 

Prior Semce  Cost 

(8) Applymg FAS 158 

(a) Obhgation (Asset) $ -  

(b) (Credrt) 

NIA 
NIA 

NIA 

NIA 
NIA 

NIA 

NIA NIA 

NIA 

N/A 

NIA 

NIA 
NIA 
NIA 

(4 Net (Gain) or Loss (192,480) 
(4 Total $( 192,480) 

NIA 
NIA 

Weighted Average 
Assumptions a t  the End of 

(a) Discount Rate 6.00% 
(9) the Year 

Rate of 
Compensation 

(b) Increase NIA 
(4 Mortahty GAM 8 3  
Assumed Health Care Cost 

(10) Trend Rates 
Health Care Cost 
Trend Rate 
Assumed for Next 
Year 11.50% 

(b) Ultlmate Rate 5.00% 
Year that the 
Ultiinate Rate is 

(a) 

(C) Reached 2014 

5.90% 5.75% 

N/A 
GAM 83 

NIA 
GAM 83 

9.00% 
5.00% 

10.00% 
5.00% 

2010 2010 

Net  Per iodic  Pos t r e t i r emen t  Benef i t  Cost 

Years  e n d e d  December  31, 
2006 2005 2004 

(1) Service Cost $59,982 $100,054 $70,300 
(2) Interest Cost 105,483 127,312 106.079 

Amortization of Transition 

Amortization of Prior Service Cost 
(3) Obligatiou/(Asset) 42,896 
(4) 
(5) Amortization of Net (Gain) or Loss (17,98 1) 
(6) Total Net Periodx Benefit Cost $190,380 
(7) Weighted Average Assumptions 

(a) Discount Rate 5.90% 

(b) Assets NIA 

(c) Increase NIA 
Assumed Health Care Cost Trend 

Expected Return on Plan 

Rate of Compensation 

(8) Rates 
Health Care Cost Trend Rate 

Current Year 

Year that the Ultimate Rate is 

(a) Assumed for 12.50% 

(b) Ultimate Rate 5.00% 

(c) Reached 2014 

42,896 42,896 

(8,666) 
$2 10,609 

6.25% 

$270,262 

5.75% 

NIA NIA 

NIA NIA 

12.00% 10.00% 

5.00% 

20 10 

5.00% 

2010 



Converted by EDGARwiz Page 44 of 52 

Expected Amort iza t ions  
Yea r s  ended December  31. 

2007 2006 2005 
Expected Amortizatxon of Transition 

Expected Amortizahon of Prior 

Expected Amortization of Net Loss 

Impact of One-Percentage-Point 

Assumed Health Care Cost Trend 
Increase Decrease  Rates 

(a) Interest Cost $20,533 $(17,8 12) 

(b) Benefit Obhgahon $203,809 $(179,005) 

(1) Obhgation (Asset) NIA NIA 

(2) Service Cost (Creht) NIA NIA 

(3) ( G o )  $(536) NIA N/A 

(9) Change in 

Effect on Semce  Cost + 

Effect on Postretirement 

Plan Assets 
T a r g e t  Percentage of Plan 

Allocation Assets at December  31 
2007 2006 2005 2004 

( 1) Plan Assets 
(a) Equity Securities N/A N/A NIA NIA 

Debt Securities N/A NIA NIA NIA 
( 4  Real Estate NIA NIA NIA N/A 
(b) 

Other N/A NIA NIA NIA 
NIA N/A NIA NIA 

( 4  
(e) Total 

(1) Expected Contnbutions for Fiscal Year Endnig 12/31/2007 
(a) Expected Employer Contnbutions $150,589 
(b) Expected Employee Contributions $48,832 
Estunated Future Benefit Payments Reflectmg Expected Future Service for the 

(2) Fiscal Year(s) Endmg 
Medicare Part-D 

T-1 Reunbursement Emdovee Emplover 
(a) 12/31/2007 $199,421 $0 $48,832 $150,589 

1213 112008 $143,659 $8,266 $36,130 $99,263 
(4 12/31/2009 $146,580 $8,749 $36,535 $10 1,296 

12/31/2010 $160,560 $9,504 $41,759 $109,297 
$138,570 (e) 12/31/2011 $199,158 1 $10,062 $51,049 

(D 12/3 1/20 16 $1,407,957 $61,062 $350,375 $996,520 
Amount of Plan Assets Expected to be Returned to the Employer in the Fiscal 

(b) 

(4 
12/31/2012 - 

(3) Year Endmg 12/31/07 $0 

O t h e r  Account ing  Items 
Years  Ended December  31, 

2006 2005 2004 

(1) Market-Related Value of Assets NIA NIA N/A 
Amount of Future Annual Benefits of Plan 
Participants Covered by Insurance 
Contracts Issued by the Employer or 

Alternative Amortization Methods Used to 

(a) Prior Service Cost Straight Line Straight Line Straight h e  
(b) Unrecognized Net (Gain) or Loss Straight Line Straight Line Straight h e  

Employer Commitments to Make Future 
Plan Amendments (that Serve as  the Basis 

Description of Special or Contractual 

(2) Related Parties 

(3) Amortize 

(4) Average Future Service 11.10 13.35 12.48 

(5) for the Employer’s Accounting for the Plan) None None None 
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Termination Benefits Recognized During 
(6) the Period NIA NIA NIA 
(7) Cost of Benefits Described in (G) NIA N/A NIA 
(8) Explanation of Any Significant Change in 

Benefit Obligation or Plan Assets not 
Otherwise Apparent in the Above 
Disclosures NIA NIA N/A 

(9) Measurement Date Used 2006 2005 2004 
December 31, December 31, December 31, 

Discount Rate Assumption 
The discount rate assumption used t o  determine the postretirement benefit obligations is based on current yield rates i n  
the double A bond market. The current year’s discount ra te  was selected using a method tha t  matches projected 
payouts from the plan with a zero-coupon double A bond yield curve. This yield curve was constructed from the 
underlying bond price and yield data collected as of the plan’s measurement date and is represented by a series of 
annualized, individual discount rates with durations ranging from six months to thirty years. Each discount rate in the 
curve was derived from a n  equal weighting of the double A or higher bond universe, apportioned into distinct maturity 
groups. These individual discount rates are then converted into a single equivalent d m o u n t  rate, which is then used for 
FAS discount purposes. To assure that the resulting rates can be achieved by a postretirement benefit plan, only bonds 
that satisfy certain criteria and are expected to remain available through the period of maturity of the plan benefits are 
used to develop the discount rate. Prior years’ discount ra te  assumptions were set based on investment yields available 
on double A, long-term corporate bonds. 

Actuarial Equivalent 
In determining “Actuarial Equivalence,” our plan’s actuary, Aon Consulting, proprietary prescription drug pricing tool; 
Aon Rx, was used. This tool allowed us to  determine the estimated Per Member Per Month (PMPM) prescription drug 
cost for both the Company plan and the Medxare plan. The two PMPM’s were adjusted for monthly retiree 
contributions. We assumed that 60% of the monthly combined medical and prescription drug retiree contribution for the 
Company plan applies towards prescription drugs. 

Vol u.ntary Prescription Drug Coverage 
Legislation enacted in December 2003 provides for the addition of voluntary prescription drug coverage under Medicare 
starting in  2006. The legislation also provides for a 25% tax-free subsidy for each quallfied covered retiree’s drug cost 
between certain thresholds if the employer’s coverage is at least actuarially equivalent to  the standard Medicare drug 
benefit. Based on the final regulations issued by the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services on January 21, 2005, 
we determined our prescription drug coverage of the Postretirement Medical Benefits plan to be actuarially equivalent 
to  Medicare Par t  D. 

C. Health P l a n  
In December 2003, the Company became fully insured for its employee and retiree’s medical insurance. Net health care 
benefits paid by the Company for active employees were approximately $1.7 million in 2006, $1.6 million in  2005 and 
$1.5 million in 2004, excluding administrative and stop-loss insurance. 

D. 401K P l a n  
The Company has discontinued eligibility t o  the defined benefit pension plan for all new hires, and replaced it with a 
new 401K match. 

For new hires not eligible for the defined benefit pension plan, we established a n  employer match to the employee’s 
contribution to their 401K plans. It provided for a company match of 50% for each dollar contributed by the employee, 
up to 6% of their salary, for a Company contribution of up to 3%. Beginning in 2007, for non-union employees the plan 
was enhanced to provide a company match of 100% for the first 2% of an  employee’s contribution, and a match of 50% 
for the next 4% of an employee’s contribution, for a total company match of up to  4%. This new enhanced match will be 
negotiated with our six union contracts during 2007, to  be effective on their respective contract date within 2007. The 
employees are eligible for the company match after six months of continuous service, with vesting of 100% after three 
years of continuous service. The expenses incurred in 2005 and 2006 relating t o  the Company’s 401K plan are not 
material. 

E. Employee  S tock  P u r c h a s e  P l a n  
The Company offers an employee stock purchase plan to substantially all of its employees. The plan offers a 15% 
discount on the Company’s stock a t  market price fixed six months prior to the date of purchase. The recorded stock 
compensation expense relating to  the Company’s employee stock purchase plan is not material. 
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13. Segment Information 

The Company is organized into two regulated business segments: natural gas and electric. and one non-regulated 
business segment, propane gas. There are no material inter-segment sales or transfers. 

Identifiable assets are those assets used in the Company’s operations in each business segment. Common assets are 
principally cash and overnight investments, deferred tax assets and common plant. 

Business segment information for 2006, 2005 and 2004 is summarized as follows: 

(Dollars in thousands) 
Revenues 

Natural gas 
Electric 
Propane gas 
Consohda ted 

Operating income, excluding 
income tax 

Natural gas 
Electnc 
Propane gas 
Consohdated 

Natural gas 
Electnc 
Propane gas 
Common 
Consohdated 

Natural gas 
Electric 
Propane gas 
Common 
Consohda ted 

Natural gas 
Electric 
Propane gas 
Common 
Consohdated 

Natural gas 
Electnc 
Propane gas 
Common 
Consohdated 

Identifiable assets 

Depreciation and amortization 

Construction expenditures 

Income tax  espense 

2006 

$ 71,139 
48,527 
14,727 

$ 134,393 

$ 6,  118 
3,053 
1,006 

10,177 $ 

$ 93,689 
52,251 
19,239 
15,734 

$ 180,913 

$ 4,095 
2,610 

720 
317 

7,742 $ 

$ 7,643 
3,184 
1,885 

404 
13,116 $ 

$ 1,336 
546 
110 
246 

2,238 $ 

2005 

$ 69,094 
47,450 
13,479 

$ 130,023 

$ 6,049 
3,502 
1,086 

$ 10,637 

$ 96,106 
51,317 
19,567 
15,676 

$ 182,666 

$ 3,928 
2,404 

621 
3 13 

7,266 $ 

$ 6,357 
3,775 
2,133 

176 
12,441 

$ 1,283 
666 
245 

93 
2,287 

$ 

$ 

2004 

$ 55,962 
42,910 

$ 110,039 
11,167 

$ 4,978 
3,353 

655 
8,986 $ 

$ 87,729 
48,687 
15,731 
18,356 

$ 170,503 

$ 2,752 
2,323 

560 
265 

$ 5,900 

$ 5,314 
6,793 
1,339 

285 
13.731 $ 

$ 843 
565 
130 
77 

$ 1,615 

14. Quarter ly  Financial Data  (Unaudited) 

The quarterly financial data presented below reflects the influence of seasonal weather conditions, the timing of rate 
increases and the migration of winter residents and tourists to  Central and South Florida during the winter season. 
Significant increases in the fourth quarter of 2005 expenses relate to  the performance of previously delayed 
expenditures fiom previous quarters. 

(Dollars in thousands, except per 
share amounts): 
2006 
Revenues 
Gross profit 
Operatmg mcome 
Earnlngs before mcome taxes 
Net Income 
Earnings per common share (basic 
and diluted): 
Contmuing operahons 

Second Fourth 
First Quarter Quarter Third Quarter * Quarter 

43,348 $ 29,878 $ 29,415 $ 31,752 
$ 14,135 $ 11,402 $ 10,867 $ 12,018 
$ 

2,321 $ 4,528 $ 2,065 $ 1,263 $ 
3,507 $ 1,162 $ 384 $ 1,354 

875 
$ 
$ 2,221 $ 738 $ 335 $ 

$ 0.37 $ 0.12 $ 0.05 $ 0.14 
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2005 

Revenues $ 35,438 $ 28,329 $ 29,190 $ 37,066 
Gross profit $ 13,619 $ 10,963 $ 10,374 $ 12,263 
Operatmg mcome $ 4,684 $ 2,215 $ 1,578 $ 2,160 
Earnmgs before mcome taxes $ 3,711 $ 1,205 $ 573 $ 1,046 
Net Income $ 2,353 $ 85 1 $ 260 $ 784 
Earnings per common share (basic 
and dduted), 
Contmumg operations $ 0.40 $ 0.14 $ 0.04 $ 0.13 

* The thmd quarter of 2006 has  been restated and revlsed for pension expense and mcome tax expense to reflect a correction of the valuahon 
of our pension habllity The pension hability and expense increased by $225,000 and the deferred tax expense and defemed tax habllity 
decreased by $85,000 in the thmd quarter of 2006. The following summary shows the effect on our financial statements. 

S u m m a r y  of Th i rd  Q u a r t e r  2006 Adjus tment  

(Dollars m thousands, except per share amounts): 
2006 
Revenues 
Gross profit 
Operatmg mcome 
Earnmgs before mcome taxes 
Net Income 
Earnmgs per common share (basic and &luted): 
Continumg operations 

Third 
Quarter Before 

Revision Adjustment 

$ 29,415 
$ 10,867 
$ 1,488 (225) 
$ 609 (225) 
$ 475 (140) 

$ 0.08 0 3 )  

Third Quarter 
After Revision 

$ 29,415 
$ 10,867 
$ 1,263 
$ 384 
$ 335 

$ 0.05 

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM 

To the Directors and Shareholders of FPU: 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and statements of capitalization of Florida Public 
Utilities Company and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Flo-Gas Corporation as of December 31, 2006 and 2005 and the 
related consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income, common shareholders' equity and cash flows for each 
of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2006. These financial statements are the responsibility of the 
Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an  opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United 
States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
fmancial statements are free of material misstatement. The Company is not required to have, nor were we engaged to  
perform, an  audit of its internal control over financial reporting. Our audits included consideration of internal control 
over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures tha t  are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for 
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control over financial reporting. 
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the 
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements and schedules, assessing the accounting principles used and 
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 
We believe tha t  our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to  above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of Florida Public Utilities Company and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Flo-Gas Corporation a t  
December 31, 2006 and 2005, and the results of its operation and  its cash flows for each of the three years in the period 
ended December 31, 2006, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

As discussed in Notes 1J and 12 t o  the consolidated financial statements, on December 31, 2006, the Company adopted 
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 155 "Employers' Accounting for Defined Benefit Pensions and Other 
Postretirement Benefit Plans." 

BDO Seidman, LLP 
Certified Public Accountants 
West Palm Beach, Florida 
March 16, 2007 
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I tem 9. Changes in  a n d  Disagreements with Accountants  on  Accounting and  Financial  Disclosure 

None 

Item 9A. Controls and  Procedures  

Disclosure Controls and  Procedures  
Our management carried out an evaluation, under the supervision and with the participation of our Chief Executive 
Officer and Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 
13a-l5(e) and 15d-l5(e) under the Exchange Act). Based upon that evaluation, the Chief Executive Officer and Chief 
Financial Officer concluded that, as of December 31, 2006, our disclosure controls and procedures were effective, in that 
they provide reasonable assurance that information required to  be disclosed by us in the reports that we file or submit 
under the Exchange Act are recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the 
SEC’s rules and forms. 

Changes in In te rna l  Control over Financial  Report ing 
No change in our internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Rules 13a-150 and 15d-l5(f) under the 
Exchange Act) occurred during the fiscal quarter ended December 31, 2006 that has materially affected, or is reasonably 
likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting. 

I tem 9B. Other  Information 

None 

PART I11 

I tem 10. Directors and  Executive Officers of t he  Regis t rant  

Information required by this item concerning directors and nominees of the Registrant will be included under the 
caption “Information About Nominees and Continuing Directors“ in the Registrant’s Proxy Statement for the 2007 
Annual Meeting of Shareholders (the “200‘7 Proxy Statement”) and is incorporated by reference herein. Information 
required by this item regarding the Audit Committee will be included under the caption “Board of Directors and 
Committees” in the 2007 Proxy Statement and is incorporated by reference herein. Information required by this Item 
regarding the Code of Ethics will be included under the caption “Code of Ethics” in the 2007 Proxy Statement and is 
incorporated by reference herein. Information required by this Item regarding compliance with Section 1G(a) of the 
Exchange Act will be set forth in the 2007 Proxy Statement under “Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting 
Compliance” and is incorporated by reference herein. Information required by this Item concerning executive officers is 
set out in Part I of this Form lO-K, above. 

I tem 11. Executive Compensation 

Information required by this Item concerning executive compensation is included under the captions ‘Board of Directors 
and Committees”, “Executive Compensation”, and “Compensation Committee Interlocks and Inside Participation” in the 
2007 Proxy Statement is incorporated by reference herein. 

I tem 12. 
Matters 

Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder 

Information required by this Item concerning the security ownership of certain of the Registrant‘s beneficial owners and 
management is included under the caption “Security Ownership of Management and Certain Beneficial Owners” in the 
2007 Proxy Statement and is incorporated by reference herein. See Item 5 above for equity compensation plan 
information, which is incorporated by reference herein. 

Item 13. Certain Relationships and  Related Transactions 

None. 

I tem 14. Principal  Accountant Fees and  Services 

Information required by this Item is set forth in the Registrant’s 2007 Proxy Statement under the caption “Principal 
Accountant Fees and Services” and is incorporated by reference herein. 
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PART IV 

I t e m  15. Exhibits, F inanc ia l  S t a t e m e n t  Schedu les  

(a) The following documents are filed as part of this report: 

(1) Financial Statements 
The following consolidated financial statements of the  Company are included herein and in the Registrant's 2006 
Annual Report to  Shareholders: 

Consolidated Statements of Income 
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income 
Consolidated Balance Sheets 
Consolidated Statements of Capitalization 
Consolidated Statements of Common Shareholders' Equity 
Consohdated Statements of Cash Flows 
Notes to  Consohdated Financial Statements 
Report of Independent Registered Pubhc Accounting Firm 

(2) Financial Statement Schedules 
The following valuation and quahfying accounts table is mcluded in Note l.H. herein and in the Registrant's 2006 
Annual Report to Shareholders: 

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts 

(3) Exhibits 

3(i) Amended Articles of Incorporation (Incorporated herein by reference as Exhibit 3(i) to  FPU's quarterly report on 
Form 10-Q for the period ended June 30, 2002. SEC File No. 1-10608) 

3(ii) Amended By-Laws (Incorporated herein by reference as Exhibit 3(ii) t o  FPU's quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the 
period ended June 30, 2002. SEC File No. 1-10608) 

4(a) Indenture of Mortgage and Deed of Trust of FPU dated as of September 1, 1942 (Incorporated by reference herein to 
Exhibit 7-A to Registration No. 2-6087) 

4(b) Fourteenth Supplemental Indenture dated September 1, 2001. (Incorporated by reference to  exhibit 4(b) on FPU's 
annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2001) 

4(c) Fifteenth Supplemental Indenture dated November 1, 2001. (Incorporated by reference to  exhibit 4(c) on FPU's 
annual report on Form 10-I( for the year ended December 3 1, 2001) 

10(a) First Amendment to Amended and Restated Loan Agreement and Promissory Note between FPU and Bank of 
America dated August 25, 2006. (Incorporated by reference to exhibit lO(2) on FPU's Form 10-Q for third quarter ending 
September 30, 2006, File No. 001-10608) 

1O(b) Contract for the transportation of natural gas between FPU and the City of Lake Worth dated March 25, 1992 
(Incorporated by reference to  exhibit l O ( f )  on FPU's Form S-2 for July 1992, File No. 0-1055) 

lO(c) Contract for the purchase of electric power between FPU and Jacksonville Electric Authority dated January 29, 
1996. (Incorporated by reference to exhibit 10(h) on FPU's annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 
2000) 

10(d) Contract for the purchase of electric power between F P U  and Gulf Power Company effective November 21, 1996. 
(Incorporated by reference to  exhibit 1O(i) on FPU's annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2000) 

10(e) Contract for the purchase of as-available capacity and  energy between FPU and Container Corporation of America 
dated September 19, 1985 (Incorporated by reference to exhibit 1O(i) on FPU's Form S-2 for July 1992, File No. 0-1055) 
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lO(f )  Contract for the sale of electric service between FPU and Container Corporation of America dated August 26, 1982 
(Incorporated by reference to exhibit l O ( i )  on FPU's Form S-2 for July 1992, File No. 0- 1055) 

1O(g) Contract for the sale of electric service between FPU and ITT Rayonier Inc. Dated April 1, 1982 (Incorporated by 
reference to exhibit 10(k) on FPU's Form 5-2 for July 1992, File No. 0-1055) 

IO@) Form of Stock Purchase and Sale Agreement between.FPU and three persons who, upon termination of two trusts, 
will become the record and beneficial owners of an aggregate of 313,554 common shares of the Registrant (Incorporated 
by reference to exhibit lob) on FPU's Form S-2 for July 1992, File No. 0-1055) 

1O(i) Contract for the sale of certain assets comprising F P U s  water utility business to the City of Fernandina Beach 
dated December 3, 2002. Incorporated by reference to exhibit 10(0) on FPU's annual report on Form 10-K for the year 
ended December 31, 2002) 

100') Transportation agreement between FPU and the City of Lake Worth (Incorporated by reference t o  exhibit 99.2 on 
FPU's Form 8-K filed April 4, 2003, File No. 001-10608) 

10(k) A Mutual Release agreement, as of March 31, 2003, by and between FPU, Lake Worth Generation, LLC, The City 
of Lake Worth, and The AES Corporation. (Incorporated by reference to exhibit 99.3 on FPU's Form 8-K filed April 4, 
2003, File No. 001-10608) 

100) Amended and Restated loan agreement between FPU and Bank of America, N.A. dated October 29, 2004. 
(Incorporated by reference as exhibit 10(n) on F P U s  annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 
2004) 

10(m) Security agreement between FPU and Bank of America, N.A. dated October 29, 2004. (Incorporated by reference 
as exhibit 10(0) on FPU's annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004) 

lO(n) # Non-Employee Director Compensation Plan, approved by Board of Directors on March 18, 2005. (Incorporated 
by reference as exhibit lob) on F P U s  annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004) 

10(0) Amendment to Electric Service Contract by and between JEA and FPU dated September 25, 2006, effective 
January 1, 2007. (Incorporated by reference as Exhibit 10.1 to our Form 10-Q, for the quarter ending September 30, 
2006, File No. 001-10608) 

lob) # Employment Agreement between the Company and John T. English dated March 31, 2006 (Incorporated by 
reference as Exhibit 10.1 t o  our Form 8-K, filed on March 31, 2006) 

1O(q) # Employment Agreement between the Company and Charles L. Stein dated March 31, 2006 (Incorporated by 
reference as Exhibit 10.2 t o  our Form 8-K, filed on March 31, 2006) 

lO(r) # Employment Agreement between the Company and George M. Bachman dated March 31, 2006 (Incorporated by 
reference as Exhibit 10.3 to  our Form 8-K, filed on March 31, 2006) 

1O(s) * Contract for the Agreement for Generation Sei-vices by and between FPU and Gulf Power Company dated 
December 28, 2006, effective January 1, 2008 

14 Ethics Policy (Incorporated by reference t o  exhibit 99.3 on F P U s  Form lO-K, filed March 30, 2004 File No. 001- 
10608) 

16 Change in certlfying accountants (Incorporated herein by reference as  exhibit 16 to F P U s  current report on Form 8- 
K, filed April 18, 2003) 

2 1  Subsidiary of the registrant (Incorporated by reference to exhibit 2 1  on F P U s  annual report on Form lO-K, for the 
year ended December 31, 2000) 

23 Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm's Consent BDO Seidman LLP 
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31.1 Certification of Principal Executive Officer (302) 

31.2 Certlfication of Principal Financial Officer (302) 

32 Certification of Principal Executive Officer and  Principal Financial Officer (906) 

# Denotes management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement 

* Confidential treatment is being requested for a portion of this agreement 
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Pursuant to  the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has  duly 
caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized. 

FLORIDA PUBLIC UTILITIES COMPANY 

Is/ George M Bachman 

George M Bachman, Chief Financial Officer 
(Duly Authorized Officer) 

Date: March 19, 2007 

Each person whose signature appears below hereby constitutes and  appoints John T. English, Chief Executive Officer 
and President, and George M. Bachman, Chief Financial Officer, and each of them, the true and lawful attorneys-in-fact 
and agents of the undersigned, with full power undersigned, in any and all capacities, t o  sign any and all amendments 
to this Annual Report on Form 10-I< and to file the same, with all exhibits thereto, and other documents in connection 
therewith, with the Securities and Exchange Commission, and hereby grants to  such attorneys-in-fact and agents, and 
each of them, full power and authority t o  do and perform each and every act and thing requisite and necessary to  be 
done, as fidly to all intents and purposes as the undersigned might or could do in person, hereby ratifying and 
confirming all that  said attorneys-in-fact and agents, or any of them, or their or his substitute or substitutes, may 
Iawfully do or cause to  be done by virtue thereof. 

Is/ John T. English 

John T. English 
Chairman of the Board, President, Chief Executive Officer, and 
Director (Principal Executive Officer) 

Date: March 19, 2007 

Is1 George M. Bachman 

George M Bachman, Chief Financial Officer 
(Principal Financial Officer and Principal Accounting Officer) 

Date: March 19, 2007 

/ s i  Ellen Terrv Benoit 

Ellen Terry Benoit, Director 
Date: March 19, 2007 

Is1 Richard C. Hitchins 

Richard C. Hitchins, Director 
Date: March 19, 2007 

/si  Dennis S. Hudson 111 

Dennis S. Hudson 111, Director 
Date: March 19, 2007 

Is1 Paul L. Maddock, Jr. 
Date: March 19, 2007 
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Paul L. Maddock, Jr., Director 

is /  Trov W. Maschmeyer. Jr. 
Troy W. Maschmeyer, Jr., Director 

Date: March 19, 2007 

FLORIDA PUBLIC UTILITIES COMPANY 
EXHIBIT INDEX 

Regulation S-K 
Item Number 

1O(s) * Contract for the Agreement For Generation Services by and between FPU and Gulf Power Company dated 
December 28, 2006, effective January 1, 2008 
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31.1 Certification of Principal Executive Officer (302) 

31.2 Certification of Principal Financial Officer (302) 

32 Certification of Principal Executive Officer and Principal Financial Officer (906) 

* Confidential treatment is being requested for a portion of this agreement 
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Florida Public Utilities Company 
2008 Sources and Uses of Funds Forecast 

(In Thousands) 

Significant cash flow items (Note 1) 

Total Operating Income 

Deductions 
Operating & Maintenance 
Taxes 
Interest 
Dividends Paid 
Other 

Total Deductions 

Balance 
Construction expenditures: 
Cash Refund/(Contributions) 
Contingency Requirements 

Balance 
Proceeds (repayment) of Short Term Borrowing 
Proceeds from Equity Issuance less costs 
Proceeds from Sale of Disc Ops & LWG 
Requested Remaining Financing 

Balance 
Beginning Cash 
Ending Cash 

2008 

54,331 

30,756 
6,015 
4,731 
3,181 

10 
44,693 

9,638 
17,446 

386 
45,000 

(53,194) 
(6,364) 
14,100 

300 
45,000 

(1 58) 
449 

Florida Public Utilities Company 
2008 Construction Budget for Gross Property Additions 

(In Thousands) 

Notes 

1) Projected amounts do not include any effect of potential changes in retail base or other 
regulated activities which could cause the projections to change. 

2) Excludes AFUDC. All of the estimated construction expenditures are subject to 
continuing review and adjustment. Actual construction expenditures may vary from 
these estimates due to factors such as; changes in customers, energy sales, 
business and economic conditions, construction and design requirements, fuel supply 
and costs, availability of labor, supplies and materials, regulatory treatment, 
environmental and conservation requirements, and existing and proposed legislation. 
FPUC is keeping its construction program as flexible as possible with the intention 
of accommodating those factors that may develop or change. 
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Florida Public Utilities Company 
Statement of Capital Stock and Debt 

June 30,2007 

Shares Amount 
Authorized and Authorized and 

Dividend Rate Series Issue Date Outstanding Outstanding 

4.75% 1959 6,000 $ 600,000.00 

Annual Dividend 
Requirement 

$ 28,500.00 

Other: 

I I -  Outstanding I 

* Average shares outstanding have been restated to reflect the four-for-three stock spllt declared on June 14 2002 and distributed on July 1,  2002 
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Florida Public Utilities Company 
Statement of Capital Stock and Debt 

June 30,2007 

Series 

First Mortgage Bonds: 

Principal Proceeds / 
Issue date Maturity Outstanding (Expenses) 

9.57% 
10.03% 
9.08% 

5/1/1988 5/1/2018 $10,000,000 
5/1/1988 5/1/2018 $ 5,500,000 
6/1/1992 6/1/2022 $ 8,000,000 

Weighted Average Interest - Long-term Debt 

Amount Pledged by Applicant: 

Unsecured Short Term Debt: 

0 

(Expenses) I ' I Interest Rate Balance I Current I 

Amount held in any Fund 

I I I 

December31.2005 I 6.22% I 3,466,000 1 
June 30,2006 I 6.22% I 1,105,000 

0 

Pretax interest coverage: 

Mos 
Remaining 

0.0128 142 
0.0135 142 
0.0184 191 
0.01 35 292 

0.0188 291 
I 0.0751 1058 

7.51 % 

Net income before interest and income taxes 
Interest expense 

Net Inc Interest Exp Income Tax 

244 1 2,208 2,383 1,226 = 
2,383 
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